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We will continue to build on our successful business model

which employs regional approach with global perspective

Our competitive

advantages

Experienced and

taented Œmployeea

Unique geographic poaition
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Strong balance aheet
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Part

ITEM BUSINESS

The Company

Corn Products International Inc was incorporated as Delaware

corporation in 1997 and its common stock is traded on the New York

Stock Exchange Corn Products International Inc together with

its subsidiaries manufactures and sells number of ingredients to

wide variety of food beverage brewing and industrial customers

For purposes of this report unless the context otherwise

requires all references herein to the Company Corn Products

we us and our shall mean Corn Products International Inc

and its subsidiaries

On October 2010 the Company acquired National Starch

global provider of specialty starches from Akzo Nobel N.V

headquartered in the Netherlands National Starch is recognized

innovator in food ingredients and specialty starches Its technolo

gies are supported by world-class research and development

infrastructure and protected by more then 800 patents and patents

pending which drive development of advanced specialty starches

for the next generation of food products

We are major supplier of high-quality food ingredients and

industrial products derived from wet milling and processing of

corn and other starch-based materials We engage in corn refining

capital-intensive two-step process that involves the wet milling

and processing of corn During the front-end process corn is

steeped in water-based solution and separated into starch and

co-products sLich as animal feed and corn oil The starch is then

either dried for sale or further processed to make sweeteners

starches and other ingredients that serve the particLilar needs of

various industries

Our consolidated net sales vvere $4.37 billion in 2010

Approximately 56 percent of our 2010 net sales were provided

from our North American operations Our South American opera

tions provided 28 percent of net sales while our Asia/African and

European operations contributed approximately 14 percent and

percent respectively

Our products are derived primarily from the processing of corn

and other starch-based materials such as tapioca potato and rice

Our sweetener products include glucose corn syrups high

maltose corn syrups high fructose corn syrup HFCS caramel

color dextrose polyols maltodextrins and glucose and corn syrup

solids Our starch-based products include both industrial and food-

grade starches

Corn Products supplies broad range of customers in many

diverse industries around the world including the food beverage

brewing pharmaceutical paper and corrugated products textile

and personal care industries as well as the global animal feed and

corn oil markets

We believe our approach to production and service which

focuses on local management and production improvements of our

worldwide operations provides us with unique understanding of

the cultures and product requirements in each of the geographic

markets in which we operate bringing added value to our customers

through innovative solutions

Products

Sweetener Products Our sweetener products represented

approximately 52 percent 56 percent and 53 percent of our net

sales br 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Glucose Corn Syrups Corn syrups are fundamental ingredients

widely used in food products such as baked goods snack foods

beverages canned fruits condiments candy and other sweets

dairy products ice cream jams and jellies prepared mixes and

table ayrups

High Maltose Corn Syrup This special type of glucose syrup is

primarily used as fermentable sugar in brewing beers High

maltose corn syrups are also used in the production of confections

canning and some other food processing applications

High Fructose Corn Syrup High fructose corn syrup is used in

variety of consumer products including soft drinks fruit-flavored

beverages baked goods dairy products confections and other

food and beverage products

Dextrose We currently produce dextrose products that are

grouped in three different categories monohydrate anhydrous

and specialty Monohydrate dextrose is used across the food

industry in many of the same products as glucose corn syrups

especially in confectionery applications Anhydrous dextrose is

used to make solutions for intravenous injection and other pharma

ceutical applications as well as some specialty food applications

Specialty dextrose products are used in wide range of applica

tions from confectionery tableting to dry mixes to carriers for

high intensity sweeteners Dextrose also has wide range of

industrial applications including use in wall board and production

of biodegradable surfactants Isurface agentsl humectants Imois

ture agentsj and as the base for fermentation products including

vitamins organic acids amino acids and alcohol

Polyols These products are sugar-free reduced calorie sweeteners

primarily derived from starch or sugar for the food beverage

confectionery industrial personal and oral care and nutritional

supplement markets

coac PriouucTs iIITEPNATIONSL



Maltodextrins and Glucose and Corn Syrup Solids These products

have multitude of food applications including formulations where

liquid corn syrups cannot be used Maltodextrins are resistant to

browning provide excellent solubility have low hydroscopicity do

not retain moisture and are ideal for their carner/bulking proper

hes Corn syrup solids have bland flavor remain clear in solution

are easy to handle and provide hulking properties

Starch Products Our starch products represented approximately

28 percent 23 percent and 22 percent of our net sales for 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively Starches are an important component

in side range of processed foods where they are used for adhe

sions clouding dusting expansion fat replacement freshness

gelling glazing mouth feel stabilization and texture Cornstarch

is sold to cornstarch packers for sale to consumers Starches are

also used in paper production to create smooth surface for printed

communications and to improve strength in recycled papers

Specialty starches are used for enhanced drainage fiber retention

oil and grease resistance improved printability and biochemical

oxygen demand control In the corrugating industry starches and

specialty starches are used to produce high quality adhesives for

the production of shipping containers display board and other

corrugated applicationsThe textile industry has successfully used

starches and specialty starches to provide size and finishes for

manufactured products Industrial starches are used in the produc

tion of construction materials textiles adhesives pharmaceuticals

arid cosmetics as well as in mining water filtration and oil and gas

drilling Specialty starches are used for hiomaterial applications

including biodegradable plastics fabric softeners and detergents

hair and skin care applications dusting powders for surgical gloves

and in the production of glass fiber and insulation

Co-Products and Others Co-products and others accounted for

20 percent 21 percent and 25 percent of our net sales for 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively Refined corn oil from germ is sold

to packers of cooking oil and to producers of margarine salad

dressings shortening mayonnaise and other foods Corn gluten

feed is sold as animal feed Corn gluten meal is sold as high

protein feed for chickens pet food and aquaculture primarily and

steepwater is sold as an additive for animal feed

Geographic Scope and Operations

We operate in one business segment the production of starches

and sweeteners for wide range of industries and manage our

business on geographic regional basis Our business includes

regional operations in North America South America Asia/Africa

and Europe In 2010 approximately 56 percent of our net sales

were derived from operations in North America while net sales

from operations in South America represented 28 percent Our

Asia/Africa and Europe operations represented approximately 14

percent and percent of our net sales respectively See Note 14

of the notes to the consolidated financial statements entitled

Segment Information for additional financial information with

respect to geographic areas

In general demand for our products is balanced throughout the

year However demand for sweeteners in South America is greater

in the first and fourth quarters lits summer seasonl while demand

for sweeteners in North America is greater in the second and third

quarters Due to the offsetting impact of these demand trends we

do not experience material seasonal fluctuations in our business

Our North America region consists of operations in the US

Canada and Mexico The regions facilities include 13 plants produc

ing range of both sweeteners and starches Our plant in Bedford

Park Illinois is major supplier of starch and dextrose products for

our US and export customers OLir plants in Winston-Salem North

Carolina and Stockton California enjoy strong market shares in their

local areas as do our Canadian plants in Cardinal London and Port

Colborne Ontario Our Winston-Salem Stockton Port Colborne and

London plants primarily produce high fructose corn syrup Plants in

Indianapolis North Kansas City Missouri and Charleston South

Carolina manufacture specialty starches for North American and

European customers We also have plant in Mapleton Illinois

which produces wide range of polyols including liquid and crys

talline sorbitol We are the largest producer of corn-based starches

and sweeteners in Mexico with plants in Guadalajara Mexico City

and San Juan del Rio

We are the largest manufacturer of corn-based starches

and sweeteners in South America with strong market shares in

Argentina Brazil Chile Colombia and Peru Our South America

region includes tl plants that produce regular modified waxy and

tapioca starches high fructose and high maltose corn syrups and

corn syrup solids dextrins and maltodextrins dextrose specialty

starches caramel color sorbitol and vegetable adhesives

Our Asia/Africa region manufactures corn- and tapioca-based

products in South Korea Pakistan Thailand Kenya Australia and

China.The regions facilities include 11 plants that produce modified

specialty regular waxy and tapioca starches dextrins glucose

dextrose high fructose corn syrups and caramel color
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Our European region consists of specialty starch operations

in England Germany and South Africa The regions two facilities

are in Hamburg Germany and Goole England

In addition to the operations in which we engage directly

we have strategic alliances through technical license agreements

with companies in South Africa and Venezuela As group our

strategic alliance partners produce high fructose glucose and high

maltose syrups lhoth corn and tapioca regular modified waxy

and tapioca starches dextrose and dextrins maltodextrins and

caramel color These products have leading positions in many of

their target markets

Competition

The starch and sweetener industry is highly competitive Many of

our products are viewed as basic commodity ingredients that com

pete with
virtually identical products and derivatives manufactured

by other companies in the industry The US is highly competitive

market where there are other corn refiners several of which are

divisions of larger enterprises Some of these competitors unlike

us have vertically integrated their corn refining and other opera

tions Competitors include ADM Corn Processing Division ADM
Ia division of Archer-Daniels-Midland Company Cargill Inc Tate

Lyle Ingredients Americas Inc and several others Our opera

tions in Mexico and Canada face competition from US imports and

local producers including ALMEX Mexican joint venture between

ADM and Tate Lyle Ingredients Americas Inc In South America

Cargill has corn-refining operations in Brazil Many smaller local

corn and tapioca refiners also operate in many of our markets

Competition within our markets is largely based on price quality

and product availability

Several of our products also compete with products made from

raw materials other than corn High fructose corn syrup and mono-

hydrate dextrose compete principally with cane and beet sugar

products Co-products such as corn oil and gluten meal compete

with products of the corn dry milling industry and with soybean

oil soybean meal and other products Fluctuations in prices of

these competing prodLicts may affect prices of and profits derived

from our products

Customers

We supply broad range of customers in over 60 industries

Approximately 31 percent of our 2010 net sales were to compa

nies engaged in the processed foods industry and approximately

14 percent of our 2010 net sales were to companies engaged in

the soft drink industry Additionally sales to the animal feed market

and the brewing industry represented approximately 13 percent

and 11 percent of our 2010 net sales respectively

Raw Materials

Corn is the basic raw material we use to produce starches and

sweeteners The supply of corn in the United States has been

and is anticipated to continue to he adequate for our domestic

needs The price of corn which is determined by reference to

prices on the Chicago Board of Trade fluctuates as result of

various factors including farmer planting decisions climate and

government policies lincluding those related to the production of

ethanol livestock feeding shortages or surpluses of world grain

supplies and domestic and foreign government policies and trade

agreements The Company also uses tapioca potato rice and

sugar as raw material

Corn is also grown in other areas of the world including Canada

Mexico Europe South Africa Argentina Brazil China Pakistan

and Kenya Our affiliates outside the United States utilize both

local supplies of corn and corn imported from other geographic

areas including the United States The supply of corn for these

affiliates is also generally expected to be adequate for our needs

Corn prices for our non-US affiliates generally fluctuate as result

of the same factors that affect US corn prices

Due to the competitive nature of our industry and the availability

of substitute products not produced from corn such as sugar from

cane or beets end product prices may not necessarily fluctuate in

manner that correlates to raw material costs of corn

We follow policy of hedging our exposure to commodity

fluctuations with commodities futures contracts for certain of our

North American corn purchases Our firm-priced business is hedged

Other business may or may not be hedged at any given time based

on managements judgment as to the need to fix the costs of our

raw materials to protect our profitability See Item 7A Quantitative

and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk in the section enti

tled Commodity Costs for additional information

Research and Development

With the acquisition of National Starch the Company has obtained

global research and development capability concentrated in

Bridgewater New Jersey Activities at Bridgewater include plant

science and physical chemical and biochemical modifications to

food formulation as well as development of non-food applications

such as starch-based biopolymers In addition Corn Products has

product application technology centers that direct our product

development teams worldwide to create product application solu

tions to better serve the ingredient needs of our customers Product

development activity is focused on developing product applications

for identified customer and market needs Through this approach

we have developed value-added products for use by customers in

various industries We
usLially collaborate with customers to develop
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the desired product application either in the customers facilities

our technical service laboratories or on contract basis These

efforts are supported by our marketing product technology and

technology support staff

Sales and Distribution

Our salaried sales personnel who are generally dedicated to

customers in geographic region sell our products directly to

manufacturers and distributors In addition we have staff that

provides technical support to our sales personnel on an industry

basis We generally contract with trLicking companies to deliver our

bulk products to cListomer destinations In North America we gen

erally use trucks to ship to nearby customers For those customers

located considerable distances from our plants we use either rail

or combination of railcars and trucks to deliver our product We

generally lease railcars for terms of five to fifteen years

Patents Trademarks and Technical License Agreements

We ovan number of patents including approximately 800 patents

and patents pending through the acquisition of National Starch which

relate to variety of products and processes and number of

established trademarks under which we market our products We

also have the right to use other patents and trademarks pursuant

to patent and trademark licenses We do not believe that any indi

vidual patent or trademark is material to our business There is

no currently pending challenge to the use or registration of any of

our significant patents or trademarks that would have material

adverse impact on the Company or its results of operations if

decided adversely to us

We are party to technical license agreements with third parties

in South Africa and Venezuela whereby we provide technical man

agement and business advice on the operations of corn refining

businesses and receive royalties in return These arrangements

provide us with product penetration in these countries as well as

experience and relationships that could facilitate future expansion

The duration of the agreements range from one to three years

and these agreements can be extended by mutual agreement

These relationships have been in place for many years We receive

approximately $2 million of annual income for services provided

under these agreements

Employees

As of December 31 2010 we had approximately 10700 employees

of which approximately 1900 were located in the United States

Approximately 39 percent of US and 54 percent of our non-US

employees are unionized In addition the Company has approxi

mately 1000 temporary employees

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters

As manufacturer and maker of food items and items for ue in

the pharmaceutical industry our operations and the use of many

of our products are subject to various US state foreign and local

statutes and regulations including the Federal Food Drug and

Cosmetic Act and the Occupational Safety and Health Act We

and many of our products are also subject to regulation by various

government agencies including the United States Food and Drug

Administration Among other things applicable regulations pre

scribe requirements and establish standards for product quality

purity and labeling Failure to comply with one or more regulatory

reqrarements can result in variety of sanctions including mone

tary fines No such fines of material nature were imposed on

us in 2010 We may also be required to comply with US state

foreign and local laws regulating food handling and storage We

believe these laws and regulations have not negatively affected

our competitive position

Our operations are also subject to various US state foreign

and local laws and regulations with respect to environmental mat

ters including air and water quality and underground fuel storage

tanks and other regulations intended to protect public health and

the environment The Company operates industrial boilers that fire

natural gas coal or biofuels to operate its manufacturing facilities

and are its primary source of greenhouse gas emissions Based on

current laws and regulations and the enforcement and interpretations

thereof we do not expect that the costs of future environmental

compliance will be material expense although there can be no

assurance that we will reinain in complience or that the costs of

remaining in compliance will not have material adverse effect

on our future financial condition and results of operations

During 2010 we spent approximately $6 million for environmental

control and wastewater treatment equipment to he incorporated into

existing facilities and in planned construction projects We currently

anticipate that we will spend approximately $4 million for environ

mental facilities and programs in 2011 and similar amount in 2012

Other

Our Internet address is www.cornproducts.com We make available

free of charge through our Internet website our annual report on

Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-0 current reports on

Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished

pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 as amended These reports are made available as soon

as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with

or fLirnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission Our

corporate governance guidelines Board committee charters and
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code of ethics are posted on our website the address of which

is www.cornproducts.com and each is available in print to any

shareholder upon request in writing to Corn Products International

Inc Westbrook Corporate Center Westchester Illinois 60154

Attention Corporate Secretary The contents of our website are

not incorporated by reference into this report

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Set forth below are the names and ages of all of our executive

officers indicating their positions and offices with the Company

and other business experience during the past five years Our

executive officers are elected annually by the Board to serve until

the next annual election of officers and until their respective suc

cessors have been elected and have qualified unless removed

by the Board

Ilene Gordon 57

Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer of

the Company since May 2009 She was President and Chief

Executive Officer of Rio Tintos Alcan Packaging multinational

business unit engaged in flexible and specialty packaging from

October 2007 until she took office as Chairman of the Board

President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company From

December 2006 to October 2007 Ms Gordon was Senior Vice

President of Alcan Inc and President and Chief Executive Officer

of Alcan Packaging Alcan Packaging was acquired by Rio Tinto

in October 2007 From 2004 until December 2006 Ms Gordon

served as President of Aican Food Packaging Americas division

of Alcan Inc From 1999 until Alcans December 2003 acquisition

of Pechiney Group Ms Gordon was Senior Vice President of

Pechiney Group and President of Pechiney Plastic Packaging Inc

global flexible packaging business Prior to joining Pechiney in

June 1999 Ms Gordon spent 17 years with Tenneco Inc where

she most recently served as Vice President and General Manager

heading upTenriecos folding carton business Ms Gordon also

serves as director of Arthur Gallagher Co an international

insurance brokerage and risk management business Northwestern

Memorial Hospital The Executive Club of Chicago and The Chicago

Council on Global Affairs She is also trustee of The Conference

Board Ms Gordon served as director of United Stationers Inc

wholesale distributor of business products and provider of

marketing and logistics services to resellers from January 2000

until May 2009 She holds Bachelors degree in Mathematics from

the Massachusetts Institute of Technology MIT and Masters

degree in Management from MITs Sloan School of Management

Cheryl Beebe 55

Executive \fice President and Chief Financial Officer since October

2010 Ms Beebe previously served as Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer from February 2004 to September 30 2010

as Vice President Finance from July 2002 to February 2004 as

Vice President from 1999 to 2002 and as Treasurer from 1997 to

February 2004 Prior to that she served as Director of Finance

and Planning worldwide for the Corn Refining Business of CPC

International Inc now Unilever Besffoods CPC from 1995

to 1997 and as Director of Financial Analysis and Planning for

Cdrn Products North America from 1993 Ms Beebe joined CPC

in 1980 and served in various financial positions in CPCs US

consumer food business North American aLidit group and worldwide

corporate treasury group Ms Beebe is member of the Board

of Directors of Packaging Corporation of America She holds

Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Rutgers University

and Masters of Business Administration degree from Fairleigh

Dickenson University

Julio dos Reis 55

Senior Vice President and President South America Ingredient

Solutions since October 2010 Mr dos Reis served as Vice

President and President South America Division from September

2010 to September 30 2010 Mr dos Reis previously served as

President and General Manager of the South America Divisions

Southern Cone from September 17 2003 to August 31 2010 Prior

thereto he joined CPC in 1994 as Argentinas Corporate Internal

Audit Manager and held positions of increasing responsibility

including Supply Chain Manager and Chief Financial Officer Prior to

joining CPC he served in number of management roles for IBM

Corporation He began his career with Price Waterhouse in 1977

He holds Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration

from the University of Buenos Aires in Argentina postgraduate

degree in Negotiation from the Pontificia Universidad Catolica

Argentina and certificate from the Advanced Executive Program

from the Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University

in Evanston Illinois

Jack Fortnum 54

Executive Vice President and President Global Beverage

Industrial and North America Sweetener Solutions since October

2010 Mr Fortnum previously served as Vice President since 1999

and President of the North America Division from May 2004 to

September 30 2010 Prior to that he served as President US
Canadian Region from July 2003 to May 2004 and as President

US Business from February 2002 until July 2003 Prior to that Mr

Fortnum served as Executive Vice President US/Canadian Region
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from August 2001 until February 2002 as the Controller from 1997

to 2001 as the Vice President of Finance for Refineries de Maiz

CPCs Argentine subsidiary from 1995 to 199 as the Director of

Finance and Planning for CPCs Latin America Corn Refining Division

from 1993 to 1995 and as the Vice President and Comptroller of

Canada Starch Operating Company Inc the Canadian subsidiary

of CPC and as the Vice President of Finance of the Canadian Corn

Refining Business from 1989 Mr Fortnum is member of the

Boards of Directors of the Chicagoland Chamber of Commerce

the Corn Refiners Association and Greenfield Ethanol Inc He

holds Bachelors degree in Economics from the University of

Toronto and completed the Senior Business Administration Course

offered by McGill University

Diane Frisch 56

Senior Vice President Human Resources since October 2010

Ms Frisch previously served as Vice President Human Resources

from May 2010 to September 30 2010 Prior to that Ms Frisch

served as Vice President of Human Resources and Communications

for the Food Americas and Global Pharmaceutical Packaging busi

nesses of Rio Tintos Alcan Packaging multinational company

engaged in flexible and specialty packaging from January 2004

to March 30 2010 Prior to being acquired by Alcan Packaging

Ms Frisch served as Vice President of Human Resources for the

flexible packaging business of Pechiney S.A an aluminum and

packaging company with headquarters in Paris and Chicago from

January 2001 to January 2004 Previously she served as Vice

President of Human Resources for Culligan International Company

Vice President and Director of Human Resources for Alumax Mill

Products Inc division of Alumax Inc Director of Human

Resources for U.S Reduction Company and Manager of Human

Resources for American Can Company Ms Frisch holds Bachelor

of Arts degree in Psychology from Ithaca College Ithaca NY and

Master of Science in Industrial Relations from the University

of Wisconsin in Madison

Kimberly Hunter 49

Corporate Treasurer since February 2004 Ms Hunter previously

served as Director of Corporate Treasury from September 2001

to February 2004 Prior to that she served as Managing Director

Investment Grade Securities at Bank One Corporation financial

institution from 1997 to 2000 and as Vice President Capital

Markets of Bank One from 1992 to 1997 Ms Hunter holds

Bachelors degrees in Government and Economics from Harvard

University and Masters in Business Administration from the

University of Chicago

Mary Ann Hynes 63

Senior Vice President General Counsel Corporate Secretary

and Chief Compliance Officer since October 2010 Ms Hynes

previously served as Vice President General Counsel and Corporate

Secretary from March 2006 to September 30 2010 and addition-

ally Chief Compliance Officer since January 2008 Prior to that

Ms Hynes was Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Chief Legal Officer for MC Global Inc producer and distributor

of crop nutrients and animal feed ingredients from July 1999 to

October 2004 and consultant to The Mosaic Company also

producer and distributor of crop nutrients and animal feed ingredi

ents from October 2004 to October 2005 The Mosaic Company

acquired MC Global Inc in October 2004 She holds Bachelors

of Political Science and Mathematics from Loyola University Juris

Doctor and Master of Laws Taxation degrees from John Marshall

Law School and an Executive Masters of Business Administration

degree from the Lake Forest Graduate School of Business in

Chicago

Robin Kornmeyer 62

Vice President since September 2002 and Controller since January

2002 Mr Kornmeyer previously served as Corporate Controller at

Foster Wheeler Ltd worldwide engineering and construction

company from 2000 to 2002 He holds Bachelors degree in

Economics and Business Administration from Lebanon Valley

College Annville Pennsylvania

John Saucier 57

Senior Vice President Corporate Strategy and Global Business

Development since October 2010 Mr Saucier previously served

as Vice President and President Asia/Africa Division and Global

Business Development from November 2007 to September 30 2010

Mr Saucier previously served as Vice President Global Business

and Product Development Sales and Marketing from April 2006 to

November 2007 Prior to that Mr Saucier was President Integrated

Nylon Division of Solutia Inc specialty chemical manufacturer

from May 2004 to March 2005 and Vice President of Solutia and

General Manager of its Integrated Nylon Division from September

2001 to May 2004 Solutia Inc and 14 of its US subsidiaries filed

voluntary petitions under the bankruptcy laws in December 2003

Mr Saucier holds Bachelors and Masters degrees in Mechanical

Engineering from the University of Missouri and Masters degree

in Business Administration from Washington University in St Louis
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James Zallie 49

Executive Vice President and President Global Ingredient Solutions

since October 2010 Mr Zallie previously served as President

and Chief Executive Officer of National Starch from January 2007

to September 30 2010 Mr Zallie worked for National Starch for

more than 27 years in various positions of increasing responsibility

first in technical then marketing and then international business

management positions For the last two years Mr Zallie led the

transition and integration of National Starch from ownership by

Imperial Chemical Industries PLC to ownership by Akzo Nobel NV

while concurrently overseeing National Starch managements role

in activities for Akzo Nobels divestment of the business In addition

to his new multi-regional business and global market segment

responsibilities for Corn Products Mr Zallie also is responsible for

leading global innovation activities and manufacturing network opti

mization He holds Masters degrees in Food Science and Business

Administration from Rutgers University and Bachelor of Science

degree in Food Science from Pennsylvania Stale University

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Our business and assets are subject to varying degrees of risk

and uncertainty The following are factors that we believe could

cause our actual results to differ materially from expected end

historical results Additional risks that are currently unknown to

us may also impair our business or adversely affect our financial

condition or results of operations In addition forward-looking

statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws that

are contained in this Form 10-K or in our other filings or state

ments may be subject to the risks described below as well as

other risks and uncertainties Please read the cautionary notice

regarding forward-looking statements in Item below

Current economic conditions may adversely impact demand for

our products reduce access to credit and cause our customers

and others with which we do business to suffer financial hard

ship all of which could adversely impact our business results

of operations financial condition and cash flows

Economic conditions are weak in the US and many other

countries and regions in which we do business and may remain

challenging for the foreseeable future General business and

economic conditions that could affect us include short-term and

long-term interest rates unemployment inflation fluctuations in

debt markets and the strength of the US economy arid the local

economies in which we operate While currently these conditions

have not impaired our ability to access credit markets and finance

our operations there can be no assurance that there will not be

further deterioration in the financial markets

There could be number of other effects from these economic

developments on our business including reduced consumer demand

for products insolvency of our customers resulting in increased

provisions for credit losses decreased customer demand including

order delays or cancellations and counterparty failures negatively

impacting our operations

In connection with our defined benefit pension plans adverse

changes in investment retLirns earned on pension assets and discount

rates used to calculate pension and related liabilities or changes in

required pension funding levels may have an unfavorable impact

on future pension expense and cash flow

In addition the currently weak worldwide economic conditions

and market instability make it increasingly difficult for us our

customers and our suppliers to accurately forecast future product

demand trends which could cause us to produce excess products

that can increase our inventory carrying costs Alternatively this

forecasting difficulty
could cause shortage of products that could

result in an inability to Satisfy demand for our products

We operate multinational business subject to the economic

political and other risks inherent in operating in foreign countries

and with foreign currencies

We have operated in foreign countries and with foreign currencies

for many years Our results are subject to foreign currency exchange

fluctuations Our operations are subject to political economic and

other risks There has been and continues to be significant political

uncertainty in some countries in which we operate Economic

changes terrorist
activity and political unrest may result in business

interruption or decreased demand for our products Protectionist

trade measures and import and export licensing requirements

could also adversely affect our results of operetions Our success

will depend in part on our ability to manage continued global

political and/or economic uncertainty

We primarily sell world commodities Historically local prices

have adlusted relatively quickly to offset the effect of local currency

devaluations but there con be no assurance that this will continue

to be the case We may hedge transactions that are denominated

in currency other than the currency of the operating unit entering

into the underlying transaction We are subject to the risks normally

attendant to sLich hedging activities
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Raw material and energy price fluctuations and supply

interruptions and shortages could adversely affect our

results of operations

Our finished products are made primarily from corn Purchased

corn accounts for between 40 percent and 65 percent of finished

product costs Energy costs represent approximately 12 percent

of our finished product costs We use energy primarily to create

steam in our production process and to dry product We consume

coal natural gas electricity wood and fuel oil to generate energy

The market prices for these commodities may vary considerably

depending on supply and demand world economies and other

factors We purchase these commodities based on our anticipated

usage and future outlook for these costs We cannot assure that we

will be able to purchase these commodities at prices that we can

adequately pass on to customers to sustain or increase profitability

In North America we sell large portion of our finished products

at firm prices established in supply contracts typically lasting for

periods of up to one year In order to minimize the effect of volatility

in the cost of corn related to these firm-priced supply contracts

we enter into corn futures contracts or take other hedging posi

tions in the corn futures market We are unable to hedge price risk

related to co-product sales These derivative contracts typically

mature within one year At expiration we settle the derivative

contracts at net amount equal to the difference between the

then-current price of corn and the futures contract price These

hedging instruments are subject to fluctuations in value however

changes in the value of the underlying exposures we are hedging

generally offset such fluctuations The fluctuations in the fair value

of these hedging instruments may affect the cash flow of the

Company We fund any unrealized losses or receive cash for any

unrealized gains on daily basis While the corn futures contracts

or hedging positions are intended to minimize the effect of volatil

ity of corn costs on operating profits the hedging activity can

result in losses some of which may be material Outside of North

America sales of finished products under long-term firni-priced

supply contracts are not material We also use derivative financial

instruments to hedge portions of our natural gas costs primarily

in our North American operations

Due to market volatility we cannot assure that we can

adequately pass potential increases in the cost of corn on

to customers through product price increases or purchase

quantities of corn at prices sufficient to sustain or increase

our profitability

Our corn purchasing costs which include the price of the corn plus

delivery cost account for 40 percent to 65 percent of our product

costs The price and availability of corn is influenced by economic

and industry conditions including supply and demand factors such

as crop disease and severe weather conditions such as drought

floods or frost that are difficult to anticipate and which we cannot

control There is also demand for corn in the US to produce ethanol

which has been significantly impacted by US governmental policies

designed to encourage the production of ethanol In addition gov

ernment programs supporting sugar prices indirectly impact the

price of corn sweeteners especially high fructose corn syrup

Our profitability may be affected by other factors beyond

our control

Our operating income and ability to increase profitability depend to

large extent upon our ability to price finished products at level

that will cover manufacturing and raw material costs and provide

an acceptable profit margin Our ability to maintain appropriate

price levels is determined by number of factors largely beyond

our control such as aggregate industry supply and market demand

which may vary from time to time and the economic conditions of

the geographic regions where we conduct our operations

We operate in highly competitive environment and it may be

difficult to preserve operating margins and maintain market share

We operate in highly competitive environment Many of our

products compete with virtually
identical or similar products manu

factured by other companies in the starch and sweetener industry

In the United States there are competitors several of which are

divisions of larger enterprises that have greater financial resources

than we do Some of these competitors unlike us have vertically

integrated their corn refining
and other operations Many of our prod

ucts also compete with products made from raw materials other

than corn Fluctuation in prices of these competing products may

affect prices of and profits derived from our products Competition

in markets in which we compete is largely based on price quality

and product availability
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Changes in consumer preferences and perceptions may lessen

the demand for our products which could reduce our sales and

profitability and harm our business

Food products are often affected by changes in consumer tastes

national regional and local economic conditions and demographic

trends For instance changes in prevailing health or dietary prefer

ences causing consumers to avoid food products containing

sweetener products in favor of foods that are perceived as being

more healthy could reduce our sales and
profitability and such

reduction could be material Increasing concern among consumers

public health professionals and government agencies about the

potential health concerns associated with obesity and inactive

lifestyles represent significant challenge to some of our cus

tomers including those engaged in the soft drink industry

The uncertainty of acceptance of products developed through

biotechnology could affect our profitability

The commercial success of agricultural products developed through

biotechnology including genetically modified corn depends in part

on public acceptance of their development cultivation distribution

and consumption Public attitudes can be influenced by claims that

genetically modified products are unsafe for consumption or that

they pose unknown risks to the environment even if such claims

are not based on scientific studies These public attitudes can

influence regulatory and legislative decisions about biotechnology

even where they are appioved The sale of the Companys products

which may contain genetically modified corn could be delayed

or impaired because of adverse public perception regarding the

safety of the Companys products and the potential effects of

these products on animals human health and the environment

Our profitability could be negatively impacted if we fail to

maintain satisfactory labor relations

Approximately 39 percent of our US and 54 percent of our non-US

employees are members of unions Strikes lockouts or other work

stoppages or slow downs involving our unionized employees could

have material adverse effect on us

Our reliance on certain industries for significant portion of

our sales could have material adverse affect on our business

Approximately 31 percent of our 2010 sales were made to

companies engaged in the processed foods industry and approxi

mately 14 percent were made to companies in the soft drink

industry Additionally sales to the animal feed market and the

brewing industry represented approximately 13 percent and

11 percent of our 2010 net sales respectively If our processed

foods customers soft drink customers brewing industry customers

or animal feed customers were to substantially decrease their pur

chases our business might be materially adversely effected

An outbreak of life threatening communicable disease could

negatively impact our business

If the economies of any countries where we sell or manufacture

products are affected by an outbreak of life threatening commu

nicable diseases such as Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome

lSARS or the Avian Flu it could result in decreased sales and

unfavorably impact our business

Government policies and regulations in general and specifically

affecting agriculture-related businesses could adversely affect

our operating results

Our operating results could be affected by changes in trade

monetary and fiscal pofcies jaws and regulations and other activi

ties of United States and foreigngovernments agencies and

similar organizations These conditions include but are not limited

to changes in countrys or regions economic or political condi

tions trade regulations affecting production pricing and marketing

of products local labor conditions and regulations reduced protec

tion of intellectual property rights changes in the regulatory or

legal environment restrictions on currency exchange activities

currency exchange fluctuations burdensome taxes and tariffs

and other trade barriers International risks and uncertainties

including changing social and economic conditions as well as

terrorism political hostilities and war could limit our ability to

transact business in these markets and could adversely affect

our revenues and operating results

Due to cross-border disputes our operations could be adversely

affected by actions taken by the governments of countries where

we conduct business
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The recognition of impairment charges on goodwill or long-lived

assets could adversely impact our future financial position

and results of operations

In 2010 we recorded $24 million write-off for impairment and

restructuring charges for the closure of our Chilean manufactUring

plant In 2009 we recorded write-off of 5119 million of goodwill

pertaining to our operation in Smith Korea See Note of the

notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K for additional information regarding these write-offs

We perform an annual impairment assessment for goodwill and

as necessary for long-lived assets If the results of such assess

ments were to show that the fair value of our property plant and

equipment or goodwill were less than the carrying values we

could be required to recognize charge for impairment of goodwill

and/or long-lived assets and the amount of the impairment charge

could be material Our annual impairment assessment as of

September 30 2010 did not result in any additional impairment

charges for the year

Even though it was determined that there was no additional

long-lived asset impairment as of September 30 2010 the future

occurrence of potential indicator of impairment such as signifi

cant adverse change in the business climate that would require

change in our assLimptions or strategic decisions made in response

to economic or competitive conditions could require us to perform

an assessment prior to the next required assessment date of

September 30 2011

Changes in our tax rates or exposure to additional income tax

liabilities could impact our profitability

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and in various

other foreign jurisdictions Our effective tax rates could be adversely

affected by changes in the mix of earnings by jurisdiction changes

in tax laws or tax rates changes in the valuation of deferred tax

assets and liabilities and material adjustments from tax audits

In particular the carrying value of deferred tax assets which

are predominantly in the US is dependent upon our ability to gen

erate future taxable income in the US In addition the amoLint of

income taxes we pay is subject to ongoing audits in various juris

dictions and material assessment by governing tax authority

could affect our profitability

Operating difficulties at our manufacturing plants could

adversely affect our operating results

Producing starches and sweeteners through corn refining is

capital intensive industry tA/e have 37 plants and have preventive

maintenance and de-bofflenecking programs designed to maintain

and improve grind capacity and facility reliability If we encoLinter

operating difficulties at plant for an extended period of time or

start up problems with any capital improvement projects we may

not be able to meet portion of sales order commitments and

could incur significantly higher operating expenses both of which

could adversely affect our operating results We also use boilers to

generate steam required in our manufacturing processes An event

that impaired the operation of boiler for an extended period of

time could have significant adverse effect on the operations of

any plant where such event occurred

We may not have access to the funds required for future

growth and expansion

We may need additional funds for working capital to grow and

expand our operations We expect to fund our capital expenditures

from operating cash flow to the extent we are able to do so If our

operating cash flow is insufficient to fund our capital expenditures

we may either reduce our capital expenditures or utilize our gen

eral credit facilities We may also seek to generate additional

liquidity through the sale of debt or equity securities in private or

public markets or through the sale of non-productive assets We

cannot provide any assurance that our cash flows from operations

will he sufficient to fund anticipated capital expenditures or that

we will be able to obtain additional funds from financial markets or

from the sale of assets at terms favorable to us If we are unable

to generate sufficient cash flows or raise sufficient additional

funds to cover our capital expenditures we may not be able to

achieve our desired operating efficiencies and expansion plans

which may adversely impact our competitiveness and therefore

our results of operations

Increased interest rates could increase our borrowing costs

From time to time we may issue securities to finance acquisitions

capital expenditures working capital and for other general corporate

purposes An increase in interest rates in the general economy could

result in an increase in our borrowing costs for these financings

as well as under any existing debt that bears interest at an unhedged

floating rate
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We may not successfully identify and complete acquisitions

or strategic alliances on favorable terms or achieve anticipated

synergies relating to any acquisitions or alliances and such

acquisitions could result in unforeseen operating difficulties and

expenditures and require significant management resources

We regularly review potential acquisitions of complementary

businesses technologies services or products as well as potential

strategic alliances We may be unable to find suitable acquisition

candidates or appropriate partners with which to form partnerships

or strategic alliances Even if we identify appropriate acquisition or

alliance candidates we may be unable to complete such acquisitions

or alliances on favorable terms if at all In addition the process of

integrating an acquired business including National Starch technol

ogy service or product into our existing business and operations

may result in unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures

Integration of an acquired company also may require significant

management resources that otherwise would be available for

ongoing development of our business Moreover we may not real

ize the anticipated benefits of any acquisition including National

Starch or strategic alliance and such transactions may not gener

ate anticipated financial results Future acquisitions could also

require us to issue equity securities incur debt assume contin

gent liabilities or amortize expenses related to intangible assets

any of which could harm our business

Our inability to contain costs could adversely affect our future

profitability and growth

Our future profitability and growth depends on our ability to

contain operating costs and
per-unit product costs and to maintain

and/or implement effective cost control programs while at the

same time maintaining competitive pricing and superior quality

products customer service and support Our
ability to maintain

competitive cost structure depends on continued containment of

manufacturing delivery and administrative costs as well as the

implementation of cost-effective purchasing programs for raw

materials energy and related manufacturing requirements

If we are unable to contain our operating costs and maintain

the productivity and reliability of our production facilities our prof

itability and growth could be adversely affected

Volatility in the stock market fluctuations in quarterly

operating results and other factors could adversely affect

the market price of our common stock

The market price for our common stock may be significantly

affected by factors such as our announcement of new products or

services or such announcements by our competitors technologi

cal innovation by us our competitors or other vendors quarterly

variations in our operating results or the operating results of our

competitors general conditions in our or our customers markets

and changes in the earnings estimates by analysts or reported

results that vary materially from such estimates In addition the

stock market has experienced significant price fluctuations that

have affected the market prices of eqLnty securities of many com

panies that have been unrelated to the operating performance of

any individual company

No assurance can be given that we will continue to

pay dividends

The payment of dividends is at the discretion of our Board of

Directors and will be subject to our financial results and the

availability of surplus funds to pay dividends

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM FROPERTIES

We operate directly and through our consolidated subsidiaries

37 manufacturing facilities all of which are owned In addition we

lease our corporate headquarters in Westchester Illinois and our

National Starch
facility

in Bridgewater New Jersey The following

list details the locations of our manufacturing facilities within each

of our three geographic regions

North America

Cardinal Ontario Canada

London Ontario Canada

Port Colborne Ontario Canada

San Juan del Rio Oueretaro Mexico

Guadalajara Jalisco Mexico

Mexico City Edo Mexico

Stockton California U.S

Bedford Park Illinois U.S

Mapleton Illinois u.S

Indianapolis Indiana U.S

North Kansas City Missouri U.S

Winston-Salem North Carolina U.S

Charleston South Carolina U.S
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South America

Baradero Argentina

Chacabuco Argentina

Balsa Nova Brazil

Cabo Brazil

Conchal Brazil

Mogi-Giiacu Brazil

Rio cle Janeiro Brazil

Trombudo Brazil

Barranquilla Colombia

Cali Colombia

Lima Peru

Asia/Africa

Lane Cove Australia

Shanghai China

Shouguang China

Eldoret Kenya

Cornwala Pakistan

Faisalabad Pakistan

Ichon South Korea

Inchon South Korea

Ban Kao Dien Thailand

Kalasin Thailand

Sikhiu Thailand

Europe

Hamburg Germany

Goole United Kingdom

We believe our manufacturing facilities are sufficient to meet our

current production needs We have preventive maintenance and

debottlenecking programs designed to further improve grind

capacity and facility reliability

We have electricity co-generation facilities at all of our US and

Canadian plants with the exception of Indianapolis North Kansas

City Charleston and Mapleton as well as at our plants in San Juan

del Rio Mexico Baradero Argentina and Balsa Nova and Mogi

Guacu Brazil that provide electricity at lower cost than is

available from third parties We generally own and operate these

co-generation facilities except for the facilities at our Stockton

California Cardinal Ontario and Balsa Nova and Mogi-Guacu

Brazil locations which are owned by and operated pursuant to

co-generation agreements with third parties

In recent years we have made significant capital expenditures

to update expand and improve our facilities spending $159 million

in 2010 We believe these capital expenditures will allow us to operate

efficient facilities for the foreseeable future We currently anticipate

that capital expenditures for 2011 will approximate $290 million to

$300 million

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On October 21 2003 we submitted on our own behalf and

on behalf of our Mexican affiliate CPlngredientes SA de CV
Ipreviously known as Compania Proveedora de Ingredientes

Request for Institution of Arbitration Proceedings Submitted

Pursuant to Chapter 11 of the North American Free Trade

Agreement NAFTA the Request The Request was sub

mitted to the Additional Office of the International Centre for

Settlement of Investment Disputes and was brought against the

United Mexican States In the Request we asserted that the

imposition by Mexico of discriminatory tax on beverages con

taining HFCS in force from 2002 through 2006 breached various

obligations of Mexico under NAFTA The case was bifurcated into

two phases liability and damages and hearing nn liability was

held before alribunal in July 2006 In Decision dated January 15

2008 the Tribunal issued an order holding that Mexico had violated

NAFTA Article 1102 National Treatment In July 2008 hearing

regarding the quantum of damages was held before the same

Tribunal We sought damages and pre- and post-judgment interest

totaling $298 million through December 31 2008 In an award

rendered August 18 2009 the Tribunal awarded damages to the

Company in the amount of $58.4 million as result of the tax

and certain out-of-pocket expenses incurred by CPlngredientes

together with accrued interest Ithe Award On October 2009

we submitted to the Tribunal request for correction of the Award

to avoid effective double taxation on the amount of the Award in

Mexico On January24 and 25 2011 we received cash payments

totaling $58.4 million from the Government of the United Mexican

States pursuant to an award rendered in our favor by the Tribunal

in 2009 and corrected in 20101 Mexico made this payment pursuant

to an agreement with Corn Products International that provides for

terminating pending post-award litigation and waiving post-award

interest The $58.4 million award will be recorded in the Companys

first quarter 2011 consolidated financial statements

See also Note 13 of the notes to the consolidated financial

statements

We are currently subject to various other claims and suits

arising in the ordinary course of business including certain envi

ronmental proceedings We do not believe that the results of such

legal proceedings even if unfavorable to us will be material to

us There can be no assurance however that such claims or suits

or those arising in the future whether taken individually or in the

aggregate will not have material adverse effect on our financial

condition or results of operations

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF

SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to vote of our security holders

through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise during the quarter

ended December 31 2010
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ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON

EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Shares of our common stock are traded on the New York

Stock Exchange NYSE under the ticker symbol CPO The

number of holders of record of our common stock was 6600

at January 31 2010

We have history of paying quarterly dividends.The amount and

timing of the dividend payment if any is based on number of

factors including estimated earnings financial position and cash flow

The payment of dividend is solely at the discretion of our Board

of Directors Future dividend payments will be subject to our finan

cial results and the availability of surplus funds to pay dividends

The quarterly high and low sales prices for our common stock

and cash dividends declared per common share for 2009 and 2010

are shown below

1st Qtr 2nd Otr 3rd Qtr 4th Ole

2010

Market prices

High $35.73 $37.62 $39.36 $48.00

Low 26.23 30.25 28.70 37.12

Per share dividends 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14

2009

Market prices

High $31.15 $28.97 $32.37 $31.90

Low 17.80 18.04 24.15 26.70

Per share dividends 0.14 0.14 0.14 014

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes information with respect to our

purchases of our common stock during the fourth quarter of 2010

Masimum

Number or

Total Approsimase

Number DollarValue

of Shares of Shares

Purchased that may yet

as part be Purchased

Total of Publicly Under the

Number Average Announced Plans or

ol Shares Pricn Paid Plant or Programs at

Purchased Per Share Pronrams end of periodshares in thousands

Oct Oct 31 2010 4685 shares

Nov Nov 30 2010 4685 shares

Dec Dec 31 2010 4685 shares

Total

On November 17 2010 our Board of Directors authorized

an extension of our stock repurchase program permitting us to

purchase up to million shares of our outstanding common stock

through November 30 2015.The stock repurchase program was

authorized by the Board of Directors on November 2007 and

would have expired on November 30 2010 As of December 31

2010 we had 4.7 million shares available for repurchase under

this program

ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected financial data is provided below

in millions

except per share amountsi ZOlO 2009 2008 2007 2006

Summary of operations

Net sales $4367 $3672 $3944 $3391 $2621

Net income

attributable to CPI 169 41 267 198 124

Net earnings per

common share of CM
Basic 2.24 0.55 3.59 2.65 1.67

Diluted 2.20 0.54 3.52 2.59 1.63

Cash dividends declared

per common share of CM 0.56 0.56 0.54 0.40 0.33

Balance sheet data

Working capital 862 480 438 415 320

Property plant and

equipment net 2123 1564 1447 1500 1356

Total assetS 5071 2.952 3207 3103 2645

Long-term debt 1681 408 660 519 480

Total debt 1769 544 866 649 554

Redeemable

common stock 14 14 19 44

Total equity $2002 $1704 $1406 $1626 $1349

Shares outstanding

year end 76.0 74.9 74.5 73.8 74.3

Additional data

Depreciation and

amortization 155 130 128 125 114

Capital expenditures 159 146 228 177 171

Part II

Includes National Stand from October 12010 forward

ltrcludes $14 million of after-tao cirargex for bridge loan and otirer firraucing costs $0.18 per

diluled common sirarel after-tax acquisition-related cools of $28 million $0.34 per diluted

common sirarel after-too clrarges of $22 million 00.29 per
diluted comrrlnrr share for impaired

assets and other costs primarily associated with our operations in Chile and after-tao clrarges

of $18 million $0.23 per diluted common share relating to the sole of Naliorlol Stench

innentory that was adjusted to fair value at the acquisition date in accordance with business

combination accounting rules See Notes 34 and of the totes In the consolidated financial

statements included in this Annual Report on Form to-K for additional ioformatiorr

Includes after-tan charges for impaired asoero and reotr ucturing cools of $110 million

or $1.47 per diluted common share See Note of the notes to lbs consolidated finarcial

statements included in thin Annual Report on Porm 10-K for additional information

Includes rron-contrnlling interesto
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

On October 2010 we completed our acquisition of National

Starch global provider of specialty starches from Akzo Nobel

NV global coatings and specially chemicals company headquar

tered in The Netherlands We acquired 100 percent of National Starch

through asset purchases in certain countries and stock purchases

in certain countries The purchase price was $1354 billion in cash

subject to certain post-closing adjustments The funding of the

purchase price was provided principally from borrowings.The results

of National Starch are included in our consolidated financial results

from October 2010 forward

The acquisition positions us with broader portfolio
of products

enhanced geographic reach and the ability to offer customers

broad range of value-added ingredient solutions for variety of their

evolving needs National Starch had sales of $1.2 billion in 2009

and provides us with among other things 11 additional manufac

turing facilities in countries across continents The acquisition

also provides additional sales and technical offices around the

world With the acquisition we now employ approximately 10700

people in North America South America Asia/Africa and Europe

We operate 37 manufacturing facilities in 15 countries have sales

offices in 29 countries and have research and ingredient develop

ment centers in key global markets

See Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements

for additional information related to the acquisition

We are one of the worlds largest corn refiners and major

supplier of high-quality food ingredients industrial products and

specialty starches derived from the wet milling and processing of

corn and other starch-based materials.The corn refining industry is

highly competitive Many of our products are viewed as commodi

ties that compete with virtually identical products manufactured

by other companies in the industry As noted above we have 37

manufacturing plants located throughout North America South

America Asia/Africa and Europe and we manage and operate our

businesses at local level We believe this approach provides us

with unique understanding of the cultures and product require

ments in each of the geographic markets in which we operate

bringing added value to our customers Our sweeteners are found

in products such as baked goods candies chewing gum dairy

products and ice cream soft drinks and beer Our starches are

staple of the food paper textile and corrugating indListries

Critical success factors in our business include managing our

significant manufacturing costs including corn and utilities In addi

tion due to our global operations we are exposed to fluctuations

in foreign currency exchange rates We use derivative financial

instruments when appropriate for the purpose of minimizing

the risks and/or costs associated with fluctuations in commodity

prices foreign exchange rates and interest rates Also the capital

intensive nature of the corn wet milling industry requires that we

generate significant
cash flow on yearly basis in order to selec

tively reinvest in the business and grow organically as well as

through strategic acquisitions and alliances We utilize certain key

metrics relating to working capital debt and return on capital

employed to monitor our progress toward achieving our strategic

business objectives Isee section entitled Key Performance Metrics

Our business improved in 2010 as net sales operating income

net income and diluted earnings per common share grew from

the year ago period Organic volume grovvth lower corn costs

improved plat utilization rates and the impact of owning National

Starch in the fourth quarter drove the earnings improvement

Additionally we enhanced our financial flexibility in 2010 by enter

ing into new $1 billion revolving credit facility We continue to

see economic recovery in many of our international markets and

expect our business to grow in 2011

We currently expect that our future operating cash flows and

borrowing availability under our credit facilities will provide us with

sufficient liquidity to fund our anticipated capital expenditures

dividends and other investing and/or financing strategies for the

foreseeable future

Results of Operations

We have significant operations in North America South America

Asia/Africa and Europe For most of our foreign subsidiaries the

local foreign currency is the functional currency Accordingly rev

enues and expenses denominated in the functional currencies of

these subsidiaries are translated into US dollars at the applicable

average exchange rates for the period Fluctuations in foreign cur

rency exchange rates affect the US dollar amounts of our foreign

subsidiaries revenues and expenses The impact of currency

exchange rate changes where significant is described below

As result of the acquisition of National Starch there are

significant fluctuations in our financial statements as compared

to 2009 While we will identify significant fluctuations due to the

acquisition our discussion below will also exclude the impact of

the acquisition where appropriate to provide more comparable

and meaningful analysis Additionally we have added new region

for our acquired operations in Europe See also Note 14 of the notes

to the consolidated financial statements for additional information
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2010 Compared to 2009

Net Income Attributable to CR1 Net income attributable to

CPI for 2010 more than quadrupled to $169 million or $2.20 per

diluted common share from 2009 net income of $41 million

or $0.54 per diluted common share Our results for 2010 include

$14 million of after-tax charges for bridge loan and other financing

costs $0.18 per diluted common share after-tax acquisition-related

costs of $26 million $0.24 per diluted common share after-tax

costs of $18 million $0.23 per diluted common share relating to

the sale of National Starch inventory that was adjusted to fair value

at the acquisition date in accordance with business combination

accounting rules and after-tax restructuring charges of $22 million

180.29 per diluted common share for impaired assets and other

costs primarily associated with the closing of our plant in Chile

Our 2009 results include an after-tax charge of $110 million $1.47

per diluted common share for impaired assets and restructuring

costs See also Note of the notes to the consolidated financial

statements for additional information pertaining to the asset

impairments and restructurings

Without the bridge loan and other financing costs and the

impairment restructuring and acquisition-related charges net

income for 2010 would have grown 65 percent over 2009 while

our diluted earnings per common share would have risen 61 per

cent This net income growth primarily reflects an increase in

operating income across all of our regions principally driven by

organic sales volume growth improved plant utilization rates

lower corn costs stronger foreign currencies and the earnings

from the acquired National Starch operations

Net Sales Net sales for 2010 increased to $4.37 billion from

$3.67 billion in 2009 as sales grew in each of our regions

summary of net sales by geographic region is shown below

Europe 70

Total $4367 $3672

The increase in net sales reflects 21 percent volume

improvement and favorable currency translation of percent due

to stronger foreign currencies which more than offset price/

product mix decline of percent primarily reflecting the normal

relationship between lower corn costs and corresponding decline

in selling prices Net sales from the acquired National Starch oper

ations totaled $351 million representing approximately 10 percent

of our 19 percent sales increase Additionally we had strong organic

volume growth across all of our regions and particularly in our

international businesses Co-product sales of approximately $781 mil

lion for 2010 increased 16 percent from $673 million in 2009 as

improved volume and currency translation more than offset lower

selling prices Co-product sales from acquired operations contributed

approximately $22 million or percent of the increase

Sales in North America increased percent driven by sales

contributed by the acquired National Starch operations Excluding

the acquired operations net sales in North America were flat as

10 percent volume improvement and percent increase attrib

utable to currency translation was offset by price/product mix

decline of 12 percent Volumes grew across the region led by

strong organic growth in Mexico where demand for sweeteners

from the beverage industry was particularly strong Improved

demand in Canada and the US also contributed to the organic

volume growth in the region Sales in South America increased

23 percent as volume growth of 14 percent driven by strong

demand from various industries and favorable currency translation

of 10 percent more than offset price/product mix decline of per

cent Sales from acquired operations contributed percent of the

sales growth in the region Sales in Asia/Africa increased 58 percent

driven in
part by sales contributed by acquired operations Excluding

the acquired operations Asia/Africa net sales increased 34 percent

reflecting volume growth of 20 percent primarily driven by signifi

cantly higher demand for sweeteners in South Korea price/product

mix improvement of percent and percent benefit from currency

translation associated with stronger Asian currencies Europe sales

reflect sales from our European operations that were acquired

as part of the National Starch acquisition

Cost of Sales Cost of sales for 2010 increased 16 percent to

$3.64 billion from $3.15 billion in 2009 More than half of this

increase reflects costs associated with sales of National Starch

products in the fourth quarter of 2010 The remainder of the

increase was driven
principally by volume growth and currency

translation which more than offset lower corn costs Currency

translation caused cost of sales for 2010 to increase approximately

percent from 2009 reflecting the impact of stronger foreign cur

rencies Gross corn costs per ton for 2010 declined approximately

11 percent from 2009 driven by lower market prices for corn

Energy costs for 2010 increased approximately 14 percent from

the prior year principally due to increased volume and stronger

foreign currencies Our gross profit margin for 2010 was 17 per

cent compared to 14 percent in 2009 reflecting improved profit

margins throughout our business

in millions 2010 2000 Increase Chan9e

North America

South America

Asia/Africa

$2439

124

617

$2268

1012

392

$171

229

225

70

$695

8%

23%

58%

NM

19%
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Selling General and Administrative Expenses Selling general

and administrative SGA expenses for 2010 were $370 million

up from $247 million in 2009 This increase primarily reflects SGA

expenses of the acquired National Starch operations and $35 million

of costs pertaining to the acquisition of National Starch Higher

compensation-related costs return to more historical run rates

and stronger foreign currencies also contributed to the increase in

SGA expenses Currency translation caused operating expenses

for 2010 to increase approximately percent from year ago reflect

ing the impact of stronger foreign currencies SGA expenses for

2010 represented percent of net sales up from percent in 2009

Other Income net Other income-net of $10 million for 2010

increased from other income-net of $5 million in 2009 This increase

primarily reflects higher tax recoveries and $2 million gain asso

ciated with customer bankruptcy settlement

Operating Income summary of operating income is shown below

Favorable Favorable

Unfavorable Unfavorable

in millionsi 2010 2009 Variance Change

North America

South America

Asia/Africa

Europe

Corporate expenses

Acquisition costs

Impaitment/

restructuring charges

Charge for fair value mark-up

of acquired inventory

Operating income

Operating income for 2010 increased to $339 million from

$153 million in 2009 Operating income for 2010 and 2009 include

impairment/restructLiring charges of $25 million and $125 million

respectively We also incurred $35 million of acquisition-related costs

in 2010 Additionally our current year results include the flow through

of $27 million of costs associated with acquired National Starch

inventory that was marked up to fair value at the acquisition date in

accordance with business combination accounting rules Without

the impairment restructuring inventory mark-up charge and acqui

sition-related costs operating income for 2010 would have grown

53 percent over the year ago period Approximately 15 percent of

this growth was attributable to earnings from the acquired National

Starch operations The remaining increase of 38 percent reflects

organic earnings growth in each of our regions principally
driven by

higher volume lower corn costs improved plant utilization rates

and favorable currency translation Currency translation associated

with stronger foreign currencies caused operating income to increase

by approximately $20 million from 2009 North America operating

income increased 41 percent to $249 million from $177 million

year ago Approximately one-third of this growth was attributable

to earnings from acquired operations The remaining increase was

primarily driven by organic volume growth lower corn costs and

improved plant utilization rates Currency translation associated

with the stronger Canadian dollar caused operating income to

increase by approximately $8 million in the region South America

operating income increased 18 percent to $163 million from $138 mil

lion in 2009 This increase primarily reflects improved earnings in

the Southern Cone of South America and Brazil driven by strong

volume growth and favorable currency translation Translation effects

associated with stronger South American currencies Iparticularly

the Brazilian Reall caused operating income to increase by approx

imately $11 million in the region Asia/Africa operating income more

than tripled to $62 million from $17 million year ago due in part

to earnings from acquired operations Without the earnings from

acquired operations operating income almost tripled reflecting

strong organic volume growth particularly in South Korea and

higher product selling prices Stronger foreign currencies caused

operating income to increase by approximately $1 million in the

region Europe operating income represents earnings from our oper

ations that were acquired as part of the National Starch acquisition

Provision for IncomeToxes Our effective income tax rate was

36.1 percent in 2010 as compared to 59.5 percent in 2009 Our

effective income tax rate for 2010 reflects the impacts of the National

Starch acquisition costs and the Chilean charges for impaired assets

and other related costs and an increase to the valuation allowance

for Chile Our effective income tax rate for 2009 reflects the tax

effect of the goodwill write-off and an increase to the valuation

allowance in Korea Without the impact of the impairment and

restructuring charges our effective income tax rate for 2010 and

2009 would have been approximately 33 percent and 35 percent

respectively See also Note of the notes to the consolidated

financial statements

$249

163

62

151

135

$117 72 41%

138 25 18% Financing Costs net Financing costs-net increased to $64 million

17 45 268% in 2010 from $38 million in 2009 This increase primarily reflects

NM $20 million charge for bridge loan financing costs recorded in the

154 Sta
third quarter of 2010 In connection with the acquisition of National

35 NM
Starch we had obtained bridge loan financing commitment of

$1.35 billion As result of our September 2010 sale of $900 mil

25 125 100 80%
lion aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes and the

127 27 NM entry into our new $1 billion revolving credit facility Isee also Liquidity

$339 $153 $186 122%
and Capital Resources sectionl we terminated the $1.35 billion

bridge term loan facility Fees associated with the bridge loan

totaling $20 million were expensed to financing costs in September

2010 Without this charge financing costs for 2010 would have

increased approximately 18 percent from the prior year period

primarily reflecting higher average borrowings due to the National

Starch acquisition and higher interest rates partially offset by

reduction in foreign currency transaction losses and an increase

in interest income driven by higher cash positions
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Net Income Attributable to Non-controlling Interests Net income The decrease in net sales reflects unfavorable currency translation

attributable to non-controlling interests increased to $7 million in

2010 from $6 million in 2009 The increase from 2009 mainly reflects

the effect of improved earnings from our operations in Pakistan

Comprehensive Income We recorded comprehensive income

of $287 million as compared with $327 million year ago The

decrease primarily reflects an unfavorable variance in the currency

translation adlustment and reduced gains on cash flow hedges

which more than offset our net income growth The unfavorable

variance in the currency translation adjustment reflects more

moderate strengthening in end of period foreign currencies rela

tive to the US dollar as compared to year ago when end of

period foreign currency appreciation was more significant

2009 Compared to 2008

Net Income attributable to CPI Net income attributable to CPI

for 2009 decreased 85 percent to $41 million or $0.54 per diluted

common share from 2008 net income of $267 million or $3.52 per

diluted common share Our results for 2009 include $125 million

charge $110 million after-tax or $1.47 per diluted common sharel

for impaired assets and restructuring costs that was recorded in

the second quarter of 2009 The charge consists of $119 million

write-off of goodwill pertaining to our operations in South Korea

$5 million write-off of impaired assets in North America and

$1 million charge for employee severance and related benefit costs

primarily attributable to the termination of employees in our Asia

Africa region See also Note of the notes to the consolidated

financial statements Our results for 2008 included $16 million of

expenses $11 million net of income taxes or $0.14 per diluted com

mon sharel related to the terminated merger with Bunge Limited

While the decrease in net income includes the impact of the

impairment and restructuring charges it also reflects significant

decline in operating income across all of our regions principally

driven by reduced co-product selling prices higher North American

corn costs foreign currency devaluations and lower sales volumes

Increased financing costs also contributed to the decline

Net Sales Net sales for 2009 decreased to $3.67 billion from

$3.94 billion in 2008 as sales declined in each of our regions

summary of net sales by geographic region is shown below

392

Total $3672

of percent attributable to weaker foreign currencies and percent

volume decline due to reduced demand attributable to the global

economic recession Price/product mix was relatively flat Co-product

sales of approximately $673 million for 2009 decreased 23 percent

from $871 million in 2008 driven primarily by lower pricing and to

lesser extent by reduced volume and foreign currency weakness

We expect improved co-product sales in 2010 driven by higher

market prices particularly for corn oil

Sales in North America decreased percent primarily due to

percent volume reduction
principally driven by weak demand

in the United States Price/product mix improvement of percent

was offset by percent decline attributable to currency transla

tion relating to weaker Canadian dollar Price/product mix improved

despite the unfavorable impact of approximately $114 million from

lower co-product selling prices Sales in South America decreased

10 percent primarily due to unfavorable currency translation attrib

utable to weaker SoLith American currencies which reduced sales

by approximately 10 percent Improved volume of percent driven

principally by increased shipments to the brewing industry was

offset by price/product mix decline of percent that was mainly

due to lower co-product values Sales in Asia/Africa decreased

14 percent reflecting an 11 percent decline attributable to currency

translation associated with weaker Asian/African currencies and

percent volume reduction due to lower demand Price/product

mix was up slightly

Cost of Sales Cost of sales for 2009 decreased percent to

$3.15 billion from $3.24 billion in 2008 The decrease principally

reflects reduced volume and currency translation Currency trans

lation attributable to the stronger US dollar caused cost of sales

for 2009 to decrease approximately percent from 2008 Gross

corn costs for 2009 were relatively unchanged from 2008 as

higher corn costs in North America were offset by reduced costs

in South America and the impact of currency translation associated

with weaker foreign currencies Energy costs for 2009 decreased

approximately percent from 2008 Our gross profit margin for

2009 was 14 percent compared to 18 percent in 2008 principally

reflecting reduced profitability and margins throughout our business

Selling General and Administrative Expenses SGA expenses

for 2009 were $247 million down from $276 million in 2008 This

decrease primarily reflects weaker foreign currencies and reduced

compensation-related costs Currency translation caused operating

expenses for 2009 to decrease approximately percent from

2008 reflecting the weaker foreign currencies Additionally bad

debt expense decreased $4 million from 2008 Our bad debt

expense was higher than normal in 2008 due to the global eco

nomic crisis We may be required to provide for additional credit

losses in the future should the global economy deteriorate in the

future SGA expenses for 2009 represented percent of net

sales consistent with 2008

un miiiionsu 2009 2008 Decrose

North America

South America

Asia/Africa

$2268 $2370

1012 1120

454

$3944

S102

1108

62

$12721

141%

1101%

141%

171%
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Other Income net Other income-net of $5 million for 2009

increased slightly
from other income-net of $4 million in 2008

Other income for 2009 includes various insurance and tax recoveries

approximating $2 million and $2 million gain from the sale of

land Other income for 2008 includes $16 million of costs pertaining

to the terminated Eunge merger Other income for 2008 also

includes various insurance and tax recoveries approximating $8 mil

lion and $5 million gain from the sale of land Fee and royalty

income of $1 million for 2009 declined $1 million from 2008

Operating Income summary of operating income is shown below

Favorable Favorahlg

Unfavorable Unfavorable

irn milliovvi 2009 2.000 Variance Change

North America

South America

Asia/Africa

Corporate expenses

tmpaimient/

restructuring charges

Costs of terminated merger

Operating income

177 $313 $11361 1441%

138 151 13 91%

17 38 211 561%

541 152 21 131%

1251 125 NM

116 16 NM

153 5434 $1281 651%

Operating income for 2009 decreased to $163 million from

$434 million in 2008 This decrease partially reflects the impact

of the $125 million impairment and restructuring charge that we

recorded in the second quarter of 2009 The 2008 results include

$16 million of expenses related to the terminated merger With

Bunge Without the impairment and restructuring charge for 2009

and the Bunge expenses for 2008 operating income would have

declined 38 percent to $278 million in 2009 from $450 million in

2008 as earnings declined across all of our regions CLirrency

translation caused operating income to decline by approximately

$25 million from 2008 reflecting weaker foreign currencies North

America operating income decreased 44 percent to $177 million

from $313 million in 2008 as earnings declined throughout the

region The decline primarily reflects lower co-product pricing

higher corn costs and reduced sales volumes attributable to the

weak economy Currency translation attributable to the weaker

Canadian dollar caused operating income to decline by approxi

mately $5 million in the region South America operating income

decreased percent to $138 million from $161 million in 2008

as translation effects associated with weaker South American

currencies caused operating income to decline by approximately

$16 million in the region Reduced product selling prices particularly

for co-products also contributed to the earnings decline in the

region Lower corn costs partially offset the unfavorable translation

impact of the weaker South American currencies and decreased

product selling prices in the region Asia/Africa operating income

decreased 56 percent to $17 million from $38 million in 2008 as

earnings declined throughout the region and most significantly in

South Korea and Pakistan These earnings declines primarily reflect

reduced sales volume attributable to the difficult economy and

government power rationing program in Pakistan higher corn

costs and weaker foreign currencies Currency translation attribut

able to weaker foreign currencies reduced operating income by

approximately $4 million in the region

Financing Costs-net Financing costs-net increased to $38 million

in 2009 from $29 million in 2008 The increase mainly reflects foreign

currency transaction losses end reduction in interest income

which more than offset decrease in interest expense driven by

lower interest rates Capitalized interest for 2009 was $7 million

as compared to $8 million in 2008

Provision for tncomeTaxes Our effective income tax rate was

69.5 percent in 2009 as compared to 32.0 percent in 2008 The

increase primarily reflects the tax effect of our goodwill write-off

and an increase to our valuation allowance in Korea in the second

quarter of 2009 Without the impact of the impairment and restruc

turing charges our effective income tax rate for 2009 would have

been approximately 35 percent See also Note of the notes to

the consolidated financial statements

Net Income Attributable to Non-controlling Interests Net income

attributable to non-controlling interests decreased to $6 million in

2009 from $8 million in 2008 The decrease from 2008 mainly

reflects the effect of lower earnings in Pakistan and China

Comprehensive Income Loss We recorded comprehensive

income of $327 million as compared with comprehensive loss

of $212 million in 2008 The increase primarily reflects the effects

of our corn and gas hedging contracts and favorable variances in

the currency translation adjustment which more than offset our

lower net income The favorable variances in the currency transla

tion adjustment reflect strengthening in end of period 2009

foreign currencies relative to the US dollar as compared to 2008

when end of period foreign currencies had weakened Stronger

end of period currencies in Brazil Canada Colombia and South

Korea accounted for most of the favorable translation variance
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31 2010 our total assets were $507 billion up

from $2.95 billion at December 31 2009 This increase primarily

reflects the National Starch acquisition Unreahzed gains on com

modity hedging contracts higher trade receivables driven by sales

growth increased inventories and translation effects associated

with stronger end of period foreign currencies relative to the US

dollar also contributed to the increase in total assets Total equity

increased to $2.00 billion at December 31 2010 from $1.70 billion

at December 31 2009 primarily reflecting our net income for 2010

and decrease in the accumulated other comprehensive loss due

to favorable foreign currency translation and deferred gains on our

commodity hedging contracts

On September 2010 we entered into new three-year senior

unsecured $1 billion revolving credit agreement the Revolving

Credit Agreementl This new credit facility replaced our previously

existing $500 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility
We

paid fees of approximately $8 million relating to the new credit facility

which are being amortized to interest expense over the three-year

term of the
facility

Subject to certain terms and conditions we may increase the

amount of the revolving credit
facility under the Revolving Credit

Agreement by up to $250 million in the aggregate All committed

pro rata borrowings under the revolving facility
will bear interest

at variable annual rate based on the LIBOR or base rate at our

election subject to the terms and conditions thereof plus in each

case an applicable margin based on our leverage ratio as reported

in the financial statements delivered pursuant to the Revolving

Credit Agreement

The Revolving Credit Agreement contains customary

representations warranties covenants events of default terms

and conditions including limitations on liens incurrence of debt

mergers and significant asset dispositions We must also comply

with leverage ratio and an interest coverage ratio covenant

The occurrence of an event of default under the Revolving Credit

Agreement could result in all loans and other obligations under

the agreement being declared due and payable and the revolving

credit facility being terminated

At December 31 2010 there were $275 million of borrowings

outstanding under our revolving credit facility In addition we have

number of short-term credit facilities consisting of operating lines

of credit At December 31 2010 we had total debt outstanding of

$1.77 billion compared to $544 million at December 31 2009 In

addition to the borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement

the debt includes $350 million principal amount of 3.2 percent

notes due 2015 $200 million of 6.0 percent senior notes due 2017

$200 million of 5.62 percent senior notes due 2020 $400 million

principal amountl of 4.625 percent notes due 2020 $250 million

principal amountl of 6.625 percent senior notes due 2037 and

$88 million of consolidated subsidiary debt consisting of local

country short-term borrowings Corn Products International as the

parent company guarantees certain obligations of its consolidated

subsidiaries At December 31 2010 such guarantees aggregated

$57 million Management believes that such consolidated sub

sidiaries will meet their financial obligations as they become due

Historically the principal source of our liquidity has been our

internally generated cash flow which we supplement as neces

sary with our ability to borrow on our bank lines and to raise funds

in the capital markets In addition to borrowing availability under

our Revolving Credit Agreement we also have approximately

$475 million of unused operating lines of credit in the various

foreign countries in which we operate

The weighted average interest rate on our total indebtedness

was approximately 5.5 percent and 5.3 percent for 2010 and 2009

respectively The weighted average interest rate for 2010 excludes

the $20 million of bridge loan fees charged to financing costs in 2010

Net Cash Flows

summary of operating cash flows is shown below

in miiiirnsi 2010 2009

Net income $176 47

Charge for fair value mark-up of acquired inventory 27

Bridge loan financing charge 20

Writeoff of impaired assets 19 124

Depreciation and amortization 155 130

Deferred income taxes 301

Stock option expense

Changes in working capital 45 257

Other 241 23

Cash provided by operations $394 $586

Cash provided by operations was $394 million in 2010 as

compared with $586 million in 2009 The decrease in operating

cash flow primarily reflects reduction in cash flow from working

capital activities The decline in cash flow from working capital

activities was driven
principally by $224 million year over year

change in our margin accounts related to corn futures and option

contracts To manage price risk related to corn purchases in North

America we use derivative instruments corn futures and options

contractsl to lock in our corn costs associated with firm-priced

customer sales contracts We are unable to hedge price risk related

to co-product sales As the market price of corn fluctuates our
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derivative instruments change in value and we fund any unrealized

losses or receive cash for any unrealized gains related to outstanding

corn futures and option contracts Due to the substantial change

in the market price of corn in 2008 we were required to fund

significant losses associated with our derivative instruments

particularly during the second half of 2008 As expected these

cash payments were recovered in 2009 when the related corn

vvas used in our manufacturing process and we collected the pro

ceeds trom the sales of our products to our customers In 2010

margin account activity was lower
reflecting less volatile commodity

prices than in 2009/2008 We plan to continue to use corn futures

and option contracts to hedge the price risk associated with firm-

priced customer sales contracts in our North American business

and accordingly we will be required to make or he entitled to receive

cash deposits for margin calls depending on the movement in the

market price for corn

Listed below is our primary investing and financing activities

for 2010

in millions Sources Uses of Cash

Acquisition of National Starch $11354

Capital expenditures 1591

Proceeds from borrowings 1289

Payments on debt 77
Dividends paid including dividends of $3

SACS.......... S.

In connection with the acquisition of National Starch on

September 17 2010 we issued and sold $900 million aggregate

principal amount of senior unsecured notes the Notes as follows

Premium

Priocioul IDiscountiin millions

3.2% notes due November 2015 $350 $11 $349

4.625% notes due November 2020 400 399

6.625% notes dun April 15 2037 150 158

$900 $6 $906

We paid debt issuance costs of approximately $7 million relating

to the Notes which will be amortized to interest expense over the

lives of the respective notes Additionally the premium and discounts

on the Notes will be amortized to interest expense over the lives

of the respective notes

Interest on the 3.2 percent notes and the 4.625 percent notes

is required to be paid semi-annually on May 1st and November 1st

commencing May 2011 Interest on the 6.625 percent notes is

required to be paid semi-annually on April 5th and October 15th

commencing October 15 2010

The Notes are redeemable in whole af any time or in part

from time to time at our option See Note of the notes to the

consolidated financial statements for additional information regard

ing the Notes

As result of the sale of the Notes and the completion of the

new revolving credit facility we terminated the $1.35 billion bridge

term loan facility that we had previously arranged Fees associated

with the bridge loan totaling $20 million were expensed to financing

costs in September 2010

We had an agreement with certain common stockholders

collectively the holderl relating to 500000 shares of our com

mon stock that provided the holder with the right to require us

to repurchase those common shares for cash at price equal to

the average of the closing per share market price of our common

stock for the 20 trading days immediately preceding the date that

the holder exercised the put option This put option was exercisable

at any time until January 2010 when it expired The shares asso

ciated with the put option were classified as redeemable common

stock in our consolidated balance sheet prior to the expiration of

the put option The carrying value of the redeemable common

stock was $14 million at December 31 2009 Effective with the

expiration of the agreement we discontinued reporting the shares

as redeemable common stock and reclassified the $14 million from

redeemable common stock to additional paid-in capital

On November 17 2010 our Board of Directors declared

qLiarterly cash dividend of $0.14 per share of common stock The

cash dividend was paid on January 25 2011 to stockholders of record

at the close of business on December 31 2010

We currently anticipate that capital expenditures for 2011 will

he in the range of $280 million to $300 million

Selling
We currently expect that our future operating cash flows and

borrowing availability under our credit facilities will provide us with

sufficient liquidity to fund our anticipated capital expenditures

dividends and other investing and/or financing strategies for the

foreseeable future

Hedging

We are exposed to market risk stemming from changes in

commodity prices foreign currency exchange rates and interest

rates In the normal course of business we actively manage our

exposure to these market risks by entering into various hedging

transactions authorized under established policies that place clear

controls on these activities These transactions utilize exchange

traded derivatives or over-the-counter derivatives with investment

grade counterparties Our hedging transactions may include but
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are not limited to variety of denvative financial instruments such

as commodity futures options and swap contracts forward cur

rency contracts and options interest rate swap agreements and

treasury lock agreements See Note of the notes to the consoli

dated financial statements for additional information

Commodity Price Risk We use derivatives to manage price risk

related to purchases of corn and natural gas used in the manufac

turing process We periodically enter into futures options and swap

contracts for portion of our anticipated corn and natural gas usage

generally over the following twelve to eighteen months in order

to hedge price risk associated with fluctuations in market prices

These derivative instruments are recognized at fair value and have

effectively reduced our exposure to changes in market prices for

these commodities We are unable to hedge price risk related to

co-product sales Unrealized gains and losses associated with

marking our commodities-based derivative instruments to market

are recorded as component of other comprehensive income

10011 At December 31 2010 our accumulated other compre

hensive loss account AOCI included $54 million of gains net

of tax of $32 million related to these derivative instruments It

is anticipated that approximately $53 million of these gains net

of tax will be reclassified into earnings during the next twelve

months We expect the gains to be offset by changes in the

underlying commodities cost

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk Due to our global operations

we are exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates

As result we have exposure to translational foreign exchange

risk when our foreign operation results are translated to US dollars

1USD and to transactional foreign exchange risk when transactions

not denominated in the functional currency of the operating unit

are revalued We primarily use foreign currency forward contracts

swaps and options to selectively hedge our foreign currency trans

actional exposures We generally hedge these exposures up to

twelve months forward As of December 31 2010 we had $41 mil

lion of net notional foreign currency forward contracts that hedged

net asset transactional exposures

Interest Rate Risk We are exposed to interest rate volatility with

regard to future issuances of fixed-rate debt and existing and future

issuances of variable-rate debt Primary exposures include US

Treasury rates LIBOR and local short-term borrowing rates We

use interest rate swaps and Treasury Lock agreements from time

to time to hedge our exposure to interest rate changes to reduce

the
volatility

of our financing costs or to achieve desired propor

tion of fixed versus floating rate debt based on current and projected

market conditions At December 31 2010 we did not have any

interest rate swaps or Treasury Lock agreements outstanding

In conjunction with plan to issue the 5.62 percent Senior

Series Notes and in order to manage exposure to variability in

the benchmark interest rate on which the fixed interest rate of

the Senior Series Notes would be based we had previously

entered into Treasury Lock agreement the T-Lock with respect

to $50 million of these borrowings The T-Lock was designated

as hedge of the variability in cash flows associated with future

interest payments caused by market fluctuations in the benchmark

interest rate between the time the I-Lock was entered and the

time the debt was priced It is accounted for as cash flow hedge

The T-Lock expired on April 30 2009 and we paid approximately

$6 million representing the losses on thaT-Lock to settle the

agreement The losses are included in AOCI in the equity section

of our balance sheet and are being amortized to financing costs

over the ten-year term of the Senior Series Notes See also

Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements for

additional information

In conjunction with plan to issue the 3.2 percent Senior Notes

due November 2015 the 2015 Notes and the 4.626 percent

Senior Notes due November 2020 the 2020 Notes and in

order to manage our exposure to variability in the benchmark inter

est rates on which the fixed interest rates of these notes would

be based we entered into T-Lock agreements with respect to

$300 million of the 201S Notes and $300 million of the 2020 Notes

the I-Locks The T-Locks were designated as hedges of the

variability in cash flows associated with future interest payments

caused by market fluctuations in the benchmark interest rate

between the time the I-Locks were entered and the time the debt

was priced The T-Locks are accounted for as cash flow hedges

The I-Locks were terminated on September 15 2010 and we paid

approximately $15 million representing the losses on the T-Locks

to settle the agreements The losses are included in AOCI and are

being amortized to financing costs over the terms of the 2015 and

2020 Notes See also Note of the notes to the consolidated

financial statements for additional information

At December 31 2010 our accumulated other comprehensive

loss account included $14 million of losses net of tax of $9 million

related to Treasury Lock agreements It is anticipated that $2 million

of these losses net of tax of $1 million will be reclassified into

earnings during the next twelve months
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Contractual Obligations and Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The table below summarizes our significant contractual obligations

as of December 31 2010 Information included in the table is

cross-referenced to the notes to the consolidated financial state

ments elsewhere in this report as applicable

in trillions Payments due by period

Contractual Note Less than More than

Obligations reference Total year years years years

Long-term debt $1675 $275 $350 $1050

Interest on

long-term debt 883 76 151 139 517

Operating lease

obligations 196 38 58 40 60

Pension and other

postretirement

obligations 537 29 59 61 388

Purchase

obligationst 968 258 190 102 418

Total $4259 $401 $733 $692 $2433

tThe purchase ubhgatiueo relate principally to power supply agreements including take or

ray energy supply cuntractu which holy to p1 uvtde us with an adequate power supply at

certuis of out facirliet

The above table dueu trot reflect urrrecoguiued itrcoltre too betrefits of 529 nilliott tim tirrrilrq

of winch is urrcetlainr See Note of tIre totes to the consolidated finorrcitri staterrrenrtn ion

additional inion muniort witir respect to unrocuçjsiortd intcorrrr too hntrolits

On January 20 2006 Corn Products Brazil CPO Brazil

entered into Natural Gas Purchase and Sale Agreement lthe

Agreement with Companhia de Gas de Sao Paulo Comgas

lComgasl Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement Comgas

supplies natural gas to the cogeneration facility at GPO Brazils

Mogi Guacu plant This Agreement will expire on March 31 2023

unless extended or terminated under certain conditions specified

in the Agreement During the term of the Agreement CPO Brazil

is obligated to purchase from Comgas and Comgas is obligated to

provide to CPO Brazil certain minimum quantities of natural gas

that are specified in the Agreement The price for such quantities

of natural gas is determined pursuant to formula set forth in the

Agreement The price may vary based upon gas commodity cost

and transportation costs which are adjLlsted annually the distribu

tion margin which is set by the Brazilian Commission of Public Energy

Services and the fluctuation of exchange rates between the US

dollar and the Brazilian real We estimate that the total minimum

expenditures by CPO Brazil through the remaining term of the

Agreement will be approximately $228 million based on current

exchange rates as of December 31 2010 and estimates regarding

the application of the formula set forth in the Agreement spread

evenly over the remaining term of the Agreement These amounts

are included in the purchase obligations disclosed in the table above

See also Note 10 of the notes to the consolidated financial state

ments for additional information

We currently anticipate that in 2011 we will make cash

contributions of $8 million and $11 million to our US and non-US

pension plans respectively See Note of the notes to the consol

idated financial statements for further informytion with respect to

our pension and postretirement benefit plans

Key Performance Metrics

We use certain key metrics to monitor our progress towards

achIeving our long-term strategic business oblectives These metrics

relate to our return on capital employed our financial leverage and

our management of working capital each of which is tracked on an

ongoing basis We assess whether we are achieving an adequate

return on invested capital by measuring our Return on Capital

Employed ROCEl against our cost of capital We monitor our

financial leverage by regularly reviewing our ratio of debt to earnings

before interest taxes depreciation end amortization Debt to

Adjusted EBITDA and our Debt to Capitalization percentage to

assure that we are properly financed We ass ess our level of work

ing capital investment by evaluating our Operating Working Capital

as percentage of Net Sales We believe the use of these metrics

enables us to better run our business and is useful to investors

As previously mentioned we acquired National Starch on

October 2010 for $1354 billion in cash most of which was

provided by long-term financing Since our year-end 2010 consoli

dated income statement includes the operating results of National

Starch for only three months yet our consolidated balance sheet

reflects the full amount of the new debt certain of our metric

calculations for 2010 are adversely impacted

The metrics below include certain information linciuding Capital

Employed Adjusted Operating Income Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted

Current Assets Adjusted Current Liabilities and Operating Working

Capital that is not calculated in accordance with Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles GAAPl Management uses non-GAAP

financial measures internally for strategic decision making fore

casting future results and evaluating current performance By

disclosing non-GAAP financial measures management intends to

provide more meaningful consistent comparison of our operating

results and trends for the periods presented These non-GAAP

financial measures are used in addition to and in conjunction with

results presented in accordance with GAAP and reflect an additional

way of viewing aspects of our operations that when viewed with

our GAAP results provide more complete understanding of factors

and trends affecting our business.These non-GAAP measures should

be considered as supplement to and not as substitute for or

superior to the corresponding measures calculated in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles
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Return on Capital Employed

lrlcIlur in millions

Total equity5 $1704 $1406

Add

Cumulative translation adjustment5 228 363

Redeemable common stock 14 14

Share-based payments subject to redemption 11

Total debt 544 866

Less

Cash and cash equivalents5 175 107

Capital employed $2323 $2553

Operating income 339 153

Adjusted for

Acquisition costs 35

Impairment and restructuring charges 25 125

Charge for fair value mark-up of acquired inventory 27

Adjusted operating income 426 278

Income taxes at effective tax rates of 33.1% in 2010

and 34.6% in 2009 141 96

Adjusted operating income net of tax 285 182

Return on capital employed 12.3% 7.1%

Balance sheet amounts used iv computing capital employed represent beginning of period

balances

Thy effective income tao rate for 2010 and 2009 esclude the impacts of acquisitiorr costs and

impairment and restructuring charges Including these charges the Companys effective

income toe rate for 2010 and 2009 were 361 percent and 69.5 percent respectively Listed

below is sciredule that reconciles our effective income tan rateo under US GAAS to tire

adjusted irrcorrre tas rates

As reported $276 $116 99 $68 36.1% 69.6%

Add tack

Acquisition cuutn 36

Impairment

restructuring clrorges 26 126 16

Adjusted-nun.GAAP 6335 $240 Sill $83 33.1% 34.6%

Debt to Adjusted EBITDA Ratio

dollars in millivnsl

Non-GAAP financial measures are not prepared in accordance

with GAAP therefore the information is not necessarily compara

ble to other companies reconciliation of non-GAAP historical

fInancial measures to the most comparable GAAP measure is

provided in the tables below

Our calculations of these key metrics for 2010 with comparisons

to the prior year are as follows

2010 2009

2010 2009

Short-term debt 88 $136

Long-term debt 1681 408

Total debt $1769 $544

Net income attributable to CPI 169 41

Add back

Acquisition costs 35

Impairment and restructuring charges 25 125

Charge for fair value mark-up of acquired inventory 27

Net income attributable to non-controlling interest

Provision for income taxes 99 68

Interest expense net of interest income of $6 and

$1 respectively 62 32

Depreciation and amortization 155 130

Adjusted EBITDA 579 $402

Debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio bl 3.1 1.3

Debt to Capitalization Percentage

dollars in millions 2010 2009

Short-term debt 88 136

Long-term debt 1681 408

Total debt $1769 644

Deferred income tax liabilities 249 111

Redeemable common stock 14

Share-based payments subject to redemption

Total equity 2002 1704

Total capital $2259 $1837

Total debt and capital $4028 $2381

Debt to capitalization percentage 43.9% 22.8%

Operating Working Capital as Percentage of Net Sales

dollars iv millions 2010 2009

Current assets $1753 $1045

Less

lrrcnrxre before Provision for Effective lrrcvrre

Cash and cash equivalents 302 175
lncomeTanns In lnuerrreTaueslb Tan Rote baI Deferred income tax assets 118 23

2010 2009 2010 2005 2010 2009

Adjusted current assets $1433 847

Current liabilities 891 669

Less Short-term debt 88 136

Deferred income tax liabilities 12

Adjusted curcent liabilities 791 420

Operating working capital 642 427

Net sales $4367 $3672

Operating working capital as

percentage of net sales 14.7% 11.6%
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Commentary on Key Performance Metrics

In accordance with our long-term objectives we set certain goals

relating to these key performance metrics that we strive to meet

As previously mentioned the timing of the National Starch acquisi

hon adversely impacted certain of our metric calculations for 2010

as described below Looking forward as we benefit from full

year of results from the acquired operations grow our business

and reduce indebtedness we believe that we can achieve our

metric targets in the foreseeable future However no assurance

can be given that these goals will be attained and various factors

could affect our ability to achieve not only these goals but to also

continue to meet our other performance metric targets See Item 1A

Risk Factors and Item 7A Quantitative rind Qualitative Disclosures

About Market Risk The objectives set out below reflect our current

aspirations in light of our present plans and existing circumstances

We may change these objectives from time to time in the future

to address new opportunities or changing circumstances as appro

priate to meet our long-term needs and those of our shareholders

Return on Capital Employed Our long-term goal is to achieve

Return on Capital Employed in excess of 8.5 percent In deter

mining this performance metric the negative cumulative translation

adjustment is added back to total eqLnty to calculate returns based

on the Companys original investment costs Our ROCE for 2010

increased to 12.3 percertt from 71 percent in 2009 principally driven

by our operating income growth Additionally reduced capital

employed base and slightly lower effective income tax rate for

2010 contributed to the ROCE improvement The capital employed

base used in our 2010 ROCE computation decreased $230 million

from the
prior year Our effective income tax rate for 2010 excluding

the impact of acquisition costs and impairment and restructuring

charges was 33.1 percent down from 34.6 percent in 2009

Including acquisition-related costs impairment and restructuring

charges and our actual effective income tax rate our ROCE for

2010 was 9.3 percent as compared with 2.4 percent in 2009

Debt to Adjusted EBITDA Ratio Our long-term objective is to

maintain ratio of debt to adjusted EBITDA of less than 2.25

As result of the debt we incurred to finance the acquisition of

National Starch this ratio rose to 3.1 at December 31 2010 from

1.3 at December 31 2009 We expect to lower this ratio to level

consistent with our long-term objective as our earnings grow in

2011 rind we reduce our indebtedness

Debt to Capitalization Percentage Our longterm goal is to

maintain Debt to Capitalization percentage in the range of 32

to 35 percent At December 31 2010 our Debt to Capitalization

percentage was 43.9 percent up from very low 22.8 percent

year ago primarily reflecting the debt we incurred to finance the

acquisition of National Starch We are focused on lowering this

ratio to our targeted range by growing our earnings and redLicing

indebtedness over time

Operating Working Capital as percentage of Net Sales Our

long-term goal is to maintain operating working capital in range

of to 10 percent of our net sales At December 31 2010 the

metric was 14.7 percent up from the 11.6 percent of year ago

primarily reflecting the impact of the National Starch acquisition

Because our net sales include only three months of sales from

the acquired operations as opposed to full yearl this metric is

higher than it would have otherwise been The increase in the metric

also reflects higher working capital at our historical operations that

more than offset the impact of our organic sales growth We will

continLie to focus on managing our working capital in 2011

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America The preparation of these financial state

ments requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues

and expenses during the reporting period Actual results may differ

from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions

We have identified below the most critical accounting policies

upon which the financial statements are based and that involve

our most complex and subjective decisions and assessments Our

senior management has discussed the development selection and

disclosure of these policies with members of the Audit Committee

of our Board of Directors These accounting policies are provided

in the notes to the consolidated financial statements The discussion

that follows should be read in conlunction with the consolidated

financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Long-lived Assets We have substantial investments in property

plant and equipment and goodwill For property plant and equip

ment we recognize the cost of depreciable assets in operations

over the estimated useful life of the assets and we evaluate the
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recoverability of these assets whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may

not be recoverable For goodwill we perform an annual impairment

assessment or more frequently if impairment indicators arise

We have chosen to perform this annual impairment assessment

in September of each year An impairment loss could be recog

nized in operating earnings if the fair value of goodwill or property

plant and equipment is less than its carrying amount For long-lived

assets we test for recoverability whenever events or circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

In analyzing the fair value of goodwill and assessing the

recoverability of the carrying value of property plant and equip

ment we have to make projections regarding future cash flows

In developing these projections we make variety of important

assumptions and estimates that have significant impact on our

assessments of whether the carrying values of goodwill and prop

erty plant and equipment should be adjusted to reflect impairment

Among these are assumptions and estimates about the future

growth and profitability of the related business unit anticipated

future economic regulatory and political conditions in the busi

ness units market the appropriate discount rates relative to the

risk profile of the unit or assets being evaluated and estimates

of terminal or disposal values

Due to devastating earthquake in February 2010 our plant in

Llay-LIay Chile suffered significant damage In the second quarter

of 2010 we determined that the carrying amount of significant

portion of the plant and equipment exceeded its fair value and

therefore these assets were impaired As result we recorded

$24 million charge for impaired assets and other related costs

We also wrote off $119 million of goodwill related to our South

Korean operations in the second quarter of 2009

As we integrate National Starch we will address whether there

is need to consolidate manufacturing facilities or redeploy assets

to areas where we can expect to achieve higher return on our

investment This review may result in the closing or selling of certain

of our 37 manufactLiring facilities The closing or selling of any of the

facilities could have
significant negative impact on the results of

operations in the year that the closing or selling of facility occurs

Even though it was determined that there was no additional

long-lived asset impairment as of December 31 2010 the future

occurrence of potential indicator of impairment such as signifi

cant adverse change in the business climate that would require

change in our assumptions or strategic decisions made in response

to economic or competitive conditions could require us to perform

an assessment prior to the next required assessment date of

December 31 2011

IncomeTaxes We use the asset and liability method of accounting

for income taxes This method recognizes the expected future tax

consequences of temporary differences between book and tax

bases of assets and liabilities and provides valuation allowance

when deferred tax assets are not more likely than not to be realized

We have considered forecasted earnings future taxable income

the mix of earnings in the jurisdictions in which we operate and

prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in determining the

need for valuation allowance In the event we were to determine

that we would not be able to realize all or part of our net deferred

tax assets in the future we would increase the valuation allowance

and make corresponding charge to earnings in the period in which

we make such determination Likewise if we later determine that

we are more likely than not to realize the net deferred tax assets

we would reverse the applicable portion of the previously provided

valuation allowance At December 31 2010 the Company main

tained valuation allowance of $29 million against certain foreign

tax credits and foreign net operating losses that management has

determined will more likely than not expire prior to realization The

valuation allowance at December 31 2010 with respect to foreign

tax credit carry-forwards decreased to $4 million from $15 million

at December 31 2009 The valuation allowance with respect to

foreign net operating losses increased to $25 million at December 31

2010 from $20 million at December 31 2009

We are regularly audited by various taxing authorities and

sometimes these audits result in proposed assessments where

the ultimate resolution may result in us owing additional taxes

VVe establish reserves when despite our belief that our tax return

positions are appropriate and supportable under local tax law we

believe there is uncertainty with respect to certain positions and

we may not succeed in realizing the tax benefit We evaluate these

unrecognized tax benefits and related reserves each quarter and

adjust the reserves and the related interest and penalties in light

of changing facts and circumstances regarding the probability of

realizing tax benefits such as the settlement of tax audit or the

expiration of statute of limitations We believe the estimates and

assumptions used to support our evaluation of tax benefit realiza

tion are reasonable However final determinations of prior-year tax

liabilities either by settlement with tax authorities or expiration of

statutes of limitations could be materially different than estimates

reflected in assets and liabilities and historical income tax provisions

The outcome of those final determinations could have material

effect on our income tax provision net income or cash flows in

the period in which that determination is made We believe our

tax positions comply with applicable tax law and that we have

adequately provided for any known tax contingencies
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No taxes hove been provided on undistrihuted foreign earnings

that are planned to be indefinitely reinvested If future events

including changes in tax law material changes in estimates of cash

working capital and long-term investment requirements necessi

tate that these earnings be distributed an additional provision for

withholding taxes may apply which could materially affect our

future etfective tax rate

Retirement Benefits We sponsor non-contributory defined benefit

plans covering substantially all employees in the United States and

Canada and certain employees in other foreign countries We also

provide healthcare and life insurance benefits for retired employees

in the United States and Canada.The net periodic pension and

postretirornent benefit cost was $18 million in 2010 and $16 million

in 2009.The Company estimates that net periodic pension and

postretirement benefit expense for 2011 will include approximately

$6 million relating to the amortization of its accumulated actuarial

loss and prior service cost included in accumulated other comprehen

sive loss at December 31 2010 In order to measure the expense

and obligations associated with these retirement benefits our

management must make variety of estimates and assumptions

including discount rates used to value certain liabilities expected

return on plan assets set aside to fund these obligations rate of

compensation increase employee turnover rates retirement rates

mortality rates and other factors These estimates and assumptions

are based on our historical experience along with our knowledge

and understanding of current facts trends and circumstances We

use third-party specialists to assist management in evaluating our

assumptions and estimates as well as to appropriately measure

the costs and obligations associated with our retirement benefit

plans Had we used different estimates and assumptions with

respect to these plans our retirement benefit obligations and

related expense could vary from the actual amounts recorded and

such differences could be material Additionally adverse changes

in investment returns earned on pension assets and discount rates

used to calculate pension and related liabilities or changes in

required pension funding levels may have an unfavorable impact

on future pension expense and cash flow See also Note of

the notes to the consolidated financial statements

New Accounting Standards

In January 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2010-06 Improving

Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements The Update requires

entities to disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers

in and out of Level and Level fair value measurements and

describe the reasons for the transfers In addition the Update

requires entities to present separately information about purchases

sales issuances and settlements in the reconciliation for fair value

measurements using significant unobservable inputs Level

The disclosures related to Level and Level fair value measure

ments are effective for interim end annual periods beginning after

December 15 2009 The disclosures related to Level fair value

measurements are effective for interim and annual periods beginning

after December 15 2010 The Update requires new disclosures

only and will have no impact on our consolidated financial position

results of operation or cash flows

In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-28 Intangibles

Goodwill and Other When to Perform Step of the Goodwill

Impairment Test for Reporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying

Amounts to modify Step of the goodwill impairment test for

reporting units having carrying value of zero or less.The Update

requires an entity having such reporting unit to assess whether

it is more likely than not that the reporting units goodwill is impaired

If the entity determines that it is more likely
than not that the

goodwill of such reporting unit is impaired the entity should

perform Step of the goodwill impairment test for that reporting

unit Any resulting goodwill impairment should be recorded as

cumulative-effect adjustment to beginning retained earnings in the

period of adoption Any goodwill impairments occurring after the

initial adoption of the guidance in this Update should be included in

earnings.The Update is effective for fiscal years and interim periods

within those years beginning after December 15 2010 The adoption

of the guidance contained in this Update is not expected to have

material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-29 DisclosUre

of Supplementary Pro Forma Information for Business Combinations

to address diversity in practice regarding the presentation of pro

forma revenue and earnings disclosures pertaining to business

combinations The Update requires that entities present combined

pro forma disclosures for business combinations consummated

in the current year as if the business combination occurred at

the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period

Additionally the Update requires description of the nature and

amount of material nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly

attributable to the business combination included in the reported

pro forma revenue and earnings.The Update is effective prospec

tively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is

on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period begin

ning on or after December 15 2010 The implementation of the

guidance in this Update affects future disclosures only and will

not impact on our consolidated financial position results of

operation or cash flows
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Forward Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains or may contain forward-looking statements

within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933

as amended and Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended The Company intends these forward-looking

statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for such

statements These statements include among other things any

predictions regarding the Companys prospects or future financial

condition earnings revenues tax rates capital expenditures

expenses or other financial items any statements concerning

the Companys prospects or future operations including manage

ments plans or strategies and objectives therefor and any

assumptions expectations or beliefs underlying the foregoing

These statements can sometimes be identified by the use of

forward looking words such as may will7 should anticipate

believe plan project estimate expect intend continue

pro forma forecast or other similar expressions or the nega

tive thereof All statements other their statements of historical

facts in this report or referred to in or incorporated by reference

into this report are forward-looking statements These statements

are based on current expectations but are subject to certain inher

ent risks and uncertainties many of which are difficult to predict

and are beyond our control Although we believe our expectations

reflected in these forward-looking statements are based on reason

able assumptions stockholders are cautioned that no assurance

can he given that our expectations will prove correct Actual results

and developments nay differ materially from the expectations

expressed in or implied by these statements based on various

factors including the effects of global economic conditions and

their impact on our sales volumes and
pricing

of our products our

ability to collect our receivables from customers and our ability to

raise funds at reasonable rates fluctuations in worldwide markets

for corn and other commodities and the associated risks of hedg

ing against such fluctuations fluctuations in the markets and prices

for our co-products particularly corn oil fluctuations in aggregate

indListry supply and market demand the behavior of financial

markets including foreign currency fluctuations and fluctuations

in interest and exchange rates continued volatility and turmoil in

the capital markets the commercial and consumer credit environ

ment general political economic business market and weather

conditions in the various geographic regions and countries in which

we manufacture and/or sell our products future financial performance

of major industries which we serve including without limitation

the food and beverage pharmaceuticals paper corrugated textile

and brewing industries energy costs and availability freight and

shipping costs and changes in regulatory controls regarding quotas

tariffs duties taxes and income tax rates operating difficulties

boiler reliability our ability to effectively integrate and operate

acquired businesses including National Starch labor disputes

genetic and biotechnology issues changing consumption prefer

ences and trends increased competitive and/or customer pressure

in the corn-refining industry and the outbreak or continuation

of serious communicable disease or hostilities including acts of

terrorism Our forward-looking statements speak only as of the

date on which they are made and we do not undertake any obliga

tion to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or

circumstances after the date of the statement as result of new

information or future events or developments If we do update

or correct one or more of these statements investors and others

should not conclude that we will make additional updates or correc

tions For further description of these and other risks see Item A-

Risk Factors above and sLibsequent reports on Forms 10-0 and 8-K

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE

DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Exposure Approximately 79 percent of our borrowings

at December 31 2010 are fixed rate bonds and loans Interest on

the remaining 21 percent of our borrowings is subject to change

based on changes in short-term rates which could affect our interest

costs See also Note of the notes to the consolidated financial

statements entitled Financing Arrangements for further informa

tion hypothetical increase of percentage point in the weighted

average floating interest rate for 2010 would have increased our

interest expense and reduced our pretax income for 2010 by

approximately $2 million

At December 2010 and 2009 the carrying and fair values

of long-term debt were as follows

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

in miii ions amount value amount value

4.625% senior notes

due November 2020

3.2% senior notes

due November 2015

6.625% senior notes

due April 15 2037

6.0% senior notes

due April 15 2017

5.62% senior notes

due March 25 2020

US revolving credit facility

due September 2013

US revolving credit facility

replaced September 2010

Total long-tenn debt

109 109

$1681 $1707 $408 $407

2010 2009

$399 $393

349 351

258 262 99 94

200 214 200 204

200 212

275 275
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In conjunction with plan to issue the 5.62 percent Senior

Series Notes and in order to manage exposure to variability

in the benchmark interest rate on which the fixed interest rate

of the Senior Series Notes would he based we had previously

entered into aTreasury Lock agreement the T-Lockl with respect

to $50 million of these borrowings TheT-Lock was designated

as hedge of the variability in cash flows associated with future

interest payments caused by market fluctuations in the benchmark

interest rate between the time the T-Lock was entered and the

time the debt was priced It is accounted for as cash flow hedge

The T-Lock expired on April 30 2009 and we paid approximately

$6 million representing the losses on the T-Lock to settle the

agreement The losses are included in the accumulated other

comprehensive loss account lAOCIl in the equity section of

our balance sheet and are being amortized to financing costs over

the ten-year term of the Senior Series Notes

In conjunction with plan to issue the 3.2 percent Senior

Notes due November 2015 the 2015 Notes and the 4.625

percent Senior Notes due November 2020 the 2020 Notes

and in order to manage our exposure to variability in the bench

mark interest rates on which the fixed interest rates of these

notes would be based we entered into T-Lock agreements with

respect to $300 million of the 2015 Notes and $300 million of

the 2020 Notes the TLocksl The TLocks were designated as

hedges of the variability in cash flows associated with future inter

est payments caused by market fluctuations in the benchmark

interest rate between the time the TLocks were entered and the

time the debt was priced The T-Locks are accounted for as cash

flow hedges.TheT-Locks were terminated on September 15 2010

and we paid approximately $15 million representing the losses on

the T-Locks to settle the agreements The losses are inclLided in

AOCI and are being amortized to financing costs over the terms

of the 2015 and 2020 Notes

Commodity Costs Our finished products are made primarily

from corn in North America we sell large portion of finished

products at firm prices established in supply contracts typically

lasting for periods of up to one year In order to minimize the

effect of volatility in the cost of corn related to these firm-priced

supply contracts we enter into corn futures contracts or take

other hedging positions in the corn futures market These con

tracts typically mature within one year At expiration we settle

the derivative contracts at net amount equal to the difference

between the then-current price of corn and the futures contract

price While these hedging instruments are subject to fluctuations

in value changes in the value of the underlying exposures we are

hedging generally offset such fluctuations While the corn futures

contracts or other hedging positions are intended to minimize the

volatility of corn costs on operating profits occasionally the hedging

activity can result in losses some of which may be material Outside

of North America sales of finished products under long-term

firm-priced supply contracts are not material

Energy costs represent significant portion of our operating

costs The primary use of energy is to create steam in the produc

tion process and to dry product We consume coal natural gas

electricity wood and fuel oil to generate energy The market prices

for these commodities vary depending on supply and demand

world economies and other factors We purchase these commodi

ties based on our anticipated usage and the future outlook for

these costs We cannot assure that we will he able to Purchase

these commodities at prices that we can adequately pass on to

customers to sustain or increase profitability We use derivative

financial instruments to hedge portions of our natural gas costs

primarily in our North American operations

Our commodity price hedging instruments generally relate to

contracted firm-priced business Based on our overall commodity

hedge exposure at December 31 2010 hypothetical 10 percent

decline in market prices applied to the fair value of the instruments

would result in charge to other comprehensive income of approxi

mately $41 million net of income tax benefit It should be noted

that any change in the fair value of the contracts real or hypotheti

cal would be substantially offset by an inverse change in the value

of the underlying hedged item

Foreign Currencies Due to our global operations we are exposed

to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates As result

we have exposure to translational foreign exchange risk when our

foreign operation results are translated to USD and to transactional

foreign exchange risk when transactions not denominated In the

functional currency of the operating unit are revalued We selectively

use derivative instruments such as forward contracts currency

swaps and options to manage transactional foreign exchange risk

Based on our overall foreign currency transactional exposure at

December 31 2010 hypothetical 10 percent decline in the valLie

of the USD would have resulted in transactional foreign exchange

loss of approximately $8 million At December 31 2010 our accu

mulated other comprehensive loss accoLint included in the equity

section of our consolidated balance sheet includes cumulative

translation loss of $180 million The aggregate net assets of our

foreign subsidiaries where the local currency is the functional

currency approximated $1.5 billion at December 31 2010 hypo

thetical 10 percent decline in the value of the US dollar relative

to foreign currencies would have resulted in reduction to our

cumulative translation loss and credit to other comprehensive

income of approximately $166 million

28 CORN PRODUCTS iNTERNATiONAL



ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Corn Products International Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of Corn Products International Inc and subsidiaries the

Company as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related

consolidated statements of income comprehensive income

equity and redeemable equity and cash flows for each of the

years in the three-year period ended December 31 2010 We also

have audited the Companys internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ICOSO
The Companys management is responsible for these consolidated

financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over

financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting itciudod in the accompa

nying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Companys

internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state

ments are tree of material misstatement and whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all mate

riel respects Our audits of the consolidated financial statements

included examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management and evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over finan

cial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness

of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also

included performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles companys internal control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that Ill pertain to

the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of

the company 12 provide reasonable assurance that transactions

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial state

ments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors

of the company and 13 provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material

effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial

reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness to fLiture periods are subject to

the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes

in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred

to above present fairly in all material respects the financial posi

tion of Corn ProdLicts International Inc and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations

and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period

ended December 31 2010 in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the Company

maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on criteria

established in lntental Control Integrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission ICOSO

The scope of managements assessment of internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 includes all of the

subsidiaries of Corn Products International Inc except for National

Starch which was acquired on October 2010 The consolidated

net sales of Corn Products International Inc and subsidiaries for

the year ended December 31 2010 were $4.37 billion of which

National Starch represented $351 million The consolidated total

assets of Corn Products International Inc and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2010 were $5.07 billion of which National Starch

represented $1.95 billion Our audit of internal control over finan

cial reporting of Corn Products International Inc also excluded

an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of

National Starch

Is/ KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

February 28 2011
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Consolidated Statements of Income

lix rniIIoes except per share xnxexnts

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2000

Net sales before shipping and handling costs $4632 $3890 $4197

Less shipping and handling costs 265 218 253

Net sales 4367 3672 3944

Cost of sales 3643 3152 3239

Gross profit
724 520 705

Selling general and administrative expenses 370 247 275

Other income not 10

lmpairmont/restructunng charges 25 125

385 367 271

Operating income 339 153 434

Financing costsnet 64 38 29

Income before income taxes 275 115 405

Provision for income taxes 99 68 130

Net income 176 47 275

Less Net income attributable to noncontrolIing interests

Net income attributable to CPI 169 41 267

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 75.6 74.9 74.5

Diluted 76.8 75.5 75.9

Earnings per common share of CM
Basic 2.24 0.55 3.59

Diluted 2.20 0.54 3.52

See notes to tire consolidated fieancioi sttrterrrerrts
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

In rnjons except Share and per share amounte

As of December 31 2010 2009

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 302 175

Accounts receivable net 735 440

Inventories 678 394

Prepaid expenses 20 13

Deferred income tax assets 18 23

Total current assets 1753 1045

Property plant and equipment at cost

Land 163 125

Buildings 593 461

Machinery and equipment 3809 3272

4565 3858

Less accumulated depreciation 2442 2294
2123 1564

Goodwill less accumulated amortization of $11 and $11 respectively 635 238

Other intangible assets less accumulated amortization of $6 and $2 respectively 364

Deferred income tax assets 71

Investments 12 10

Other assets 113 85

Total assets 5071 2952

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt 88 136

Deferred income taxes 12

Accounts payable 535 319

Accrued liabilities 256 101

Total current liabilities 891 565

Non-current liabilities 240 142

Long-term debt 1681 408

Deferred income taxes 249 111

Redeemable common stock 500000 shares issued and outstanding at

December 31 2009 stated at redemption value 14

Share-based payments subject to redemption

CPI stockholders equity

Preferred stock authorized 25000000 shares $0.01 par value none issued

Common stock authorized 200000000 shares $0.01 par value 76034780 and

74819774 issued at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Additional paid-in capital 1120 1082

Less Treasury stock common stock 11529 and 433596 shares

at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively at cost 13
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 190 308

Retained eamings 1046 919

Total CPI stockholders equity 1976 1681

Non-controlling interests 26 23

Total equity 2002 1704

Total liabilities and equity 5.071 2952

See rrotes to the consolidated irsancial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Loss

in nil ions

Years ended December 31 2010 2009 2009

Net income $176 47 $275

Other comprehensive income loss

Gains losses on cash flow hedges net of income tax effect of

$12 $28 and $77 respectively 20 45 127

Reclassification adjustment for losses gains on cash flow hedges included

in net income net of income tax effect of $34 $117 and $63 respectively 54 199 105

Actuarial loss on pension and other postretirement obligations

settlements and plan amendments net of income tax 15

Losses related to pension and other postretirement obligations

reclassified to earnings net of income tax

Unrealized loss on investment net of income tax

Currency translation adjustment 48 135 231

Comprehensive income loss $294 $333 $204

Less Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income loss attributable to CPI $287 $327 S212

Son noses to the consolidated financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Equity and Redeemable Equity

Equity

Accumulated Share-based

Additional Other Non- Redeemable Payments

Common Paid-lu Treasury Comprehensive Retained Controlliny Common Subject to

On nhtilions Stock Capital Stock Income Loss Earnings Interests Stock Redemption

Balance December 312007 Si $1082 $157 5115 694 $21 19

Net income attributable to CR1 267

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests

Dividends declared 40
Losses on cash flow hedges net of income tax effect of $77 127
Amount of gains on cash flow hedges reclassified

to earnings net of income tax effect of $63 105
Unrealized loss on investment net of income tax

Repurchases of common stock

Issuance of common stock on exercise of stock options 20

Stock option expense

Other share-based compensation

Excess tax benefit on share-based Compensation

Change in fair value of redeemable common stock

Currency translation adjustment 231

Actuarial loss on postretirement obligations net of income tax 15
Losses related to postretirement obligations reclassified

to earnings net of income tax

Effects of changing pension plan measurement date and related

impact on service cost interest cost and expected return on

plan assets for October December 31 2007 net of income tax

Other

Balance December 31 2008 $1 $1086 $129 5594 920 $22 14 $11

Net income attributable to CR1 41

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests

Dividends declared 42
Losses on cash flow hedges net of income tax effect of $28 45
Amount of losses on cash flow hedges reclassified

to earnings net of income tax effect of $117 199

Repurchases of common stock

Issuance of common stock on exercise of stock options 11

Stock option expense
Other share-based compensation

Excess tax benefit on share-based compensation

Currency translation adjustment 135

Purchase of non-controlling interests

Actuarial loss on postretirement obligations settlements and

plan amendments net of income tax

Losses related to postretirement obligations reclassified

to eamings net of income tax

Other

Balance December 31 2009 Si $1082 $113 $1308 919 523 14

Net income attributable to CPI 169

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests

Dividends declared 42
Gains on cash flow hedges net of income tax effect of $12 20

Amount of losses on cash flow hedges reclassified

to earnings net of income tax effect of $34 54

Repurchases of common stock

Issuance of common stock on exercise of stock options 17

Stock option expense

Other share-based compensation

Excess tax benefit on share-based compensation

Currency translation adjustment 48

Expiration of put option 14 14
Actuarial loss on postretirernent obligations settlements and

plan amendments net of income tax

Losses related to postretirement obligations reclassified

to earnings net of income tax

Other

Balance December 31 2010 $1 $1120 $1190 $1046 $26

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

ejiIjoes

Years ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Cash provided by used for operating activities

Net income

Non-cash charges credits to net income

Charge for fair value mark-up of acquired inventory

Bridge loan financing cost charge

Write-off of impaired assets

Depreciation and amortization

Deferred income taxes

Stock option expense

Foreign currency transaction losses gains

Changes in working capital

Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses

Inventories

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Decrease increase in margin accounts

Deposit with tax authority

Other
__________________________

Cash provided by used for operating activities
--

Cash provided by used for investing activities

Capital expenditures 159 146 228

Proceeds from disposal of plants and properties

Payments for acquisitions net of cash acquired of $82 in 2010 1272

Cash used for investing activities 1428 145 219

Cash provided by used for financing activities

Payments on debt 77 340 56

Proceeds from borrowings 1289 313

Bridge loan financing costs 20

Debt issuance Costs 15

Dividends paid including to non-controlling interests 45 45 42

Repurchases of common stock

Issuance of common stock 22 11

Excess tax benefit on share-based compensation

Cash provided by used for financing activities 1155 375 230

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes on cash

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 127 68 68

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 175 107 175

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 302 175 107

See ooteo to the coocotidated financial statements

176 47

27

20

275

128

12

124

130

19

155

30

45

51
123

18

26

394

43
82 91

64 29
242 285

13

17 19
586 79
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Corn Products International Inc CPI or the Company was

founded in 1906 and became an independent and public company

as of December 31 1997 The Company operates domestically and

internationally in one business segment the production and sale of

starches and sweeteners derived from wet milling and processing of

corn end other starch-based materials for wide range of industries

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation The consolidated financial statements

consist of the accounts of the Company including all significant

subsidiaries Intercompany accounts and transactions are elimi

nated in consolidation

The preparation of the accompanying consoidated financial

statements in conformity with accounting princIples generally

accepted in the United States of America requires management

to make estimates and assumptions about future events These

estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the amounts of

assets and liabilities reported disclosures about contingent assets

and liabilities and reported amounts of revenues and expenses

Such estimates include the value of purchase consideration valua

tion of accoLints receivable inventories goodwill intangible assets

and other long-lived assets legal contingencies guarantee obliga

tions and assumptions used in the calculation of income taxes and

pension and other postretirement benefits among others These

estimates and assumptions are based on managements best esti

mates and jLidgment Management evaluates its estimates and

assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and

other factors including the current economic environment which

management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances

Management will adjust such estimates and assumptions when

facts and circumstance dictate Foreign currency devaluations

corn price volatility access to difficult credit markets and declines

in the global economic environment have combined to increase

the uncertainty inherent in such estimates and assumptions As

future events and their effects cannot be determined with preci

sion actual results could differ significantly from these estimates

Changes in those estimates resulting from continuing changes in

the economic environment will be reflected in the financial state

ments in future periods

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries other than those

whose functional currency is the US dollar are translated at current

exchange rates with the related translation adjustments reported

in equity as component of accumulated other comprehensive

income loss Income statement accounts are translated at the

average exchange rate during the period Where the US dollar is

considered the functional currency monetary assets and liabilities

are translated at current exchange rates with the related adjustment

included in net income Non-monetary assets and liabilities are

translated at historical exchange rates The Company incurs foreign

currency transaction gains/losses relating to assets and liabilities

that are denominated in currency other than the functional cur

rency For 2010 2009 and 2008 the Company incurred foreign

currency transaction gains lossesl of $2 millionl $6 millionl and

$9 million respectively The Companys accumulated other compre

hensive loss included in equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

includes cumulative translation loss adjustments of $180 million

and $228 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Cash and cash equivalents Cash equivalents consist of all

instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months

or less and which have virtually no risk of loss in value

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net

realizable value Costs are determined using the first-in first-out

FIFO method

Investments Investments in the common stock of affiliated

companies over which the Company does not exorcise significant

influence are accounted for under the cost method and are carried

at cost or less The Companys wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary

has an investment that is accounted for under the cost method

The carrying value of this investment was $6 million at December 31

2010 and 2009 Investments that enable the Company to exercise

significant influence but do not represent controlling interest

are accounted for under the equity method such investments

are carried at cost or less adjusted to reflect the Companys pro

portionate share of income or loss less dividends received The

Company did not have any investments accounted for under the

equity method at December 31 2010 or 2009 The Company also

has equity interests in the CME Group Inc and in Smurfit-Stone

Container Corporation which it classifies as available for sale secu

rities These investments are carried at fair value with unrealized

gains and losses recorded to other comprehensive income The

Company would recognize loss on its investments when there

is loss in value of an investment that is other than temporary
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Property Plant and Equipment and Depreciation Property

plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depre

ciation Depreciation is generally computed on the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives of depreciable assets

which range from 10 to 50 years for hufdings and from to 25

years for all other assets Where permitted by law accelerated

depreciation methods are used for tax purposes.The Company

reviews the recoverability of the net book value of property plant

and equipment for impairment whenever events and circumstances

indicate that the net hook value of an asset may not he recoverable

from estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use

and eventual disposition If this review indicates that the carrying

values will not be recovered the carrying values would be reduced

to fair value and an impairment loss would be recognized

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill $635 million

and $238 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

represents the excess of cost over fair value of net assets acquired

The Company also has other intangible assets $364 million at

December 31 2010 and $7 million at December 31 2009 respec

tively The carrying amount of goodwill and other intangible assets

by geographic segment as of December 31 2010 and 2009 was

as follows

2010 2009

North America $558 $137

South America 104 94

Asia/Africa 177 14

Europe 160

Total $999 $245

The Company assesses goodwill for impairment annually

or more frequently if impairment indicators arise.The Company

has chosen to perform this annual impairment assessment in

September of each year The Company has completed the required

impairment assessments and determined there to be no goodwill

impairment for 2010 In 2009 the Company wrote off $119 million

of goodwill pertaining to its South Korean operations See Note

for additional information regarding this impairment charge

Revenue Recognition The Company recognizes operating revenues

at the time title to the goods and all risks of ownership transfer

to customers.This transfer is considered complete when sales

agreement is in place delivery has occurred pricing is fixed or

determinable and collection is reasonably assured In the case of

consigned inventories the title passes and the transfer of owner

ship risk occurs when the goods are used by the customer Taxes

assessed by governmental authorities and collected from customers

are accounted for on net basis and thereby excluded from revenues

Hedging Instruments The Company uses derivative financial

instruments principally to offset exposure to market risks arising

from changes in commodity prices foreign currency exchange

rates and interest rates Derivative financial instruments Lised by

the Company consist of commodity futures and option contracts

forward currency contracts and options interest rate swap agree

ments and treasury lock agreements The Company enters into

futures and option contracts which are designated as hedges of

specific volumes of commodities corn and natural gas that will

be purchased and processed in future month.These derivative

financial instruments are recognized in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets at fair value.The Company has also from time to time

entered into interest rate swap agreements that effectively con

verted the interest rate on certain fixed rate debt to variable

interest rate and on certain variable rate debt to fixed interest

rate The Company periodicaly enters into treasury lock agreements

to lock the benchmark rate for an anticipated fixed rate borrowing

See also Note and Note of the notes to the consolidated

financial statements for additional information

On the date derivative contract is entered into the Company

designates the derivative as either hedge of variable cash flows

to he paid related to interest on variable rate debt as hedge of

market variation in the benchmark rate for future fixed rate debt

issue or as hedge of certain forecasted purchases of corn or nat

ural gas used in the manufacturing process cash-flow hedge

or as hedge of the fair value of certain debt obligations fair-

value hedge This process includes linking all derivatives that are

designated as fair-value or cash-flow hedges to specific assets and

liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet or to specific firm

commitments or forecasted transactions For all hedging relation

ships the Company formally documents the hedging relationships

and its risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking

the hedge transactions the hedging instrument the hedged item

the nature of the risk being hedged how the hedging instruments

effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed and

description of the method of measuring ineffectiveness.The

Company also formally assesses both at the hedges inception

and on an ongoing basis whether the derivatives that are used in

hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in

cash flows or fair values of hedged items When it is determined

that derivative is not highly effective as hedge or that it has

ceased to be highly effective hedge the Company discontinues

hedge accounting prospectively

Changes in the fair value of floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps

treasury locks or commodity futures and option contracts that are

highly effective and that are designated and qualify as cash-flow

hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income net of appli

cable income taxes Realized gains and losses associated with

changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps and treasury locks

iii riilions

At December 31
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are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income

AOCI to the Consolidated Statement of Income over the life

of the underlying debt Gains and losses on commodity hedging

contracts are reclassified from AOCI to the Consolidated Statement

of Income when the finished goods produced using the hedged

item are sold The maximum term over which the Company

hedges exposures to the variability of cash flows for commodity

price risk is 24 months Changes in the fair value of fixed-to-

floating interest rate swap agreement that is highly effective and

that is designated and qualifies as fair-value hedge along with

the loss or gain on the hedged debt obligation are recorded in

earnings The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of

derivative instrument that qualifies as either cash-flow hedge

or fair-value hedge is reported in earnings

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively

when it is determined that the derivative is no longer effective in

offsetting changes in the cash flows or fair value of the hedged

item the derivative expires or is sold terminated or exercised

the derivative is dc-designated as hedging instrument because

it is unlikely that forecasted transaction will occur or manage

ment determines that designation of the derivative as hedging

instrument is no longer appropriate When hedge accounting is

discontinued the Company continues to carry the derivative on

the Consolidated Balance Sheet at its fair value and gains and

losses that were included in AOCI are recognized in earnings

Stock-based Compensation The Company has stock incentive

plan that provides for stock-based employee compensation includ

ing the granting of stock options and shares of restricted stock to

certain key employees Compensation expense is recognized in the

Consolidated Statement of Income for the Companys stock-based

employee compensation plan.The plan is more fully
described in

Note 12

Earnings per Common Share Basic earnings pci common

share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted aver

age number of shares outstanding lincluding redeemable common

stock for years prior to 2010 which totaled 75.6 million for 2010

74.9 million for 2009 and 74.5 million for 2008 Diluted earnings per

share EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted

average number of shares outstanding including the dilutive effect

of outstanding stock options and other shares associated with

long-term incentive compensation plans The weighted average

number of shares outstanding for diluted EPS calculations was

76.8 million 75.5 million and 75.9 million for 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively In 2010 2009 and 2008 options to purchase approxi

mately 1.4 million 2.3 million and 1.3 million shares of common

stock respectively were excluded from the calculation of the

weighted average number of shares outstanding for diluted EPS

because their effects were anti-dilutive

Risks and Uncertainties The Company operates domestically

and internationally in one business segment In each country the

business and assets are subject to varying degrees of risk and

uncertainty The Company insures its business and assets in each

country against insurable risks in manner that it deems appropri

ate Because of this geographic dispersion the Company believes

that loss from non-insurable events in any one country would not

have material adverse effect on the Companys operations as

whole Additionally the Company believes there is no significant con

centration of risk with any single customer or supplier whose failure

or non-performance would materially affect the Companys results

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards Effective July 2009

the Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board

lFASB Accounting Standards Codification ASClTopic 105

Generally AcceptedAccounting Principles lASC 105 ASC 105

establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification the

Codification as the source of authoritative United States gener

ally accepted accounting principles GAAP recognized by the

FASB to be applied to nongovernmental entities and it is not

intended to change or alter previously exisPng US GAAR Rules

and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal

securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC

registrants The Codification supersedes all previously existing

non-SEC accounting and reporting standards and the FASB will

not issue new standards in the form of Statements FASB Staff

Positions or Emerging Issues Task Force Abstracts Instead the

FASB now issues Accounting Standards Updates lASUs l.The

FASB does not consider ASUs as authoritative in their own right

ASUs serve only to Lipdate the Codification provide background

information about the guidance and provide the bases for conclu

sions with respect to the change or changes to the Codification

The adoption of the Codification did not have material impact

on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In September 2006 the FASB issued guidance pertaining to

the accounting and disclosure for defined benefit pension and

other postretirement plans Among other things the guidance

requires companies to Ii recognize in the balance sheet net

liability or asset and an offsetting adjustment to accumulated other

comprehensive income to record the funded status of defined

benefit pension and other post-retirement benefit plans Iiil meas

Lire plan assets and obligations that determine its funded status as

of the end of the companys fiscal year and liii recognize in com

prehensive income the changes in the funded status of defined

benefit pension and postretirement plan in the year in which the

changes occur The requirement to recognize the funded status of

benefit plan and the disclosure requirements were effective as

of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15 2006 The

requirement to measure the plan assets and benefit obligations as
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of the year-end balance sheet date is effective for fiscal years

ending after December 15 2008 Accordingly the Company

began measuring its plan assets and benefit obligations using

December 31st balance sheet date effective December 31 2008

Previously the Company had used September 30th measurement

date.The change to using year-end balance sheet measurement

date did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements See also Note of the notes to the consoli

dated financial statements for additional information

In December 2007 the FASB issued guidance establishing new

accounting and reporting standards for non-controlling interest in

subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of subsidiary Among

other things the guidance clarifies that non-controlling interest

in subsidiary previously referred to as minority interest in

subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that

is to be reported as equity in the consolidated balance sheet as

oppoSed to being reported in the mezzanine section of the balance

sheet between liabilities and equity Under the guidance consoli

dated net income is reported at amoLints that include the amounts

aifrihutable to both the parent and the non-controlling interest The

guidance also requires disclosure of the amounts of consolidated net

income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest

on the face of the consolidated statement of income Additionally

it establishes single method of accounting for changes in parents

ownership interest in subsidiary that does not result in deconsol

idation and clarifies that such transactions are equity transactions

if the parent retains its controlling financial interest in the subsidiary

The guidance also requires that parent recognize gain or loss

in net income when subsidiary is deconsolidated.The Company

adopted the new guidance effective January 2009 The adoption

did not have material effect on the Companys consolidated finan

cial statements As required the prior year consolidated financial

statements have been reclassitied to conform to the current years

presentation These reclassifications had no effect on CPIs previ

ously reported net income or cash flows

In December 2007 the FASS issued guidance on how acquirers

recognize and measure the consideration transferred identifiable

assets liabilities assumed noncontrolling interest and goodwill

acquired in business combination.The guidance also expands

required disclosures surrounding the nature and financial effects

of business combinations The revised guidance is effective on

prospective basis for fiscal years beginning after December 15

2008 The adoption of the new guidance did not have material

impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements how

ever the guidance will impact the accounting for future business

combinations and the effect will be dependent upon the acquisi

tions at that time

In February 2008 the FASB issued revised guidance related to

fair value measurements which among other things partially deferred

the effective date to fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008

for certain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities The

Company adopted the guidance with respect to financial assets

and liabilities in 2008 The application of the guidance related to

non-financial assets and liabilities effective January 2009 did

not have material impact on the Companys consolidated finan

cial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued guidance intended to improve

transparency in financial reporting by requiring additional disclosures

with respect to derivative instruments and hedging activities with

particular emphasis as to the effects that such items have on the

financial position results of operations and cash flows of an entity

The requisite disclosures are provided in Note of the notes to

the consolidated financial statements

In June 2008 the FASB issued guidance stating that unvested

share-based payment awards which contain rights to receive non-

forfeitable dividends whether paid or unpaidl are participating

securities and should be included in the two-class method of

computing earnings per share This guidance is effective for fiscal

years beginning after December 31 2008 and for interim periods

within those years The adoption of the guidance did not have

material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In December 2008 the FASB amended the disclosure

requirements for employers disclosure of plan assets for defined

benefit pension and other postretirement plaos.The objective of the

additional disclosure requirements is to provide users of financial

statements with an understanding of how investment allocation

decisions are made the major categories of plan assets held by

the plans the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure

the fair value of plan assets significant concentration of risk within

the Companys plan assets and for fair value measurements

determined using significant unobservable inputs reconciliation

of changes between the beginning and ending balances The addi

tional requisite disclosures are provided in Note of the notes

to the consolidated financial statements

In April 2009 the FASB issued additional guidance on factors

to consider in estimating fair value when there has been signifi

cant decrease in market activity for financial asset The additional

guidance is effective for interim and annual periods ending after

June 15 2009 and it did not have material impact on the Companys

consolidated financial statements

In April 2009 the FASB issued guidance that requires publicly-

traded companies to provide disclosures on the fair value of financial

instruments in interim and annual financial staternentsThe guidance

is effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15 2009

The required disclosures are provided in Note of the notes to

the consolidated financial statements
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In April 2009 the FASB issued guidance related to business

combinations that amends and clarifies application issues associated

with initial recognition and measurement subsequent measurement

and accounting and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from

contingencies in business combination It is effective for assets

or liabilities arising from contingencies in business combinations

for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the

first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15

2008 The revised guidance will impact the accounting and disclo

sures arising from contingencies in business combinations and

the effect will be dependent upon the acquisitions at that time

In May 2009 the FASB issued guidance that establishes

general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that

occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements

are filed with the SEC.The guidance defines subsequent events

and also required that companies disclose the date through which

they have evaluated subsequent events and the basis for that date

The guidance is effective for financial statements issued for interim

and annual periods ending after June 15 2009 In February 2010

the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASUl 2010-09

Subsequent Events Topic 855 which amends Topic 855 to remove

the requirement for an SEC filer to disclose the date through

which subsequent events have been evalLiatedThe adoption of

the guidance did not have an impact on the Companys consoli

dated financial statements

In September 2009 the FASB issued ASU 2009-12 Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures Investments in Certain Entities

That Calculate Net Asset value per Share ASU 2009-12 allows as

practical expedient companies that have investments that are

within the scope of this ASU to use net asset value per share of

the investment as fair value measurement without further adjust

ment The Company adopted this standard which applies to certain

benefit plan assets in 2009 The adoption did not have material

impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

NOTE ACQUISITIONS

On October 2010 Company completed its acquisition of

National Starch global provider of specialty starches from Akzo

Nobel NV global coatings and specialty chemicals company

headquartered in The Netherlands The Company acquired 100 per

cent of National Starch through asset purchases in certain countries

and stock purchases in certain countries.The purchase price was

$1354 billion in cash subject to certain post-closing adjustments

and other finalizations to the valuation.The funding of the purchase

price was provided principally from borrowings See Note for infor

mation regarding the Companys borrowing activity The Company

incurred $35 million of acquisition costs and $20 million charge

for bridge loan financing costs related to the acquisition in 2010

The results of National Starch are included in the Companys

consolidated results from October 2010 forward

The acquisition positions the Company with broader portfolio

of products enhanced geographic reach and the ability to offer

customers broad range of value-added ingredient solutions for

variety of their evolving needs National Starch had sales of

$1.2 billion in 2009 and provides the Company with among other

things 11 additional manufacturing facilities in countries across

continents.The acquisition also provides additional sales and tech

nical offices around the world With the acquisition the Company

now employs approximately 10700 people in North America South

America Asia/Africa and Europe It operates 37 manufacturing

facilities in 15 countries has sales offices in 29 countries and has

research and ingredient development centers in key global markets

The allocation of the preliminary purchase price to the tangible

and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed

based on their fair values as of October 2010 is provided below

Goodwill represents the amount by which the purchase price

exceeds the fair value of the net assets acquired It is estimated

that approximately 15 percent of the goodwill associated with this

acquisition is deductible for tax purposes

in millinis

Working capital 219

Property plant and equipment 549

Other assets 119

Intangible assets 369

Goodwill 392

Non-current liabilities assumed 12841

Total preliminary purchase price $1354

National Starch Results of Operations Following is financial

information for the National Starch operations included in the

Companys results since October 2010

October 2010

through

December 31 2010un millions

Not sales $351

Net income attributable to National Starch

Included in the results from the acquired National Starch

business was one-time increase in cost of sales of $27 million

relating to the sale of National Starch inventory that was adjusted

to fair value at the acquisition date in accordance with business

combination accounting rules
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Pro Forma Financial Information Selected unaudted pro forma

results of operations for the years ended December 31 2010 and

2009 assuming the National Starch acquisition occurred as of

January 2009 are presented below

ile rniiiiox except per shxe 2010 2009

Net sales $5323 $4897

Net income attributable to CPI 283 61

Pro forma earnings per common share of CPI

Basic 3.74 0.81

Diluted 3.68 081

For the nine months ended September 30 2010 and for

the year ended December 31 2009 the National Starch financial

statements excluded the effects of financing and taxes since Akzu

Nobel its previous parent company used centralized approach

for cash management and to finance its global operations as well

as to manage its global tax position 33 percent tax rate was

used to tax effect pro forms adjustments

The Company made other acquisitions during the last three years

none of which either individually or in the aggregate were material

All of the Companys acquisitions were accounted for under

the purchase method

NOTE ASSET IMPAIRMENT AND RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

on neoruery LI zuiu UCVCSRCUttg ear iriquece ouuurieu on ore

coast of Chile The Companys plant in LIay-Llay Chile suffered

damage including damage to the waste-water treatment facility

corn silos water tanks and warehousing There was also structural

damage to the buildings structural engineering study was com

pleted during the quarter ended June 30 2010 Based on the

results of the study and other factors the Company determined

that the carrying amount of significant portion of the plant and

equipment exceeded its fair value and therefore these assets

were impaired As result the Company recorded $24 million

charge for impaired assets and employee severance and related

benefit costs associated with the termination of employees in

Chile in its 2010 Statement of Income As of December 31 2010

the employee terminations were completed and the restructuring

accrual was fully utilized Shipments to customers in Chile are being

fulfilled from the Companys plants in Argentina Brazil and Mexico

In the second quarter of 2009 the Company recorded

$125 million charge to its Statement of Income for impaired assets

and restructuring costs The charge included the write-off of $119 mil

lion of goodwill pertaining to the Companys operations in South

Korea and $5 million charge to write-off impaired assets in North

America Additionally the Company recorded $1 million charge

for employee severance and related benefit costs primarily attrib

utable to the termination of employees in its Asia/Africa region.The

employee terminations have been completed and the restructuring

accrual has been fully utilized

Goodwill is tested for impairment using two-step process

In the first step the fair value of the reporting unit is compared to

its carrying value If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the

carrying value of its net assets goodwill is not considered impaired

and no further testing is required If the carrying value of the net

assets exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit second step

of the impairment assessment is performed in order to determine

the implied fair value of reporting units goodwill Determining

the implied fair value of goodwill requires valuation of the report

ing units tangible and intangible assets and liabilities in manner

similar to the allocation of purchase price in business combina

tion If the carrying value of the reporting units goodwill exceeds

the implied fair value of its goodwill goodwill is deemed impaired

and is written down to the extent of the difference

The Company reviews its long-lived assets whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount

of such assets may not he recoverable As required under United

States generally accepted accounting principles the impairment

analysis for long-lived assets occurs before the goodwill impair

ment assessment If the carrying amount of an asset or group of

assets exceeds its fair value the asset may need to be written

down to its fair value

NOTE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company is exposed to market risk stemming from changes

in commodity prices corn and natural gasl foreign currency exchange

rates and interest rates In the normal course of business the

Company actively manages its exposure to these market risks by

entering into various hedging transactions authorized under estab

lished policies that place clear controls on these activities These

transactions utilize exchange traded derivatives or over-the-counter

derivatives with investment grade counterpartles Derivative financial

instruments currently used by the Company consist of commodity

futures options and swap contracts and forward currency contracts

and options

Commodity Price Hedging The Companys principal use of

derivative financial instruments is to manage commodity price risk

in North America relating to anticipated purchases of corn and natural

gas to be used in the manufacturing process generally over the next

twelve to eighteen months.The Company maintains commodity-

price risk management strategy that uses derivative instruments to

minimize significant unanticipated earnings fluctuations caused by

commodity-price volatility For example the manufacturing of the

Companys products requires significant volume of corn and natural

gas Price fluctuations in corn and natural gas cause the actual pur

chase price of corn and natural gas to differ from anticipated prices
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To manage price risk related to corn purchases in North

America the Company uses corn futures and options contracts

that trade on regulated commodity exchanges to lock in its corn

costs associated with firm-priced customer sales contracts The

Company uses over-the-counter gas swaps to hedge portion of

its natural gas usage in North America These derivative financial

instruments limit the impact that volatility resulting from fluctua

tions in market prices will have on corn and natural gas purchases

and have been designated as cash flow hedges Unrealized gains

and losses associated with marking the commodity hedging contracts

to market are recorded as component of other comprehensive

income OCIl and included in the equity section of the Consolidated

Balance Sheets as part of accumulated other comprehensive income

loss AOCI These amounts are subsequently reclassified into

earnings in the month in which the related corn or natural gas is

used or in the month hedge is determined to be ineffective The

Company assesses the effectiveness of commodity hedge con

tract based on changes in the contracts fair value The changes in

the market value of such contracts have historically been and are

expected to continue to he highly effective at offsetting changes

in the price of the hedged items.The amounts representing the

ineffectiveness of these cash flow hedges are not significant

At December 31 2010 the Companys AOCI account included

$54 million of gains net of tax of $32 million pertaining to commodi

ties related derivative instruments that hedge the anticipated cash

flows from future transactions most of which are expected to be

recognized in earnings within the next twelve months Transactions

and events expected to occur over the next twelve months that

will necessitate reclassifying these derivative losses to earnings

include the sale of finished goods inventory that includes previ

ously hedged purchases of corn and the usage of hedged natural

gas Cash flow hedges discontinued during 2010 were not material

Interest Rate Hedging The Company assesses its exposure to

variability in interest rates by continually identifying and monitoring

changes in interest rates that may adversely impact future cash flows

and the fair value of existing debt instruments and by evaluating

hedging opportunities The Company maintains risk management

control systems to monitor interest rate risk attributable to both

the Companys outstanding and forecasted debt obligations as well

as the Companys offsetting hedge positions The risk management

control systems involve the use of analytical techniques including

sensitivity analysis to estimate the expected impact of changes in

interest rates on the fair value of the Companys oLitstanding and

forecasted debt instruments

Derivative financial instruments that have been used by the

Company to manage its interest rate risk consist of Treasury Lock

agreements T-Locks and interest rate swaps The Company

periodically enters into T-Locks to fix the benchmark component

of the interest rate to be established for certain planned fixed-rate

debt issuances see also Note 6.TheT-Locks are designated as

hedges of the variability in cash flows associated with future inter

est payments caused by market fluctuations in the benchmark

interest rate until the fixed interest rate is established and are

accounted for as cash flow hedges Accordingly changes in the

fair value of the T-Locks are recorded to AOCI until the consumma

tion of the underlying debt offering at which time any realized gain

loss is amortized to earnings over the life of the debt The net

gain or loss recognized in earnings dLiring 2010 2009 and 2008

representing the amount of the Companys hedges ineffective

ness was not significant The Company has also from time to

time entered into interest rate swap agreements that effectively

converted the interest rate on certain fixed-rate debt to variable

rate These swaps called for the Company to receive interest at

fixed rate and to pay interest at variable rate thereby creating

the equivalent of variable-rate debt The Company designated these

interest rate swap agreements as hedges of the changes in fair

value of the underlying debt obligation attributable to changes in

interest rates and accounted for them as fair value hedges Changes

in the fair value of interest rate swaps designated as hedging

instruments that effectively offset the variability in the fair value

of outstanding debt obligations are reported in earnings These

amounts offset the gain or loss that is the change in fair value

of the hedged debt instrument that is attributable to changes in

interest rates that is the hedged risk which is also recognized in

earnings The Company did not have any Treasury Lock or interest

rate swap agreements outstanding at December 31 2010 or 2009

On March 25 2010 the Company issued $200 million of

5.62 percent Senior Series Notes due March 25 2020 the

Series Notes See Note for additional information regarding

the Series Notes In conjunction with plan to issue the Series

Notes and in order to manage exposure to variability in the bench

mark interest rate on which the fixed interest rate of these notes

would be based the Company had previously entered into Treasury

Lock agreement the T-Lock with respect to $50 million of these

borrowings The T-Lock was designated as hedge of the variabil

ity in cash flows associated with future interest payments caused

by market fluctuations in the benchmark interest rate between the

time the T-Lock was entered and the time the debt was priced It is

accounted for as cash flow hedge TheT-Lock expired on April 30

2009 and the Company paid approximately $6 million representing

the losses on the T-Lock to settle the agreement The losses are

included in AOCI and are being amortized to financing costs over

the ten-year term of the Series Notes
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In connection with the acquisition of National Starch on

September 17 2010 the Company issued and sold $900 million

aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes the Notes

The Notes Consist of $350 million aggregate principal amount of

3.2 percent notes due November 2015 the 2015 Notes

$400 million aggregate principal amount of 4.625 percent notes

due November 2020 the 2020 Notes and $150 million

aggregate principal amount of 6.625 percent notes due April 15

2037 See Note for additional information regarding the Notes In

conjunction with plan to issue these long-term fixed-rate Notes

and in order to manage its exposure to variability in the benchmark

interest rates on which the fixed interest rates of the Notes would

be based the Company entered into T-Lock agreements with

respect to $300 million of the 2015 Notes and $300 million of

the 2020 Notes the T-Locks TheT-Locks were designated as

hedges of the variability in cash flows associated with future inter

est payments caused by market luctuations in the benchmark

interest rate between the time the T-Locks were entered and the

time the debt was priced The T-Locks are accounted for as cash

flow hedges TheT-Locks were terminated on September 15 2010

and the Company paid approximately $15 million representing the

losses on the T-Locks to settle the agreements The losses are

included in AOCI and are being amortized to financing costs over

the terms of the 2015 and 2020 Notes

At December 31 2010 the Companys AOCI account included

$14 million of losses net of tax of $9 million related to Treasury

Lock agreements Cash flow hedges discontinued during 2010

were not material

Foreign Currency Hedging Due to the Companys global

operations it is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange

rates As result the Company has exposure to translational foreign

exchange risk when its foreign operation results are translated to

US dollars USD1 and to transactional foreign exchange risk when

transactions not denominated in the functional currency of the

operating unit are revalued.The Company primarily uses derivative

financial instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts

swaps and options to manage its transactional foreign exchange

risk These derivative financial instruments are primarily accounted

for as fair value hedges As of December 31 2010 the Company

had $41 million of net notional foreign currency forward contracts

that hedged net asset transactional exposures

By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures

the Company exposes itself to credit risk and market risk Credit

risk is the risk that the counterparty will tail to perform under the

terms of the derivative contract When the fair value of derivative

contract is positive the counterparty owes the Company which

creates credit risk for the Company When the fair value of deriva

tive contract is negative the Company owes the counterparty and

therefore it does not possess credit risk The Company minimizes

the credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into over-the-

counter transactions only with investment grade counterparties or

by utilizing exchange-traded derivatives Market risk is the adverse

effect on the value of financial instrument that results from

change in commodity prices or interest rates The market risk asso

ciated with commodity-price and interest rate contracts is managed

by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and

degree of market risk that may be undertaken

The fair value and balance sheet location of the Companys

derivative instruments accounted for as cash flow hedges are

presented below

FairValue of Derivative lestrumeot

is rniiiions FairVatue FairValue

Derivatives

Designated Balance At At Balance At At

as Hedging Sheet Dec 31 Dec 31 Sheet Dec 31 Dec 31

instruments Location 2010 2009 Location 2010 2009

Accounts

payable and

Commodity Accounts accrued

contracts receivable-net $65 $26 liabilities $4 $18

Total $65 $26 $4 $18

At December 31 2010 the Company had outstanding futures

and option contracts that hedge approximately 100 million bushels of

forecasted corn purchases Also at December 31 2010 the Company

had outstanding swap and option contracts that hedge approximately

11 million mmbtus of forecasted natural gas purchases

Additional information relating to the Companys derivative

instruments is presented below in millionsl

Location

of Losses

Derivatives Year Year Reclassified Vear Year

in Cash Ended Ended from Ended Ended

Flow Hedging Dec 31 Dec 31 AOCI into Dec 31 Dec 31

Relatlonshitss 2010 2009 Income 2010 2009

Commodity Cost of

contracts $47 $177 sales $87 $315

Interest rate Financing

contracts 151 costs flee

Total $32 $173 $88 $316

At December 31 2010 the Companys AOCI account included

approximately $53 million of gains on commodity hedging contracts

net of income taxes which are expected to be reclassified into

earnings during the next twelve months.The Company expects

the gains to be offset by changes in the underlying commodities

cost Additionally at December 31 2010 the Companys AOCI

account included approximately $2 million of losses on Treasury

Lock agreements net of income taxes which are expected to be

reclassified into earnings during the next twelve months

Amount of

Gains Losoes

Recognieed in

Oct on Deioativos

Amount of

La sees

Recta osif ied

from AOCI

into Income
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Presented below are the fair values of the Companys financial

instruments and derivatives for the periods presented

millions Total Levell LoveI2 Levell

Available for sale securities

Derivative assets 65 64 26 26

Derivative liabilities 18 16

Long4erm debt 1707 1707 407 407

Level inputs consist of quoted ytices isnadjusred in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Levei inputs are inputs other than quoted prices ioclndd within Level that are observable
for the aueet or liability either directly or otthrectly for substantially the full term of the fieeociai invtromeor Level iepate include quoted prices for similar assets liabilities inactive markets

posted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are sot active or inputs other thee quoted prices that are obseteable for the aseet or liability or can be derived principally

from or corroborated by olrservehle market data Level ispols are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability Unoheervable inputs shell he irted to meuosre fair voiae to the estent llrat

observable repute ate sot aeailairle thvrehy atiowieg for situotiovs ie which there is little if any monket trctivity for tIre aoset or liability at tlte measurement date

The carrying values of cash equivalents accounts receivable

accounts payable and short-term borrowings approximate fair

values Commodity futures options and swap contracts which

are designated as hedges of specific volumes of commodities are

recognized at fair value Foreign currency forward contracts swaps

and options hedge transactional foreign exchange risk related to

assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the

functional currency and are recognized at fair value This faIr value

of the Companys long-term debt is estimated based on quota

tions of major securities dealers who are market makers in the

securities Presented below are the carrying amounts and the

fair values of the Companys long-term debt at December 31

2010 and 2009

4.625% senior notes

due November 12020

3.2% senior notes

due November 2015

6.625% senior notes

due
April 15 2037

6.0% senior notes

due April 15 2017

5.62% senior notes

due March 25 2020

US revolving credit facility

due September 2013

US revolving credit facility

replaced September 2010

Total long.term debt

109 109

$1681 $1707 $408 $407

NOTE FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
The Company had total debt outstanding of $1.77 billion and

$544 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Short-

term borrowings at December 31 2010 and 2009 consist primarily

of amounts outstanding under various unsecured local country

operating lines of credit

As of December 31 2010 As of December 31 2009

Total Level Level Level

Short-term borrowings consist of the following at December 31

ho erlltions 2010 2000

Borrowings in various currencies at rates ranging

from 1% to 15% for 2010 and 1% to 11% for 2009 $88 $136

Current maturities of long-term debt

Total short-term borrowings $88 $136

in millionui

Caying

amount

Fair Canying

value .amount

399 393

200 212

On March 25 2010 the Company entered into Private Shelf

Agreement Ithe Shelf Agreementl with Prudential Investment

Management Inc providing for the issuance of senior promissory

notes in an aggregate principal amount of $200 million

On March 25 2010 pursuant to the Shelf Agreement the

Company issued 5.62 percent Senior Series Notes due March 25

2010 zoos 2020 irt an aggregate principal amount of $200 million lthe Series

Fair Notes.The Series Notes rank equally with the Companys other

senior unsecured debt Interest on the Series Notes is required

to be paid semi-annually on March 25th and September 25th

beginning in September 2010 The Series Notes are subject to

optional prepayment by the Company at 100 percent of the prlnci
349 351

pal amount plus interest up to the prepayment date and in certain

258 262 99
circumstances make-whole amount Proceeds from the sale of

the Series Notes have been used for general corporate purposes

200 214 200 204
The Shelf Agreement contains various covenants which are

substantially similar to the covenants in the Companys revolving

credit facility including financial covenants that require maintenance

of maximum debt to EBITDA ratio and minimum interest cover-

275 275
age ratio as well as covenants that restrict the Companys ability

to incur debt create liens and merge with other entities The Shelf

Agreement also contains customary events of default

On September 2010 the Company entered into new

three-year senior unsecured $1 billion revolving credit
facility

The new

credit facility replaced the Companys previously existing $500 million

senior unsecured revolving credit facility The Company paid fees

of approximately $8 million
relating to the new credit facility which

are being amortized to interest expense over the three-year term

of the facility The Company had $275 million of borrowings out

standing under the revolving credit facility at December 31 2010
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Subject to certain terms and conditions the Company may

increase the amount of the revolving facility under the Revolving

Credit Agreement by up to $250 million in the aggregate All commit

ted pro rata borrowings under the revolving facility will bear interest

at variable annual rate based on the LIBOR or base rate at the

Companys election subject to the terms and conditions thereof

plus in each case an applicable margin based on the Companys

leverage ratio as reported in the financial statements delivered

pursuant to the Revolving Credit Agreement

The Revolving Credit Agreement contains customary

representations warranties covenants events of default terms

and conditions including limitations on liens incurrence of debt

mergers and significant asset dispositions.The Company must

also comply with leverage ratio and an interest coverage ratio

covenant The occurrence of an event of default under the Revolving

Credit Agreement could result in all loans and other obligations

under the agreement being declared due and payable and the

revolving credit facility being terminated

In connection with the acquisition of National Starch on

September 17 2010 the Company issued and sold $900 million

aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes the

Notes as follows

Premium

Pnncipel Discountin rniihons

3.2% notes due November 2015 5350 51 5349

4.625% notes due November 2020 400 399

6.625% notes due Aprd 15 2037 150 158

$900 $6 $906

The Company paid debt issuance costs of approximately

$7 million relating to the Notes which are being amortized to

interest expense over the lives of the respective notes Additionally

the premium and discounts on the Notes will be amortized to

interest expense over the lives of the respective notes

Interest on the 3.2 percent notes and the 4625 percent notes

is required to be paid semi-annually on May 1St and November 1st

commencing May 2011 Interest on the 6.625 percent notes is

required to be paid semi-annually on April 15th and October 15th

commencing October 15 2010

The Notes are redeemable in whole at any time or in part from

time to time at the Companys option at redemption price equal

to the greater of 100 percent of the principal amount of the Notes

to be redeemed and lii the sum of the present values of the

remaining scheduled payments of principal
and interest thereon

not including any portion of such paymnt of interest accrued as

of the date of redemption discounted to the date of redemption

on semi-annual basis assuming 360-day year consisting of

twelve 30-day months at the Treasury Rate as defined plus 30

basis points plus in each case accrued interest thereon to the

date of redemption

As result of the sale of the Notes and the entry into the new

revolving credit facility the Company terminated the $1.35 billion

bridge term loan facility that it had previously arranged Fees asso

ciated with the bridge loan totaling $20 million were expensed to

financing costs in September 2010

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31

in miiiionsi 2010 2009

4.625% senior notes due November 2020

net of discount of $1 399

3.2% senior notes due November 2015

net of discount of $1 349

6625% senior notes due April15 2037

net of prem of $8 and disc of $1 respectively 258 99

6.0% senior notes duo April 15 2017 200 200

5.62% senior notes due March 25 2020 200

US revolving credit facility due September 2013

at LIBOR indexed floating rate 275

US revolving credit facility replaced Sept 2010

at LIBOR indexed floating rate 109

Total $1681 $408

Less current maturities

Long-term debt $1681 $408

SeHin The Companys long-term debt matures as follows $275 million

Price

in 2013 $350 million in 2015 $200 million in 201 $600 million in

2020 and $250 million in 2037

Corn Products International Inc guarantees certain obligations

of its consolidated subsidiaries which aggregated $57 million and

$21 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

In conjunction with plan to issue the Series Notes and in

order to manage exposure to variability in the benchmark interest

rate on which the fixed interest rate of these notes would be based

the Company had previously entered into Treasury Lock agreement

the T-Lock with respect to $50 million of these borrowings The

T-Lock was designated as hedge of the variability in cash flows

associated with future interest payments caused by market fluctu

ations in the benchmark interest rate between the time the T-Lock

was entered and the time the debt was priced It is accounted for

as cash flow hedge The T-Lock expired on April 30 2009 and the

Company paid approximately $6 million representing the losses

on the T-Lock to settle the agreement The losses are included in

AOCI and are being amortized to financing costs over the ten-year

term of the Series Notes

In conjunction with plan to issue the $350 million aggregate

principal amount of 3.2 percent senior notes due November

2015 the 2015 Notes and the $400 million aggregate principal

amount of 4625 percent senior notes due November 2020 the

2020 Notes and in order to manage its exposure to variability

in the benchmark interest rates on which the fixed interest rates

of these notes would be based the Company entered into T-Lock
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agreements with respect to $300 milhon of the 2015 Notes and

$300 million of the 2020 Notes the 1-Locks The T-Locks were

designated as hedges of the variability in cash flows associated

with future interest payments caused by market fluctuations in the

benchmark interest rate between the time the 1-Locks were entered

and the time the debt was priced TheT-Locks are accounted for

as cash flow hedges The 1-Locks were terminated on September

15 2010 and the Company paid approximately $15 million repre

senting the losses on theT-Locks to settle the agreements The

losses are included in AOCI and are being amortized to financing

costs over the terms of the 2015 and 2020 Notes

NOTE LEASES

The Company leases rail cars certain machinery and equipment

and office space under various operating leases Rental expense

under operating leases was $33 million $29 million and $30 million

in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Minimum lease payments

due on eases existing at December 31 2010 are shown below

millions

Yeas Minimum Lease Payments

2011 638

2012 32

2013 26

2014 21

2015 19

Balance thereafter 60

NOTE INCOME TAXES

The components of income before income taxes and the provision

for income taxes are shown below

un rniiiionmm 2010 2009 2008

Income loss before income taxes

United States $1261 25 70

Foreign 301 90 335

Total $275 $115 $405

Provision for income taxes

Current tax expense

US federal 15

State and local

Foreign 131 65 101

Total current $129 68 $118

Deferred tax expense benefit

US federal 18 31 11

State and local

Foreign 121 11

Total deferred $130 12

Total provision 99 68 $130

Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax effects of

temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and

tax basis of assets and liabilities Significant temporary differences

at December 31 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows

in miilionn 2010 2009

Deferred tax assets attributable to

Employee benefit accruals 34 30

Pensions 43 19

Hedging/derivative contracts 17

Net operating loss carryforwards 28 23

Foreign tax credit carryforwards 20 24

Goodwill 27

Other

Gross deferred tax assets $152 $130

Valuation allowance 31 441

Net deferred tax assets $121 86

Deferred tax liabilities attributable to

Property plant and equipment $250 $180

Hedging/derivative contracts 22

Other 21

Total deferred tax liabilities $293 $180

Net deferred tax liabilities $172 94

Net operating loss carryforwards at December 31 2010 include

state net operating losses of $2 million and foreign net operating

losses of $26 million The state net operating losses expire in vari

ous years through 2030 Foreign net operating losses of $22 million

will expire un 2011 through 2021 if unused whule $4 million may

be carried forward indefinitely The foreign tax credit carryforwards

of $20 million at December 31 2010 will expire in 2011 through

2019 if not utilized

Income tax accounting requires that valuation allowance be

established when it is more likely than not that all or portion of

deferred tax asset will not be realized In making this assessment

management considers the level of historical taxable income sched

uled reversal of deferred tax liabilities tax planning strategies and

projected future taxable income The Company maintains valuation

allowance of $31 million against certain foreign tax credits foreign

net operating losses and deferred tax assets that management has

determined will more likely than not expire prior to realization The

valuation allowance at December 31 2010 with respect to foreign

tax credit carryforwards decreased to $4 million from $15 million

at December 31 2009 The valuation allowance with respect to

foreign net operating losses increased to $25 million at December 31

2010 from $20 million at December 31 2009 In addition the valua

tion allowance at December 31 2010 with respect to the deferred

tax asset associated with the future tax amortization of goodwill

in Korea decreased to $1 million from $9 million at December 31

2009 valuation allowance of $1 million was established during

2010 against deferred tax assets related to certain fixed assets

that were written off for book purposes in Chile
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Provision for tax at US statutory rate

Tax rate difference on foreign income

State and local taxes net

Change in valuation allowance

foreign tax credits

Change in foreign statutory tax rates

Korea goodwill write-off

net of valuation allowance

Chile asset write-oft

net of valuation allowance

Non-deductible National Starch

acquisition costs

Other items net

Provision at effective tax rate

1.22

0.46 1.40 0.06

36.09% 59.45% 32.00%

Provisions are made for estimated US and foreign income taxes

less credits that may be available on distributions from foreign

subsidiaries to the extent dividends are anticipated No provision

has been made for income taxes on approximately $1066 billion

of undistrihuted earnings of foreign subsidiaries at December 31

2010 as such amounts are considered permanently reinvested

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of

unrecognized tax benefits for 2010 and 2009 is as follows

un millions 2010 2009

Balance at January $22 $19

Additions for tax positions related to prior years

Reductions for tax positions related to prior years

Additions based on tax positions related to

thecurrentyear 10

Reductions related to lapse in the

statute of limitations 13

Balance at December 31 $29 $22

Of the $29 million at December 31 2010 $26 million represents

the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would

affect the effective tax rate in future periods

The Company accounts for interest and penalties related to

income tax matters in income tax expense The Company had

accrued interest and penalties of $4 million as of December 31

2010 and $1 million as of December 31 2009

The Company is subject to US federal income tax as well as

income tax in multiple state and non-US jurisdictions The Internal

Revenue Service IRS has concluded its audit of all years through

2006 The Company remains subject to potential examination in

Canada for the years 2004 to 2010 Brazil for the years 2006 to 2010

and Mexico for the years 2005 to 2010 The statute of limitations

is generally open for the years 2004 to 2010 for various other

non-US jurisdictions

NOTE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company and its subsidiaries sponsor noncontributory defined

benefit pension plans covering substantially all employees in the

United States and Canada and certain employees in other foreign

countries Plans for most salaried employees provide pay-related

benefits based on years of service Plans for hourly employees

generally provide benefits based on flat dollar amounts arid years

of service The Companys general funding policy is to make con

tributions to the plans in amounts that are within the limits of

deductibility under current tax regulations Certain foreign countries

allow income tax deductions without regard to contribution levels

and the Companys policy in those countries is to make the contri

bution required by the terms of the applicable plan Domestic plan

assets consist primarily of common stock corporate debt securities

and short-term investment funds

Domestic salaried employees are covered by defined benefit

cash balance pension plan which provides benefits based on

service and Company credits to the participating employees

accounts of between percent and 10 percent of base salary

bonus and overtime

The Company also provides healthcare and/or life insurance

benefits for retired employees in the United States Canada and

Brazil US salaried employees are provided with access to post-

retirement medical insurance through Retirement Health Care

Spending Accounts US salaried employees accrue an account

during employment which can be used after employment to pur

chase postretirement medical insurance from the Company and

Medigap or through Medicare HMO policies after age 65.The

accounts are credited with flat dollar amount and indexed for

inflation annually during employment The accounts also accrue

interest credits using rate equal to specified amount above

the yield on five-year Treasury notes Employees can use the

amounts accumulated in these accounts including credited inter

est to purchase postretirement medical insurance Employees

become eligible for benefits when they meet minimum age and

service requirements The Company has the right to modify or

terminate these benefits Healthcare benefits for retirees outside

the United States Canada and Brazil are generally covered through

local government plans

Companys effective tax rate follows

reconciliation of the US federal statutory tax rate to the In 2008 and 2007 the Company made deposits of approximately

$13 million and $17 million respectively to the Canadian tax authori

ties relating to an ongoing audit examination The Company did not

2010 2009 2008
make any additional deposits relating to this ongoing audit examina

35.00% 35.00% 35.00% tion in 2010 The Company has settled $2 million of the claims and

0.31 0.50 13.09 is in the process of appealing the remaining items from the audit

0.15 028 0.63
The Company believes that it has adequately provided for the most

likely outcome of the appeal process
2.t6 0.51 0.23

It is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized

0.94 0.83
tax benefits will increase or decrease within twelve months of

25.50
December 31 2010 The Company currently estimates that such

increases or decreases will not he significant

2.13
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The Company completed the acquisition of National Starch from

Akzo Nobel effective October 2010 This acquisition increased

the Companys sponsored defined benefit pension obligations in

the United States Canada and Mexico as well as adding pension

obligations in Germany and Japan In addition this acquisition

increased the Companys sponsored postretirement benefit pension

obligations in the United States and Canada The results below

inclLide the pension and postretlrement plan liabilities relating to

the acquired business as well as the net periodic benefit cost

associated with these plans for the fourth quarter of 2010

Pension Obligation and Funded Status The changes in pension

benefit obligations and plan assets during 2010 and 2009 as well

as the funded status and the amounts recognized in the Companys

Consolidated Balance Sheets related to the Companys pension

plans at December 31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

US Plans Non-US Plans

un miuiionoi 2010 2009 2010 2009

Benefit obligation

AtJanuaryl $84 $79 $123 $98

Service Cost

Interest cost 10

Benefits paid Ill 71 81

Actuarial loss gain 91 25 11

Business combination 164 43

Curtailment/Settlement
Ill

Foreign currency translation 13

Benefit obligation

atDecember3l $244 $84 $205 $123

Fair value of plan assets

AtJanuaryl 69 $58 $116 96

Actual return on plan assets 10 11 14 11

Employer contributions 31

Benefits paid 71 31 71

Settlements

Business combination 101 18

Foreign currency translation 13

Fair value of plan assets

at December31 $204 $69 $157 $116

Funded Status 401 $1151 $1481

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

consist of

US Plans Non-US Plans

is miilions 2010 2009 2010 2009

Non current asset Ill $16

Current liabilities

Non current liabilities 39 15 47 12

Net amount recognized $40 $15 $48 $7

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive

Loss consist of

US Plans Non-US Plans

un milliossi 2010 2009 2010 2000

Net actuarial loss $12 $25 $52 $29

Prior service cost

Transition obligation

Net amount recognized $14 $27 $56 $33

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit

pension plans was $405 million and $172 million at December 31

2010 and December 31 2009 respectively

Information about plan obligations and assets for plans with an

accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets is as follows

US Plans Non-US Plans

ii millionsi 2010 2009 2010 2009

Projected benefit obligation $244 $84 $58 $13

Accumulated benefit obligation 238 77 50 11

Fair value of plan assets 204 69 19

Included in the Companys pension obligation are nonqualified

supplemental retirement plans for certain key employees All ben

efits provided under these plans are unfunded and payments to

plan participants are made by the Company

Components of net periodic benefit cost and other amounts

recognized in other comprehensive income consist of

US Plans Non-US Plans

in millions 2010 2009 2058 2010 2009 2008

Service cost $5

Interest cost 10

Expected retum

on plan assets 110 91

Amortization

of actuarial loss

Amortization of

transition obligation

Amortization of

prior service cost

Settlement/

Curtailment

Net pension cost $6 $6 $4 $5
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For the US plans the Company estimates that net pension

expense for 2011 will include approximately $2 million relating to

the amortization of its accumulated actuarial loss and prior service

cost included in accumulated other comprehensive loss at

December 31 2010

For the non-US plans the Company estimates that net pension

expense for 2011 will include approximately $3 million relating to

the amortization of its accumulated actuarial loss prior service cost

and transition obligation included in accumulated other comprehen

sive loss at December 31 2010

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized

in other comprehensive income for 2010 consist of

in millions US Plan5 Non-US Plans

Net actuarial loss/gain $1141 $21

Amortization of actuarial loss Ii Ill

Amortization loss recognized due to settlement Ill

Exchange rate

Total recorded in other comprehensive income liE 22

Net periodic benefit cost

Total recorded in other comprehensive income

and net periodic benefit cost 191 $26

The following weighted average assumptions were used to

determine the Companys obligations under the pension plans

Discount rate

Rate of compensation

increase

The Company has assumed an expected long-term rate of

return on assets of 7.25 percent for US plans and 7.37 percent for

non-US plans In developing the expected long-term rate of return

assumption on plan assets which consist mainly of equity and debt

securities management evaluated historical rates of return achieved

on plan assets and the asset allocation of the plans input from

the Companys independent actuaries and investment consultants

and historical trends in long-term inflation rates Projected return

estimates made by such consultants are based upon broad equity

and bond indices

The discount rate reflects rate of return on high quality fixed

income investments that match the duration of the expected benefit

payments The Company has typically used returns on long-term

high quality corporate AA bonds as benchmark in establishing

this assumption The discount rate is reviewed annually

Discount rate

Expected long-

term return on

plan assets

Rate of

compensation

increase

US Plans

2010 2009 2000

Equity securities

Debt securities

Non-US Plnnn Other

2010 2009 2008 Total

US Plans Non-US Plans

2010 2909 2019 2009

54% 53% 46% 51%

43% 46% 43% 47%

3% 1% 11% 2%

lOOn/n 100% 100% 10O%

Plan Assets The Companys investment policy for its pension

plans is to balance risk and return through diversified portfolios of

equity instruments fixed income securities and short-term invest

ments Maturities for fixed income securities are managed such

that sufficient
liquidity exists to meet near-term benefit payment

obligations For US pension plans the weighted average target

range allocation of assets was 3872 percent with equity man

agers 3058 percent with fixed income managers and 1-3 percent

in cash The asset allocation is reviewed regularly and portfolio

US Plans Non-US Plans investments are rebalanced to the targeted allocation when

2010 2009 2010 2009 considered appropriate

5.35% 5.85% 5.73% 7.24% The Companys pension plan weighted average asset allocation

as of December 31 2010 for US plans and non-US plans and as of

2.75% 2.75% 3.79% 4.12% December 31 2009 for US plans and for non-US plans is as follows

pension plans

The following weighted average assumptions were used

to determine the Companys net periodic benefit cost for the
Asset Category

5.85% 6.05% 6.20% 7.24% 8.63% 6.74%

7.25% 7.25% 7.25% 7.37% 7.650/n 7.25%

235% 2.75% 2.75% 4.12% 5.30% 4.39%
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The fair values of the Companys plan assets by asset category

and level are as follows

Asset Category FairValue Measurements at December 31 201t

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant

Active Markets for Observable Unobservable

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

in millions Lesell Level Level Total

US plans

Equity index

USNI 82 82

lnternational1 26 26

Real estate

Fixed income index

Intermediate bond0 16 16

Long bondm 71 71

Cash1

Total US plans $7 $197 $204

Non-US plans

Equity index

US 21 21

Canada1 29 29

lnternationalt 22 22

Real estat

Fixed income index

Long bond1 67 67

Other1 10 10

Cash

Total Non-US Plans $7 $150 $157

All significant pension plan assets are held in collective trusts

by the Companys US and non-US plans the Plan The fair values

of shares of collective trusts are based upon the net asset values

of the funds reported by the fund managers as of the balance sheet

date llevel inputs This may produce fair value calculation that

may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future

fair values Furthermore while the Plan believes its valuation methods

are appropriate and consistent with those of other market partici

pants the use of different methodologies could result in different

fair value measurement at the reporting date

In 2010 the Company made cash contributions of $31 million

and $8 million 1.0 its US and non-US pension plans respectively

The Company anticipates that in 2011 it will make cash contribu

tions of $8 million and $11 million to its US and non-US pension

plans respectively Cash contributions in subsequent years will

depend on number of factors including the performance of plan

assets The following benefit payments which reflect anticipated

future service as appropriate are expected to be made

tin millions US Plant Non-US Plans

2011 16 10

2012 16 10

2013 15 11

2014 15 12

2015 15 11

Years 20162020 91 67

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries also maintain

defined contribution plans The Company makes matching con

tributions to these plans based on percentage of employee

contributions Amounts charged to expense for defined corltri

bution plans totaled $8 million $6 million and $6 million in 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively

Postretirement Benefit Plans The Companys postretirement

benefit plans currently are not funded The information presented

below includes plans in the United States Brazil and Canada The

changes in the benefit obligations of the plans during 2010 and

2009 and the amounts recognized in the Companys Consolidated

Balance Sheets at December 31 2010 and 2009 are as follows

in millions 2010 2009

1This category consists of passively managed equity edna land that tracks the return

of large capitalizotion US equities

This category consists of passively managed equity eden fund that tracks an eden

of returns on inlerearional developed markvt stocks

Thin category consists of passively managed equity index fund that tracks us real

estate equity securities index that incisdes stocks of real estate investment trusts and

real estate operating companies

00 This category conuistu of passively managed fisvd incormn indes fand thot tracks the

return of intermediate duration US gonetnment arrd inveutmnrrt grade corporate bonds

vrTlris category consistent pausivsly managed fined income fund that hacks the return

of long duration US government and investment grade corporate bonds

Tlriu category represents cash or cash.rks instrsments

niThis category consists of passively nianaged equity index fund that tracks the ret urn

of leegn and rnidsinerl cnfifalreation eqsitics traded err theTornrrto Stock Encirange

elTlriu category conuiuts of passively savaged fixed income indeu fund tlrat trucks tile

irrtsmn of tire universe of canada government and inenutment grade corporate bands
01 This category consists a-tan investmunt prsduci provided up an imbalance company that

offers returns that are subject fn minimum guarantee

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation

At January

Service cost

Interest cost

Plan amendment

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Business combination

Foreign currency translation

At December31

Fair value of plan assets

Funded status

$66 $59

12

14

$88 $66

$88 $66
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The following weighted average assumptions were used to

determine the Companys net postretirement benefit cost

in millions 2010 2009

Current liabilities

Non current liabilities 85 64

Net amount recognized $88 $66

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive

loss consist of

in millions 2010 2009

Net actuarial loss $16 $13

Prior service cost

Net amount recognized $17 $14

Components of net periodic benefit cost and other

amounts recognized in other comprehensive income consisted

of the following

in millions 2010 2009 2009

Service cost $2 $2 $2

Interest cost

Amortization of actuarial loss

Net periodic benefit cost $8 $7 $6

The Company estimates that postretirement benefit expense for

2011 will include approximately $1 million relating to the amortiza

tion of its accumulated actuarial loss and
prior service cost included

in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31 2010

Changes in amounts recorded in other comprehensive income

for 2010 consist of

in millionsl

Net actuarial loss

Amortization of actuarial loss

Total recorded in other comprehensive income

Net periodic benefit Cost

Total recorded in other Comprehensive income

and net periodic benefit Cost $11

The following weighted average assumptions were used to

determine the Companys obligations under the postretirement plans

2010 2009 2005

Discount rate 6.22% 6.66% 6.58%

The discount rate reflects rate of return on high quality fixed

income investments that match the duration of expected benefit

payments The Company has typically used returns on long-term

high-quality corporate AA bonds as benchmark in establishing

this assumption.The discount rate is reviewed annually

The following assumptions were made in measuring the

Companys postretirement benefit obligation

2011 increase in per capita cost 7.50% 7.50% 10.00%

Ultimate trend 4.50% 5.00% 5.50%

Year ultimate trend reached 2028 2016 2020

In addition for Canada the Company assumed an increase

in the per capita cost of dental benefits of 4.0 percent per year

Note that the Canada London Union Plan is not affected by health

care trend rates

2010

One-percent increase in trend rate

Effect on service cost and interest cost components

Effect on year-end benefit obligations 11

One-percent decrease in trend rate

Effect on service cost and interest cost Components 11

Effect on year-end benefit obligations 191

Estimated Future Benefit Payments The following benefit

payments which reflect anticipated future service as appropriate

are expected to be made under the Companys postretlrement

benefit plans

in millions

2011 $3

2012

2013

2014

2015

Years 2016 2020 $27

The Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization

Act of 2003 provIdes federal subsidy to employers sponsoring

retiree health care benefit plans that provide benefit that is at least

actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part The Company receives

Medicare Part subsidy for the certain retirees The impact of the

Medicare Part subsidy is immaterial for benefit payment cashflows

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

consist of

US Canada Banil

in millions

Sensitivity to Trend Assumptions

Discount rate 5.69% 6.22%

2010 2009

50 CORN PRODUCTS INTERNATIONAL



NOTE 10 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Balance Sheets Supplementary information is set forth below

in millionsl 2010 2009

Accounts receivable net

Accounts receivable trade $623 $387

Accounts receivable other 125 65

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1131 12
Total accounts receivable net $735 $440

Inventories

Finished and in process $345 $176

Raw materials 266 150

Manufacturing supplies 67 68

Total inventories $678 $394

Accrued liabilities

Compensation expenses 98 40

Income taxes payable 41

Dividends payable 11 11

Accrued interest 19

Taxes payable other than income faxes 27 20

Other 60 26

Total accrued liabilities $256 $101

Non-current liabilities

Employees pension indemnity

retirement and other $196 $116

Other 44 26

Total non-current liabilities $240 $142

Statements of Income Supplementary information is set

forth below

in millions 2010 2009 2000

Other income expense net

Gain on investment

Gain from sale of land

Costs of terminated Bunge mergerr 16

Other 15

Other income expense net $10

Financing costs net

Interest expense net of

amounts capitalizedm $68 $33 43

Interest income Il

Foreign currency transaction

gains losses 91

Financing costs net $64 $38 29

On June 23 2008 the Company and Bunge Limited Range ovnoavced that the two

companies rod entered into definitive ogreemenl usdep which Bangs would acquire

Corn Products in an oil-stork transoctioeThe aggregate transsr.lion value based on the price

of Benges stock at that date woo approximately $4.8 billion including assumption of debt

Os November 10 2008 ito Companys toxrd of Directors withdrew its rer.ornmerrdation iv

faeor of the merger agreement aod recommended against adoption of the agreement On

the same day Bunges Board of Directors voted to terminate the merger agreement citing

the decoion of the Corn Products Boerd of Directors Lieder the terms of the agreement

tire Company reimbatsed Bange br $10 million of their expenses in coeneclion with the

proposed acqaisitioe In addition the Company incurred approeimately $6 million of

espeeses relating to the proposed tronsaction

50lnterent capitalized omoaeted to $3 million $7 million and $8 million is 20t0 200$ oed

2008 respectively

Statements of Cash Flow Supplementary information is set

forth below

in millionsf 2010 2009 2008

Interest paid $50 $47 46

Income taxes paid 98 82 108

Noncash investing and

financing activities

Assumption of debt in

connection with acquisition 11

Change in fair value and number of

shares of redeemable common stock

Natural Gas Purchase Agreement On January 20 2006

Corn Products Brazil CPO Brazil the Companys wholly-

owned Brazilian subsidiary entered into Natural Gas Purchase

and Sale Agreement the Agreement with Companhia de Gas

de Sao PaLilo Comgas Comgas Pursuant to the terms of

the Agreement Comgas supplies natural gas to the cogeneration

facility at CPO Brazils Mogi Guacu plant This agreement will

expire on March 31 2023 unless extended or terrrlirrated under

certain conditions specified in the Agreement During the term of

the Agreement CPO Brazil is obligated to purchase from Comgas

and Comgas is obligated to provide to CPO Brazil certain mini

mum quantities of natural gas that are specified in the Agreement

The price for such quantities of natural gas is determined pursuant

to formula set forth in the Agreement The price may vary based

upon gas commodity cost and transportation costs which are

adjusted annually the distribution margin which is set by the

BraziliSn Commission of Public Energy Services and the fluctuation

of exchange rates between the US dollar and the Brazilian real

We estimate that the total minimum expenditures by CPO Brazil

through the remaining term of the Agreement will he approximately

$228 million based on current exchange rates as of December 31

2010 and estimates regarding the application of the formula set

forth in the Agreement spread evenly over the remaining term of

the Agreement CPO Brazil will make payments of approximately

$19 million in each of the next five years in accordance with the

Agreement The amount of gas purchased under this Agreement for

the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was approxi

mately $24 million $21 million and $22 million respectively
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NOTE 11 REDEEMABLE COMMON STOCK

The Company had an agreement with certain common stockholders

collectively the holder relating to 500000 shares of our com

mon stock that provided the holder with the right to require us to

repurchase those common shares for cash Ni price equal to the

average of the closing per share market price of our common stock

for the 20 trading days immediately precedng the date that the

holder exercised the put option This put option was exercisable at

any time until January 2010 when it expired The shares associated

with the put option were classified as redeemable common stock

in our consolidated balance sheet prior to the expiration of the put

option The carrying value of the redeemable common stock was

$14 million at December 31 2009 Effective with the expiration of

the agreement the Company discontinued reporting the shares as

redeemable common stock and reclassified the $14 million from

redeemable common stock to additional paid-in capital

The carrying value of the redeemable common stock was

$14 million at December 31 2009 based on the average of the

closing per share market price of the Companys common stock

for the 20 trading days immediately preceding the December 31

2009 l$29.03 per sharel Adjustments to mark the redeemable

common stock to market value were recorded directly to addi

tional paid-in capital
in the equity section of the Companys

Consolidated Balance Sheets

NOTE 12 EQUITY

Preferred stock

The Company has authorized 25 million shares of $0.01 par value

preferred stock none of which were issued or outstanding as of

December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

Treasury Stock

The Company reacquired 51999 17191 and 18527 shares of its

common stock during 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively by both

repurchasing shares from employees under the stock incentive

plan and through the cancellation of forfeited restricted stock The

Company repurchased shares from employees at average purchase

prices of $33.53 $29.76 and $3396 or fair value at the date of

purchase during 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively All of the

acquired shares are held as common stock in treasury less shares

issued to employees under the stock incentive plan

On November 17 2010 the Board of Directors aLithorized an

extension of the Companys stock repurchase program permitting

the Company to purchase of up to million of its outstanding com

mon shares through November 30 2015 The stock repurchase

program was authorized by ihe Board of rron Nodhber

2007 and would have expired on November 20 2010 In 2010 the

Company repurchased 100000 common shares in open market

transactions at cost of approximately $4 million In 2009 the

Company repurchased 157508 common shares in open market

transactions at cost of approximately $3 million In 2008 the

Company repurchased 25000 common shares in open market

transactions at cost of approximately $1 million At December 31

2010 the Company had 4685392 shares available to be repur

chased under its program.The parameters of the Companys stock

repurchase program are not established solely with reference to

the dilLitive impact of shares issued under the Companys stock

ncentive plan However the Company expects that over time

share repurchases will offset the dilutive impact of shares issued

under the stock incentive plan

Set forth below is reconciliation of common stock share

activity for the years ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010

Issued Outstundig

Balance at

December 31 2007 75320 1569 500 73251

Issuance of restricted

stock as compensation 451 45

Issuance under incentive

and other plans 206 206

Stock options exercised 584 584

Purchase/acquisition

of treasury stock 43 43

Balance at

December 31 2008 75320 777 500 74043

Issuance of restricted

stock as compensation 841 84

Issuance under incentive

and other plans 147 147

Stock options exercised 287 287

Purchase/acquisition

of treasury stock 175 175

Balance at

December 31 2009 75320 434 500 74386

Issuance of restricted

stock as compensation 66 119 85

Issuance under incentive

and other plans 42 44

Stock options exercised 607 552 1159

Purchase/acquisition

oftreasurystock 151 1511

Expiration of put option

see Note 11 500 500

Balance at

December 31 2010 76035 12 76023

Shares of commors stock

irs thorroandsl

Held in Redeemable

Treasury Shares
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Share-based payments summary of stock option and restricted stock transactions

The Company has stock incentive plan SIP administered by

the compensation committee of its Board of Directors that provides

for the granting of stock options restricted stock and other stock-

based awards to certain key employees maximum of million

shares were originally authorized for awards under the SIP As of

December 31 2010 5.7 million shares were available for future

grants under the SIP Shares covered by awards that expire termi

nate or lapse will again he available for the grant of awards under

the SIP Total share-based compensation expense for 2010 was

$8 million net of income tax effect of $4 million.Total share-based

compensation expense for 2009 was $6 million net of income tax

effect of $4 millionTotal share-based compensation expense for

2008 was $9 million net of income tax effect of $4 million

The Company grants nonqualified options to purchase shares of

the Companys common stock The stock options have ten-year

life and are exercisable upon vesting which occurs evenly over

three-year period at the anniversary dates of the date of grant

Compensation expense is recognized on straight-line basis for

awards As of December 31 2010 certain of these nonqualified

options have been forfeited due to the termination of employees

The fair value of stock option awards was estimated at the

grant dates using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with

the following assumptions

2010 2009 2000

Expected life in years 5.8 5.3 5.3

Risk-free interest rate 2.7% 2.0% 2.9%

Expected volatility 33.1h 31.2% 27.0%

Expected dividend yield 1.9% 2.1% 1.2%

The expected life of options represents the weighted average

period of time that options granted are expected to be outstand

ing giving consideration to vesting schedules and the Companys

historical exercise patterns The risk-free interest rate is based on

the US Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant for

periods corresponding with the expected life of the options Expected

volatility is based on historical volatilities of the Companys common

stock Dividend yields are based on historical dividend payments.The

weighted average fair value of options granted during 2010 2009 and

2008 was estimated to be $8.41 $6.36 and $9.06 respectively

Weighted

Average

per Share

Exercise

Price for Shares of

Stock Option Stock Restricted

Price Range Options Stockishares in thousandsi

Outstanding at

December 31 2007 4193 $11.37 to $40.71 $22.30 166

Granted 813 33.82 to 38.79 34.32 46

Exercised/vested 584 11.37 to 34.93 19.66 19
Cancelled 52 25.83 to 34.36 33.69 14

Outstanding at

December3l2008 4.370 11.3lto 40.71 24.76 179

Granted 899 18.31 to 25.74 25.53 84

Exercised/vested 287 11.37 to 25.83 14.82 14

Cancelled 140 25.58 to 34.36 30.81 141

Outstanding at

December 31 2009 4842 11.37 to 40.71 25.32 235

Granted 828 28.75 to 33.63 28.95 30

Exercised/vested 1158 11.37 to 34.93 19.29 76
Cancelled 78 25.58 to 34.36 29.68

Outstanding at

December 31 2010 4434 $14.17 to $40.71 627.49 181

The intrinsic values of stock options exercised during 2010 2009

and 2008 were approximately $22 million $4 million and $14 million

respectively For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 cash received from the exercise of stock options was $22 mil

lion $4 million and $11 million respectively The excess income tax

benefit realized from share-based compensation was $6 million

$1 million and $5 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively As

of December 31 2010 the unrecognized compensation cost related

to non-vested stock options totaled $6 million which will be amor

tized over the weighted-average period of approximately one year

The following table summarizes information about stock

options outstanding at December 31 2010

Weighted

Average Average

Esercise Remaining

Options Price Contractual Options

Oottandino per Share Life Years Esercisoble

$12.22 to 16.28 193 $14.44 1.5 193 $14.44

$16.29 to 20.35 307 16.92 2.8 301 16.90

$20.36 to 2443 21.23 4.3 21.23

$24.44 to 28.50 1864 25.47 60 1355 25.42

$28.51 to 32.57 798 28.90 9.1 33 28.75

$32.58 to 36.64 1250 34.06 6.6 1045 34.01

$36.65 to 40.71 18 40.43 6.5 18 40.51

4434 $27.49 6.3 2949 $26.99

for the last three years follows

Stock Option

Shares

ishares in thousands

Raeoe of Exercise Prices

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

Per Share
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The number of options exercisable at December 31 2010

was 2.9 million

Stock options outstanding at December 31 2010 had an

aggregate intrinsic value of approximately $82 million and an average

remaining contractual life of 6.3 years Stock options exercisable

at December 31 2010 had an aggregate intrinsic value of approxi

mately $56 million and an average remaining contractual life of

5.2 years Stock options outstanding at December 31 2009 had

an aggregate intrinsic value of approximately $26 million and an

average remaining contractual life of 60 years Stock options exer

cisable at December 31 2009 had an aggregate intrinsic value of

approximately $23 million and an average remaining contractual

life of 4.9 years

In addition to stock options the Company awards shares of

restricted common stock to certain key employees The restricted

shares issued under the plan are subject to cliff vesting generally

after five years provided the employee remains in the service of

the Company Expense is recognized on straight-line basis over

the vesting period taking into account an estimated forfeiture rate

The fair value of the restricted stock is determined based upon

the number of shares granted and the quoted market price of the

Companys common stock at the date of the grant Compensation

expense pertaining to these awards was $3 million in 2010 $2 mil

lion in 2009 and $1 million in 2008

The following table summarizes restricted share activity for the

year ended December 31 2010

Weighted

Number of Average

Restricted FairValue

Shares per Sharesheres it thousands

Non-vested at December 31 2009 235 $29.60

Granted 30 3086

Vested 76 28.90

Cancelled 30.78

Non-vested at December 31 2010 181 $30.04

The weighted-average fair value of restricted stock granted in

2010 2009 and 2008 was $30.86 $25.85 and $34.36 respectively

The total fair value of restricted stock that vested in 2010 2009

and 2008 was $2 million $.3 million and $1 million respectively

As of December 31 2010 additional paid-in capital included

$2 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted

stock that will be amortized on weighted-average basis over 2.0

years The recognized compensation cost related to restricted stock

totaling $3 million at December 31 2010 is included in share-based

payments subject to redemption in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Other share-based awards under the SIP

Under the compensation agreement with the Board of Directors at

least 50 percent of directors compensation is awarded based on

each directors election to receive such compensation in the form

of restricted stock units which track investment returns to changes

in value of the Companys common stock with dividends being

reinvested Stock units under this plan vest immediately The com

pensation expense relating to this plan included in the Consolidated

Statements of Income for 2010 2009 and 2008 was not material

At December 31 2010 there were approximately 216000 share

units outstanding under this plan at carrying value of approxi

mately $6 million

The Company has long term incentive plan for officers under

which awards thereunder are classified as equity The ultimate

payment of the performance shares will he based 50 percent on

the Companys stock performance as compared to the stock per

formance of peer group and 50 percent on return on capital

employed versus the target percentage Compensation expense

for the stock performance portion of the plan is based on the fair

value of the plan that is determined on the day the plan is estab

lished The fair value is calculated using Monte Carlo simulation

model Compensation expense for the return on capital employed

portion of the plan is based on the probability of attaining the tar

get percentage goal and is reviewed at the end of each reporting

period The total compensation expense for these awards is being

amortized over three-year service period Compensation expense

relating to these awards included in the Consolidated Statements

of Income for 2010 2009 and 2008 was $3 million $1 million and

$5 million respectively As of December 31 2010 the unrecognized

compensation cost relating to these plans was $4 million which

will be amortized over the remaining requisite service periods of

to years This amount will vary each reporting period based

on changes in the probability of attaining the goal.The recognized

compensation cost related to these awards totaling $5 million at

December 31 2010 is included in share-based payments subject

to redemption in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

summary of accumulated other comprehensive income loss for the

years ended December 31 2008 2009 and 2010 is presented below

Deferred

Currency Gain/host

Translation on Hedging

Adjustment Activities

Accumulated

Pension Unrealized Other

Liability Gain Loss on Comprehensive

Adiustment Investment lncome/Lossin millions

Balance December 31 2007 $1132 45 529 5115

Losses on cash flow hedges net of income tax effect of $77 127 127

Amount of gains on cash flow hedges reclassified to

earnings net of income tax effect of $63 105 105
Actuarial loss on pension and other postretirement obligations net of income tax 15 15
Losses related to pension and other postretirement obligations reclassified to earnings

net of income tax

Unrealized loss on investment net of income tax

Currency translation adjustment 231 12311

Balance December 31 2008 5363 $1187 $142 523 S5941

Losses on cash flow hedges net of income tax effect of $28 1451 145

Amount of losses on cash flow hedges reclassified to earnings net of income tax effect of $117 199 199

Actuarial loss on pension and other postretirernent obligations settlements and plan

amendments net of income tax IS

Losses related to pension and other postretirement obligations reclassified to earnings

net of income tax

Currency translation adjustment 135 135

Balance December 31 2009 $1228 33 $1451 $12 5308

Gains on cash flow hedges net of income tax effect of $12 20 20

Amount of losses on cash flow hedges reclassified to earnings net of income tax effect of $34 54 54

Actuarial loss on pension and other postretirement obligations settlements and plan

amendments net of income tax

Losses related to pension and othey postietirernent obligations reclassified to earnings

net of income tax

Currency translation adjustment 48 48

Balance December 31 2010 5180 41 $149 $121 $1190
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NOTE 13 MEXICAN TAX ON BEVERAGES

SWEETENED WITH HFCS

On January 2002 discriminatory tax on beverages sweetened

with high fructose corn syrup HFCSl approved by the Mexican

Congress late in 2001 became effective In response to the enact

ment of the tax which at the time effectively ended the use of

HFCS for beverages in Mexico the Company ceased production

of HFCS 55 at its San Juan del Rio plant one of its three plants in

Mexico Over time the Company resumed production and sales of

HFCS and by 2006 had returned to levels attained prior to the impo

sition of fhe tax as result of certain customers having obtained

court rulings exempting them from paying the tax The Mexican

Congress repealed this tax effective January 2007

On October 21 2003 the Company submitted on its own

behalf and on behalf of its Mexican affiliate CPlngredientes S.A de

CV previously known as Compania Proveedora de Ingredientesl

Request for Institution of Arbitration Proceedings Submitted Pursuant

to Chapter 11 of the North American FreeTrade Agreement lNAFTAl

the Requestl.The Request was submitted to the Additional Office

of the International Centre for Settlement of Investment Disputes

and was brought against the United Mexican States In the Request

the Company asserted that the imposition by Mexico of discrimi

natory tax on beverages containing HFCS in force from 2002

through 2006 breached various obligations of Mexico under the

investment protection provisions of NAFTA The case was bifur

cated into two phases liability and damages and hearing on

liability was held before Tribunal in July 2006 In Decision dated

January 15 2008 the Tribunal unanimously held that Mexico had

violated NAFTA Article 1102 National Treatment by treating bever

ages sweetened with HFCS produced by foreign companies

differently than those sweetened with domestic sugar In July

2008 hearing regarding the quantum of damages was held

before the same Tribunal The Company sought damages and

pre- and post-judgment interest totaling $288 million through

December 31 2008

In an award rendered August 18 2009 the Tribunal awarded

damages to CPlngredientes in the amount of $58.4 million as

result of the tax and certain out-of-pocket expenses incurred by

CPlngredientes together with accrued interest On October 12009

the Company submitted to the Tribunal request for correction

of this award to avoid effective double taxation on the amount of

the award in Mexico

On March 26 2010 the Tribunal issued correction of its

August 18 2009 damages award While the amount of damages

had not changed the decision made the damages payable to

Corn Products International Inc instead of CPlngredientes

On January24 and 25 2011 the Company received cash

payments totaling $58.4 million from the Government of the

United Mexican States pursuant to the corrected award Mexico

made these payments pursuant to an agreement with Corn Products

International that provides for terminating pending post-award liti

gation and waiving post-award interest The $58.4 million award

will be recorded in the Companys first quarter 2011 consolidated

financial statements

NOTE 14 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in one business segment the production

and sale of starches and sweeteners for wide range of industries

and is managed on geographic regional basis Its North America

operations include businesses in the United States Canada and

Mexico The Companys South America operations include busi

nesses in Brazil Colombia Ecuador Peru and the Southern Cone

of South America which includes Argentina Chile and Uruguay

The Companys Asia/Africa operations include businesses in

Korea Pakistan Malaysia China Japan Indonesia the Philippines

Singapore India Australia and New Zealand and tapioca root pro

cessing operations in Thailand The Companys Europe operations

include businesses in the United Kingdom and Germany As

result of the acquisition of National Starch the Company has

added new region entitled Europe
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North America

South America

Asia/Africa

Europe

Total

Operating income

North America

South America

Asia/Africa

Europe

Corporate

Acquisition costs

$2439 $2268

1241 1012

617 392

70

$4367 $3672

249 177

163 138

62 17

51 54

35

25 125

27

$2370

1120 Net Sales

454 On millions

United States

$3944
Mexico

Brazil

313
Canada

151
Argentina

38
Korea

Others

52
Total

16

44 Long-lived Assets

in mniilionsi

$1987 United States

808 Mexico

412
Brazil

Canada

$3207 Thailand

Argentina

81
Germany

United Kingdom

12 Korea

Others

128
Total

2010 2009 2008

$1157 $1124 $1221

863 756 750

662 522 594

419 388 399

243 186 200

235 159 187

788 537 593

$4367 $3672 $3944

2010 2009 2008

$1215 500 527

423 398 397

421 350 261

197 187 165

166 46 43

155 151 149

144

95

86 85 201

345 187 163

$3247 $1904 $1906

fin millions 2010 2009 2008 The following table presents net sales to unaffiliated customers

Net sales to unaffiliated customers by country of origin for the last three years

Impairment/restructuring charges

Charge for fair value mark-up

of acquired inventory

Costs of terminated merger

Total

Total assets

339 153

The following table presents long-lived assets by country at

December 31

North America $2697 $1651

South America 1174 999

Asia/Africa 836 302

Europe 364

Total $5071 $2952

Depreciation and amortization

North America 96 83

South America 42 36

Asia/Africa 15 11

Europe

Total 155 130

Capital expenditures

North America 73 75 117

South America 65 54 92

Asia/Africa 18 17 19

Europe

Total 159 146 228

Sales between geographic regions for each of rho periods preeerrted are irrsipoificarrr arrd

therefore are not preoerrted

For 2010 includes $18 million write-off of impaired aSsets in CIrile and charge of $8 million

principally consisting of employee severance and related benefit costs associated with the

termination of employees hr Chile For 2009 includes $119 million write-off of goodwill

perfuming to the Companys operations in South Korea aSS million write-off of impaired

assets in Nortlr America and $1 million charge for employee onverarice and related benefit

Costs primarily attribatable to the termination of employees in our Asia/Africa region
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Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Summarized quarterly financial data is as follows

in millions

except per share amounts 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd an 4th Otr

2010

Net sales before shipping

and handling costs 995 $1066 $1083 $1488

Less shipping

and handling costs 58 63 64 81

Net sales 937 $1003 $1019 $1407

Gross profit 143 166 172 246

Net income

attributable to DPI 43 37 37 52

Basic earnings per common

share of DPI $058 0.49 049 068

Diluted earnings per

common share of CPI $0.57 0.48 0.48 0.67

2009

Net sales before shipping

and handling costs 881 966 51027 $1016

Less shipping and

handling costs 50 54 56 57

Netsales $831 912 971 959

Gross profit 93 112 153 163

Net income loss

attributable to CPI 17 185 53 56

Basic earnings loss per

common share of DPI $0.22 1.13 0.70 0.75

Diluted earnings loss per

common share of CPI $0.22 1.13 0.70 0.74

nlnciutex fourth quarter costs of 527 million 018 million utter-tan or 30.23 per diluted

common share relating to the sale of National Starch irrverrtory that was adjusted to fuir

value at the acquisition date in accordance mith business combination accounting rules

and acquisition costs of $15 million 1511 million after-tax or S0.tS per diluted common

share pertainirrg to tIre purciruxe of National 5turch

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH

ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISC LO SURE

Not applicable

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management including our Chief Executive Officer and our

Chief Financial Officer performed an evaluation of the effectiveness

of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2010

Based on that evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief

Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and proce

dures lal are effective in providing reasonable assurance that all

matehal information required to be filed in this report has been

recorded processed summarized and reported within the time

periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and IbI are designed

to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports

we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended is accumulated and communicated to our management

including our principal executive and principal financial officers as

appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial

reporting during the quarter ended December 31 2010 that have

materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect

our internal control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaIning

adequate internal control over financial reporting This system of

internal controls is designed to provide reasonable assurance that

assets are safeguarded and transactions are properly recorded and

executed in accordance with managements authorization

Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of

our assets

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of our management and directors

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of our

assets that could have material effect on our financial statements

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting based on the framework of

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ICOSOI

The scope of the assessment included all of the subsidiaries of

the Company except for National Starch which was acquired on

October 2010 The consolidated net sales of the Company for

the year ended December 31 2010 were $4.37 billion of which

National Starch represented $351 million The consolidated total

assets of the Company as of December 31 2010 were $5.07 billion

of which National Starch represented $1.95 billion Based on the

evaluation management concluded that our internal control over

financ4l reporting was effective as of December 31 2010 The effec

tiveness of our internal control over financial reporting has been

audited by KPMG LLP an independent registered public accounting

firm as stated in their attestation report included herein

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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Part III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information contained under the headings Proposal Election

of Directors The Board and Committees and Section 16a

Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Companys

definitive proxy statement for the Companys 2011 Annual Meeting

of Stockholders the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by

reference.The information regarding executive officers called for

by Item 401 of Regulation S-K is included in Part of this report

under the heading Executive Officers of the Registrant The

Company has adopted code of ethics that applies to its principal

executive officer principal financial officer and controller The code

of ethics is posted on the Companys Internet website which is

found at www.cornproducts.com.The Company intends to include

on its website any amendments to or waivers from provision of

its code of ethics that applies to the Companys principal executive

officer principal financial officer or controller that relates to any

element of the code of ethics definition enumerated in Item

406b of Regulation S-K

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained under the headings Executive

Compensation and Compensation Committee Report in

the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN

BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information contained under the headings Equity Compensation

Plan Information as of December 31 2010 and Security Ownership

of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management in the Proxy

Statement is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED

TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information contained under the headings Review and Approval

of Transactions with Related Persons Certain Relationships and

Related Transactions and Independence of Board Members in

the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information contained under the heading 2010 and 2009 Audit

Firm Fee Summary in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein

by reference

Part IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Item 15a1 Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statements see Item of the Table of Contents of

this report

Item 15a2 Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because the

information either is not required or is otherwise included in the

consolidated financial statements and notes thereto

Item 15a3 Exhibits

The following list of exhibits includes both exhibits submitted with

this Form 10-K as filed with the SEC and those incorporated by

reference from other
filings

Exhibit No Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the

Company filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Registration

Statement on Form 10 File No 1-13397

3.2 Certificate of Elimination of Series Junior Participating Preferred

Stock of Corn Products International Inc filed on May 26 2010

as Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Currant Report on Form 8-K

dated May 19 2010 File No 1-3397

3.3 Amendments to Amender and Restated of Incorporation

are incorporated by reference to Appendix to the Companys

Proxy Statement for its 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

filed on April 2010 File No 1-3397

33.i Amended By-Laws of the Company filed on March 21 2007 as

Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Fornr 8-K dated

March 21 2007 File No 1-13387

Stockholder Agreenierit dated as of Deuembei 1998 among

the Company Arancie Industrial S.A de CV and Promociones

Industriales Aralia S.A de CV filed on October 21 1998 as

Exhibit to the Companys Current on Form 8-K dated

October 21 1998 File No 1-13397

12 Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of September 2010

among Corn Products International Inc as borrower the lenders

front time to lime party thereto .JPMorgao Chase Bank National

Association as administrative agent Rank of Montreal as syndi

cation agent and Bank of America NA and Citibank NA as

co-documentation agents filed on September 2010 as Exhibit 4.1

to the Companys Current Report on Forni 8-K dated September

2010 File No 1-13397

4.3 Amendment No to Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of

September 29 2010 among Coin Products International Inc as

borrower the lenders from time to time party thereto JPMorgan

Chase Bank National Association as administrative agent Bank

of Montreal as syndication agent and Bank of America NA and

Citibank N.A as co-documentation agents filed on November

2010 es Exhibit 1.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

10-0 for the quarter ended September 30 2010
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4.4 Private Shelf Agreement dated as of March 25 2010 by

and between Corn Products International Inc and Prudential

Investment Management Inc filed on Msy 2010 as Exhibit

4.10 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the

quarter
ended March 31 2010

45 lrrdentuie Agreement dated as 01 August 18 1999 between

the Company and The Bank of New York asTrustee filed on

August 27 1999 as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1-13397

11Gm Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 10 2007 between

Corn Products International Inc and The Bank of New York Trust

Company N.A as trustee filed on April 10 2007 as Exhibit 4.3

to the Companys Current Report on Form 2-K dated April 10

2007 File No 1-13397

4.7 Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 10 2007 between

Corn Products International Inc and The Bank of New York Trust

Company NA as trustee filed on April 10 2007 as Exhibit 4.4

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 10

2007 File No 1-13397

4.8 Fifth Supplemental Indenture dmted September 11 2010 between

Corn Products International Inc and The Bank of New York Mellon

Trust Company NA las successor trustee to The Bank of NewYorkl

as trustee filed on September 20 2010 as Exhibit 4.1 to the

Companys Curront Report on Form 8-K dated September 14

2010 File No 1-13397

4951 Sixth Supplemental Indenture dfed September 17 2010 between

Corn Products Intemnafinnal Inc and The Bank of NewYork Mellrrrr

Trust Company NA las successor trustee toThe Bank of NewYnrkl

as trustee filed on September 20 2010 as Exhibit 4.2 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated Sepfember 14

2010 File No 1-93397

4101 Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated September 17 2010

between Corn Products International Inc and The Bank of

New York Mellon Irust Company NA las successor trustee to

Ire Barrk ol Newyorkl as trustee tiled on September 20 2010

as Exhibit 4.3 to tIre Comparrys Current Report on Form 8-K

dated September 14 2010 File No 1-13397

10.1i Stock Incentive Plan as effect va May 19 2010 is incorporated by

reference to Appendix to the Companys Proxy Statement for

its 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed on April 2010

File No 1-13397

102515 Deferred Stock tlnif Plan of the Company

10.3i Form of Severance Agreement entered into by each of the Named

Executive Officers other than Jorge Fiamenghi filed on May

2008 as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

10-0 for the quarter ended March 31 2008 File No 1-13397

104 International Share and Business Sale Agreement dated as

of June 19 2010 between Akzo Nobel NV and Corn Products

International Inc filed on September 21 2010 as Exhibit 4.1 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19

2010 File No 1-13397

10.b Form of lnderrinrficatrun Agreement entered into by each of the

members of the Companys Board of Directors and the Named

Executive Officers

10G Deferred Compensation Plan for Outside Directors of the

Company lAmended and Restated as of September 19 2001
filed as Exhibit 4ldl to the Companys Registration Statement on

Form S-8 File No 333-75844 as amended by Amendment No

dated December 2004 filed as Fxhihit 10.6 to the Companys

Annual Report nn Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2004 File No 1-13397

10.7 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as effective

February 2011

10.B1 Executive Life Insurance Plan

109r51.i Deferred Compensation Plan as amended by Amniendmernl No

filed as Exhibit 1021 to tIre Companys Arirlu3l Report on Forrrr

10-K/A for lire year ended December 31 2001 File No 1-1339/

1010 Annual Incentive Plan as effective May 18 2010 is incorporated

by reference to Appendix to the Companys Proxy Statenrent

for its 2010 Annual Meeting of Stocktrolders filed on April

2010 File No 1-3397

lO1l Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for rise

in connection with awards under the Stock Incentive Plan filed

on February 77 7009 as Fxhibit 10.11 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008

File No 1-13397

10.12 Tax Sharing Agreement dated December 1997 between the

Company and Bestfoocls

10l3 Employee Benefits Agreement dated December 1997 between

the Conrpany arid Bestloods filed as Exhibit 4.E Ia the Cornrpsnys

Registratiorr Statement on Form S-8 File No 333-43525

10.9 41ii Executive Life Insurance Plan Compensation Committee Summary

filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2004 File No 1-1 3397

10.151 Form of Executive Life Insurance Plan Participation Agreement

and Collateral Assignment entered into by the Named Executive

Officers with the exception of lorge Fiamenghi filed as Fxhihit

10.15 to the Companys Annual Repnrt on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 7004 File No 1-13397

10.16i Form of Performance Share Award Agreement for use in

connection with awards under the Stock Incentive Plan filed on

February 11 2011 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report

on Form 8-K dated February 2011 File No 1-13397
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10.170 Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option and Option Award

Agreement for use in connection with awards under the Stock

Incentive Plan filed on February 11 2011 as Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys Current Report on Form B-K dated February 2011

File No 1-13397

10.18 Natural Gas Purchase and Sale Agrcemerit between Corn Pruducla

Erasil-lnqredientes Industries Ltda arid Companhia de Ga de

Sao Paulo-Comgas filed as Exhibit 10.17 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005

File No 1-13397

10.19 Forrrr of Separation Agreement dated as of December 11 2007

between the Company and Jeffrey Hebble filed on May 2000

as Exhibit 10.19 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0

for the
quarter ended March 31 2008 File No 1-13397

1020i Form of Severance Agreement entered into by the Company and

Jorge Framenghi filed on May 2003 as Exhibit 10.20 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended

March 31 2008 File No 1-13397

10.21 Letter of Agreerrrent dated as of April 2009 between the

Company arid Ileno Gurdori filed un August 2009 as Exhibit

10.21 to the Cuiuiper rys Quarterly liepur ur Ior ri 100 or tIre

quarter ended June 30 2009 file No 1-13397

1022 Consulting Agreement dated as of April 27 2009 between the

Company and Samuel Scott Ill tiled on August 2009 as

Exhibit 10.22 to the Cornprrnys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0

for the
quarter

ended June 30 2009 File No 1-13397

10.23 Form of Notice rrf Grant of Restricted Stock Units and Restricted

Stock Units Award Agreement fnr rise or connection with awards

under the Stock Incentive Plan filed on February 11 2011 as

Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated

February 72011 File No 1-13397

oLe oonrroemiai separation ancr oerrerai nerease oarecr as os

January 26 2010 by and betweera the Company and Jaraaes

Hirrihal tiled on May 2010 as Lxhibit 1024 to ttre

Conrprrnrys Quarterly Hepcnrt on Form 100 for the quarter

ended March 31 2010

1025i Letter of Agreement ctated as of April 2010 between tho

Compony and Diane Frisch filed on August 2010 us Exhibit

1O.2t to the Companys Quarterly Report err Form 10-0 for

the quarter ended June 30 2010

10.26 Fxeriutrve Severance Agreement dated err of May 2010

between the Company rind Diane Frioch filed on August

2010 as Exhibit 10.25 to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 30 2010

10.271 Confidentiality and Noncompete Agreemerat dated as of July 73

2010 between Corn Products Brasil-Ingredientes lirdustrias Ltda

the Company and Jorge Fiamenghr filed November 2010 as

Exhibit 10.26 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0

for the quarter ended Septenaber 30 2010

1U.2850 Consulting Arjmemenl durtecf as of July 23 2010 betweerr the

Company arid Jorge Fiamenghi filed November 2010 as

Exhibit 10.27 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0

for the quarter ended Septenaber 30 2010

10.29 term Sheet dated as of July 23 2010 fcrr Employment Agreements

between the Company and Julio dos Reis and Productos de Maiz

S.A and bIb rtos Reis filed on November 2010 as Exhibit 10.20

to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the Quartet

ended September 31 2010

1030 Letter of Agreement dated as of September 23 201C1 between

the Company and James Zallie

10.31 Employment Agreement dated as of July 31 2009 by and

between National Starclr LLC and lames Zallie

1032 National Stuirrifi ftC Severance Flair Ior IelI irrie Aririf hdrtiirrre

NunUnion Errrpluyees ellective April 2008

11.1 Ear mr ga Per SI rare Cui
ipu

tatiui

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Errrnings to Fixed Charges

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

231 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountinçj Firm

2/1.1 fiOwor ot Attorney

31.1 CEO Section 302 Certification Pursuant to the Sarbaraes-Qxley

Act of 2002

31.2 CEO Section 202 Certification Pursuant to the Sarbanes-Qxley

Act of 2002

37.1 CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title

18 of the United States Code as created by the Sarbanes-Oxley

Iscl or xuuu

32.2 CEO Certification Pursusirt to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title

18 of the United States Code as created by the Sat banes-Qxley

Act of 2002

101 The followrrag Snancial infomnratiorr from Corra Products

International Inc.s Annual Report era Form 10-K for the year

errded Decerirber 31 2010 formatted ri Exterrsible Business

Reportirrg Language IXBHLI Ii tire Consolidated Staterrierits of

lnuoine in tIre Cur rriulidatud Balairue Sliee Is Ni the Cur isolidrted

Statements of Comprehensive Income liv the Consolidated

Statements of Equity and Redeemable Equity lvi the Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows arid lvi the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements tagged as block text.1

Itteorporared herein by reterence as indicared irr rhe exhibr descrrrriorr

Incorporared herein by retererrce to the eohibiro fiied wirh the Cerrrntatrys Annual Report

00 Forro re-K or the year ended December 3r rosi

ii Management conrraxt or cempertoarory pins or rirrangement reqrored ro be filed as air

exhibit to tIns form pnrronraer to item lelbI of rhit report

Pun s000t to Rure 4OtT of Regniatiori S-T the interactive Data Fiies sm Exltibit lot hereto are

deemed riot filed or parr of registration otateroert or prospectus tom purposes ot Sections

11 012 of trre Securities Actor 1rr33 as Amended ale deenried riot tiied for rmsrrrroses of

Section lOot tim Socniritios Bcirarrge Act ot 1934 as Arrnxnrded anrd etirnrwiurr are riot sobiect

tnt Irarririty undrr trrosn sections
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SIGN AT RE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned there-

unto duly authorized on the 28th day of February 2011

Corn Products International Inc

By /s llene Gordon

lIens Gordon

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 this Report has been signed below by the following persons

on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities indicated and on the

28th day of February 2011

Signature title

Chairman President

Chiof Executive Officer and DiioctorIs Ilono Gordon

Ilonc Gordon

Is Cheryl Beebe Chief Financial Officer

Cheryl Beebe

/s/ Robin Kornmeyer Controller

Robin Kornmeyer

Richard Almeida Director

Richard Almeida

Luis Aranquren-Trellez Director

Lois Aranguien-Irellea

ePaul Hanrahan Director

Paul Hanrahan

Karen l-londiicks Diroctor

Karen Hendricks

Wayne Hewett Director

Wayne Hewett

Gregory Kenny Director

Gregory Kenny

Barbara Klein Director

Barbara Klein

James Ringler Direclor

James Ringler

eDwayne Wilson Director

Dwayno Wilson

By /s Mary Ann Hvnes

Mary Ann Hynes

Attorney-in-fact

EXHIBIT 11.1

Computation of Net Income per Share of Common Stock

in milrorrs exceet per shore dotof Year Ended December 31 2910

Basic

Shares outstanding at the start of the period 74.9

Weighted average of new shares issued

during the period 0.2

Weighted average of treasury shares issued

during the period for exercise of stock options

and other stock compensation plans 0.6

Weighted average of treasury shares purchased

during the period 10.1

Average shares outstanding basic 75.6

Effect of Dilutive Securities

Average dilutive shares outstanding assuming dilution 1.2

Average shares outstanding diluted 76.8

Net income attributable to CM $169.2

Net income per common share of CPI Basic 2.24

Net income per common share of CPI Diluted 2.20

EXHIBIT 12.1

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

in millions except ratios

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Income before income

taxes and earnings of

noncontrolling interests $275.5 $115.2 $404.8 $305.4 $197.1

Fixed charges 72.4 41.2 52.5 55.2 46.4

Capitalized interest 2.6 6.6 8.0 4.1 10.21

Total $345.3 $149.8 $449.3 $356.5 $233.3

Ratio of earnings

to fixed charges 4.77 3.64 8.56 6.46 5.03

Fixed charges

Interest expense on debt 69.4 38.8 50.2 52.5 43.8

Amortization of

discount on debt 1.6 1.3 0.8 1.1 1.0

Interest portion of

rental expense on

operating leases 1.4 1.1 1.5 1.6 1.6

Total 72.4 41.2 52.5 55.2 46.4

Being the principal executive officer the principal financial officer

the controller and majority of the directors of Corn Products

International Inc
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EXHIBIT 21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

The Registrants subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 are listed

below showing the percentage of voting securities directly or indi

rectly owned by the Registrant All other subsidiaries if considered

in the aggregate as single subsidiary would not constitute

signrficarit subsidiary

Almidones Quimicos internationales SA

Arrendadora Gefemesa S.A de CC

Bebinter S.A de CV
Bebidas Algo Mas S.A de C.V

Bedford Construction Company

Brunch Ii By

Biurioli IV B.V

Gait Investment Corp

Casco Inc

Casco Holding LLC

Colombia Millers Ltd

Corn Products Americas loldings Sari

Corn Products Chile-Inducorn S.A

Corn Products Brsstl Ingredientes lndustriais Lids

Corn Products Development Inc

Corn Products Fmplnyse Services SarI

Corn Products Espana 5.1

Corn Products Espana Holding LLC

Corn Products Finance LLC

Corn Products Germany GmbH

Corn Products Global Holding Sari

Corn Products International of Argo Inc

Corn Products Kenya Limited

Corn Products Korea Inc

Corn Products Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Corn Products Mauritius IPtyl Ltd

Corn Products Netherlands Holding Sari

Corn Products Puerto Rico Inc

Corn Products Sales Corporation

Corn Products Southern Cone S.A

Corn Products Thailand Co Ltd

Corn Products Trading Co Ltd

Corn Products UK Finance LP

Corn Products UK Limited

Corn Products Venezuela C.A

CPD Holding LLC

CPlngredients Limited

CPlngredients LLC d/b/a GTC Nutrition

State or

Country of

incorporation

Or Organization

100 Costa Rica

100 Mexico

100 Mexico

100 Mexico

too New Jersey

100 The Netherlands

100 lie Netherlands

tOO Delawrrie

100 Canada

100 Delaware

100 Delaware

100 Luxembourg

100 Chile

100 Brazil

100 Delaware

100 Lttxemboung

100 Spain

100 Delaware

100 Delaware

100 Germany

100 Luxembourg

100 Delaware

100 Kenya

100 Korea

100 Malaysia

100 Mauritius

100 Luxembourg

100 Delaware

100 Delaware

100 Argentina

100 Thailand

100 Singapore

100 England and Wales

100 England and Wales

1011 Vene7uela

100 Delaware

100 England and Wales

100 Colorado

Percentage of VOtifl9

uecurities directly

or indirectly owned

by the Registrant1

CPlrngredierrtes L.A de CV
CP lrigrsitients India Private Limited

CPI Flavors Thailandl Co Ltd

CPI Ingiedients South Africa lPtyl Ltd

Crystal Car Line Inc

Deutsche ICI Gmbl

Derivados dcl Maiz S.A

Feed Products Limited

Globe Ingredients Nigeria Limited

GroenField Fthanni Inc

Hispenri-American Cnmriany Inc

ICI Meunitinis lHoldingsl Limited

lCl Servicios Mexico SA de CV

lndumaiz del Ecuador S.A

Industrinis del Maiz S.A Corn Products Andina

Inter-National Starch Inc

Inversiones Latinoamericanas S.A

National Starch Chemical GmbH

National Starch Chemical Industrial Ltda

National Starch Chemical ithailandi Ltd

National Starch LLC

National Starch Mexico LA de CV

National Starch Pie Ltd

National Starch Pty Limited

National Starch Servicios SA de CV

National Starch Specialties Shanghail Ltd

National Starch ULC

Nippon NSC Ltd

N-Starch Srln Bhd

Productns de Mars S.A

Productns de Maiz Uruguay S.A

PT National Starch

Rafhan Maize Products Co Ltd

Raymond White River LLC

Shouguang Golden Far East

Modified Starch Co Ltd

The Chicago Peoria ansi Western

Railway Connpany

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

8.6

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

too

100

70.3

100

Mexico

rrdra

Thailand

South Africa

Illinois

Germany

Peru

New Jersey

Nigeria

Canada

Delaware

Mauritius

Mexico

Ecuador

Colombia

Philippines

Delaware

Germany

Brazil

thailand

Delaware

Mexico

Singapore

Australia

Mexico

China

Canada

Japan

Malaysia

Argentina

Uruguay

Indonesia

Pakistan

Indiana

51 China

100 illinois

With respect ro eel-rail eornparries shores irr tire lames ot rronrirrees arrd quarfyirrg sirares

in rhr names of directors are ineiuded in the shove iierceniaers
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EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors

Corn Products International Inc

We consent to the incorporation 4y reference
ri

the egisti alien

statements on Form S-8 Nos 33343525 333-71573 333-758/14

333-33100 333-105660 333-113746 333-129498 333-143516

333-160612 and 333-171310 and Form 8-3 No 333-141870 of

Corn Products International Inc of our report dated February 282011

with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Corn Products

International Inc and subsidAries as of December 31 2010 and

2009 and the related consolidated statements of income com

prehensive income equity and redeemable equity and cash flows

for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31

2010 and the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2010 which report appears in this

December 31 2010 annual report on Form 10K of Corn Products

International Inc

Our report dated February 28 2011 on the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010

contains an explanatory paragraph that states the scope of man

agements assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting includes all of the Companys consolidated

subsidiaries except for National Starch business acquired by the

Company on October 2010 Our audit of internal control over

financial reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation of

the internal control over the financial reporting of National Starch

Is KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

February 28 2011

EXHIBIT 24.1

Corn Products International Inc

Power of Attorney

Form 10-K for the FiscalYear Fnded December 31 2010

KNOW Ai MEN Or EHESE PFrti-rat as director of

Corn Products International Inc Delaware corporation the

Company do hereby constitute and appoint Mary Ann Hynes

as my true and lawful attorney-rn-fact arid agent for me and in my

name place and stead to sign the Artnual Report on Form 10-1

of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31 2010

and any and all amendments thereto and to file the same and

other documents in connection theressith with the Securities and

Exchange Commission granting unto said attorney-in-fact full

power and authrrrity to do and perform each and every act and

thing requisite and necessary to be done in the premises as fully

to all intents and purposes as might or could do in person

hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-rn-fact may

lawfully do or cause to he done by virtue thereof

IN WITNESS WHEREOFi have executed this instrument this 28th

day of February 2011

/s Richard Almeida

Richard Almeida

/s tue Aranguren-Irellez
__________________

Aranguren-lrellez

Is llene Gordon

Ilerre Gordon

Is Paul Hrnnrahan

Paul Hanrahrnn

Is Karon lendricks

Karen londricks

/s Wayne Hewett

Wayne Hewett

Is Gregory Kenny

Gregory Kenny

Is Barbara Klein

Barbara Klein

Is Jenies Rrngler

Jarrres Rirrgler

Is Dwayne Wilson

Dwayne Wilson
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

llene Gordon certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of

Corn Products International Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue

statement of material fact or omit to state material fact neces

sary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with

respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other

financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and

cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented

in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for

establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused

such disclosure controls and procedures to he desgned under our

supervision to ensure that material information
relating to the reg

istrant inclLiding its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to

us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused

such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under

our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

ci Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure

controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such

evaluation and

di Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal

control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants

most recent fiscal quarter the Registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is rea

sonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed

based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over finan

cial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee

of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent functional

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design

or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

hi Any fraud whether or not material that involves management

or other employees who have significant role in the registrants

internal control over financial reporting

Date February 28 2011

Is llene Gordon

Ilene Gordon

Chaii man President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Cheryl Beebe certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of

Corn Products international inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any

untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circum

stances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the Period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other

financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and

cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented

in this report

4The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for

establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15el and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15 if and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused

such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision to ensure that material information relating to the reg

istrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to

us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared
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hI Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused

such internal control over financial reporting to he designed under

our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Ic Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure

controls and procedures and presented in dix report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such

evaluation and

dl Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal

control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants

most recent fiscal quarter the Registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual reportl that has materially affected or is rea

sonably likely to materially affect the rogistrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed

based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over finan

cial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee

of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent functionsl

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design

or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely afiect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

IbI Any fraud whether or not material that involves management

or other employees who have significant role in the registrants

infernal control over financial reporting

Date February 28 2011

Is Cheryl Beebe
__________ _______

Cheryl Beebe

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 tJSC Section 1350 as Adopted

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Ilene Gordon the Chief Executive Officer of Corn Products

lntornauonal Inc certify that to my knowledge Ii the report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 as tiled

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section

13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the

information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material

respects the financial condition and results of operations of

Corn Products International Inc

/s Uene Gotdon

Ilerte Gordon

Cltiet Execubvc Officer

February 28 2011

signer origrrrat oi Iris
Written statement inquirer by Serirrun fish iran been irroviierf to

Sore Prtrdrrrts Intrrnatierrul Inc cinri will Ire rntainrrr fry Corn Frrdrrcio Inter naiicrrrtri inc

and frrr richer to the Srrcrrritreo arrd Excirairgo crrremissrorr or rib stall rrporr rerirrrrni

EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 US.C Section 1350 as Adopted

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Cheryl Beebe the Chef Enancia Offcer of Corn Products

International Inc certify that to my knowledge hI the report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 as tiled

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section

13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the

information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material

respects the financial condition and results of operations of

Corn Products International Inc

Is Cheryl Beebe

Cheryl Beebe

Chief Financial Officer

February 28 2011

srgned original of thrs written staterenni requrred Iry Section 006 has been pronrdnd in

Corn Products International tic arid will be retained by Cnrrr Producto Internatrortai inc

and furnished to tire Securities and Exchange Comrnrissioe ot its stat upon request

66 CORN PRODUCTS iNTERNATiONAL



Shareholder CumulativeTotal Return

The performance graph below shows the cumulative total return to

shareholders stock price appreciation or depreciation plus reinvested

dividends during the 5year period from December 31 2005 to

December 31 2010 for our common stock compared to the cumula

tive total return during the same period for the Russell 1000 Index

and peer group index The Russell 1000 Index is comprehensive

common stock price index representing equity investments in the

1000 larger companies measured by market capitalization of the

3000 companies in the Russell 3000 Index The Russell 1000 Index

is value weighted and includes only publicly traded common stocks

belonging to corporations domiciled in the U.S and its territories

Our peer group index includes the following 20 companies in

four identified sectors which based on their standard industrial

classification codes are similar to us

Agricultural Processing

Archer-Donieis-MidianJ Corarany

Bunco Limited

Gruma S.A ha c.v

MGP ingredients inc

Penlord Cor poisson

Tale Lyie PLC

Agricultural Production/

Fann Production

Alien Inc

Aliinncs One intcrrotinnci inc

Charles River ahoralories

international Inc

Universsl Curliorrat me

Agricultural Chemicals

Agnum Inc

Mcincanto Company

Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan inc

Syngesta AG

terra Ntrosen Company Lii

Paper/Timber

Buckeye Technoiogies inc

0ltic richer Corr.oi alms

MsamiV\Iostsuuo Cur poiaiiun

Ontlatch Corporstinn

wausau Paper Corp

CORN PRODUCTS

RUSSELL 1000 INDEX

PEER GROUP INDEX

Corn Prodret lntorrratrornal Inc OQ is i45 71 $12447 $12002 $207

Russell 1000 Index $10000 iS 45 5122 13 $7621 $0755 $1364

PeerGrouplndex $10000 $140 i7 $24634 $14606 $1SGl $21484

uNdIII0 111.r111s1 P1iW.0IIP rLuIII PIiA1I5 Gt1C1uiII

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return Among our Company the Russell 1000 Index and our Peer Group Index

For tio ioriod from Dnccmbcr 31 nnn to Dccnrn bar 3t 2010 Source Standard Poors

Our
peer group foes not include Terra Industries Inc which was included in the index used in our 2009 Annual Report because Tour Industries inc was delisted from the

NesYork Stock tycSecge In 2010 and ccxc acquired by CF Inductriec Hoidingc inc through merger mc April 2010

lie gmph oCCur ncr ihat

rio if lie markci close nit Dcrcombrrr 200ff ymru muds risms-tiriro $11 nrvrrstlrierlts it Inn cunrmnri sioi anti irr aiarkiri upmici lriso-v.joirmirtmrri iiriourits which mitre

apportioned among all the companies whose equity securities constitute each of the other two named indicen and

ail dividends were autorrreticaily reinvested in udditiorral shares of the sante class of equity securities constituting stich isvestmentr at the frequency with which dividends

were paid on such securities during the applicable time home

Reconciliation to Non-GAAP Diluted Earnings Per Share EPS Unaudited
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 2010 December 31 2009 Oecenber 31 2008

Diluted earnings per common share of CPI $2.20 $0.54 $3.52

Add back

Acquisition costs net of income tax benefit
0.34

Impairment/restructuring charges net of income tax benefit 0.29 1.47

Charge for fair value mark-up of acquired inventory net of income tax benefit 0.23

Bridge loan fees net of income tax benefit 0.16

Other acquisition-related financing costs net of income tax benefit 0.02

Costs associated with terminated Bunge merger net of income tax benefit 0.14

Non-GAAP adjusted diluted earnings per common share of CPI $3.24 $2.01 $3.66

$300

$250

$200

$150

$100

$50

$0
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Directors and Officers

/s ii Ari 2011

Board of Directors

Richard Almeida

Former Chairman arid

Chief Executive Officer

Heller Financial Inc

Age 68 Director since 2001

Luis Arariguren-Trellez

Executive President

Arancia Industrial S.A de CV

Age 49 Director since 2003

Karen Hendricks

Former Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

The Baldwin Piano Organ Company

Age 63 Director since 2000

Wayne Hewett

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Arysta LifeScience Corporation

Age 46 Director since 2010

James Ringler

Chairman of the Board

Teradata Corporation

Age 65 Director since 2001

Dwayne Wilson

Group President

Industrial

Floor Corporation

Age 52 Director since 2010

Ilene Gordon

O-i.-L-.-

Chief Executive Officer

Corn Products International Inc

Age 57 Director since 2009

Paul Hanrahan

President and

Chief Executive Officer

The AES Corporation

Age 53 Director since 2006

Gregory Kenny

Chief ExecLitive Officer

General Cable Corporation

Age 58 Director since 2005

Barbara Klein

Former Senior Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

COW Corporation

Ago 50 Director since 2004

earl IOirector

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee

Ms K/ein is Chan

Compensation Committee

Mr Hanrahan is C/ian

Corpoiste Governance arid

Nominating Committee

Mm A/luau/a is Chin

Corporate Officers

Ilene Gordon

Chairman President and

Chief Executive Officer

Age 57 joined Company in 2009

Chery Beebe

Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

Jack Fortnum

Executive Vice President and President

Global Beverage Industrial and

North America Sweetener Solutions

Age 54 joined Company in 1984

Diane Frisch

Senior Vice President Human Resources

Age 56 joined Company in 2010

Robin Kornmeyer

Vice President and Controller

Age 62 joined Company in 2002

John Saucier

Senior Vice President

Corporate Strategy arid

Global Business Development

Age 57 joined Company in 2006

Age 55 joined Company in 1980

Julio dos Reis

Senior Vice President and President

South America Ingredient Solutions

Age 55 joined Company in 1994

Kimberly Hunter

Corporate Treasurer

Age 49 joined Company in 2001

Mary Ann Hynes

Senior Vice President

General Counsel Corporate Secretary

and Chief Compliance Officer

Age 63 joined Company in 2006

James Zallie

Executive Vice President and President

Global Ingredient Solutions

Age 49 joined Company in 2010
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